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Dear Members,

| extend my warm greetings to you as we
convene for the 54th Annual General
Meeting of our esteemed institution. It is a
privilege to Chair the AGM.

The AGM serves as a time for us to
collectively reflect upon the operations and
stewardship of our institution. We would
assess the progress we have made,
acknowledge challenges encountered, and
chartastrategic course for the future.

The GhIE set strategic objectives for the 2-year council period, and we are now
halfway through this period. A key initiative of my stewardship is the initiation
of the development of an Engineering Village (EV). We had an engagement on
the (EV) in December 2023. So far, land has been acquired and concept
designs are being prepared. We will continue to engage you regularly on the
EV.

We have an opportunity to reassess these objectives and review our plans for
achieving them. The management report that will be presented at this
meeting will provide insight into the activities carried out so far and bear
testimony to the hard work we have all putin so far. However, a lot remains to
be done.

| encourage each member to actively participate, share insights, and provide
constructive feedback. Your perspectives are vital in shaping the policies and
decisions that will guide the GhIE in the coming years.

| express my gratitude for your ongoing dedication and contributions to the
Ghana Institution of Engineering.

Thank you for your commitment to the GhIE, and | look forward to a fruitful
AGM.

Best Regards,

Ing. Kwabena Bempong
President, Ghana Institution of Engineering

o
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EX] PROGRAMME FOR AGM

2
N

Callto Order & Opening Remarks

Adoption of Agenda

Confirmation of Minutes of Previous Meeting

2.3.1 Reading of Minutes of the Previous Meeting

2.3.2 Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting

2.3.3 Mattersarising from the Minutes of Previous Meeting

Management Report

Finance Report

2.5.1 Audited Account forthe Year ended 31st December 2023

2.5.2 BudgetfortheYear2024

2.5.3 ProposalsforSubscriptions, Fees, and Levies for 2025

Appointment of Auditors

Any Other Business

Closing Remarks
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EX] MINUTES OF THE 53RD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

3.1 MINUTES OF THE 52ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING HELD ON
MARCH 30, 2023, AT THE BEST WESTERN PLUS ATLANTIC HOTEL,

TAKORADI
MEETING DATE: | THURSDAY, MARCH 30, 2023 MEETING HELD IN-PERSON/ONLINE
. 23 ; . Annual General
Time: 9:23 am Meeting Type: Meeting
Venue: Best Western Plus Atlantic Hotel, Takoradi

Attendance: See Appendix A

m CALL TO ORDER AND OPENING REMARKS

Meeting Call to Order

The Chair, Ing. President, called the meeting to order at 9:23 am.
Ing. Nana Poku Agyeman gave the opening prayer.

Proposed Agenda

The agenda below was considered.

AGENDA

1.0 Call to Order & Opening Remarks

2.0 Apologies for Absence

3.0 Acknowledgement of Past President
4.0 Business of the day

41 Appointment of Election Scrutineers

4.2 Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting
4.3 Matters Arising from Minutes

4.4 Management Report

4.5 Finance Report

4.6 Amendments to Constitution

4.7 Report of Scrutineers

5.0 Any Other Business
6.0 Leadership Transmission
7.0 Closing

Ing. Harold Esseku moved for the adoption of the agenda, and Ing. Leslie A. Ayeh
seconded it. The above agenda was adopted.

o
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m Apologies for Absence

The ED informed the meeting that Ing. Vincent Abbey, who was also contesting for
the position of Chair, Branch 7, had indicated his inability to attend.

3.0 Acknowledgement of Past Presidents

Ing. Prof. Charles A. Adams expressed his gratitude to all attendees of the Annual
General Meeting. He thanked the members for their support throughout his tenure.
Prof. Adams alsoimplored all present to extend their fullest support to the
incoming president, Ing. Kwabena Bempong, as he took on the mantle of
leadership.

4.0 Business of the Day

4.1. Appointment of Election Scrutineers

Per Article 10.5.3(5) of the GhIE Bye-Laws, the meeting selected a team of three as
election scrutineers. The team was made up of the following.

* Ing. Leslie Alexander Ayeh - Chair

* Ing. Domingo da Pilma Leketey

° Ing. Regina Kwapong

4.2 Approval of Draft Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The Executive Director, Ing. David K. Nyante, led the review of the minutes of the
previous meeting.

Ing. Harold Esseku pointed out an error in the attendance list where wrong
companies were placed against the names of the members from lines 43 to 87.
The information appeared to have been displaced by a line and it was corrected.

Ing. Harold Esseku moved a motion for the acceptance of the minutes, subject to
corrections of the attendance list. Ing. Carlien Bou-Chedid, PP, seconded the
motion.

The minutes of the previous meeting was accepted.

4.3 Matters Arising from Minutes

There were no issues or concerns for action arising from the minutes of the
previous meeting.

4.4 Management Report for the 2021/2022 Council Year

The Executive Director presented the management report for the 2022/2023
Council year. The report covered the activities of the Council, Standing Committees,
Technical Divisions, Branches, and the Secretariat. Highlights of the report included:

The successful 53rd Annual Conference which was hosted by Branch 7 at the Best

Western Atlantic Hotel, Takoradi.
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* Successful Branch AGM and Conference by Branch 2 in June 2022 at the Eusbett
International Conference Center, Sunyani.

* He encouraged members to follow the process for creation of new technical
divisions and create them.

* Special committees
The activities and contributions of the Standing and Special Committee of the
Council were presented in the report. The Executive Director commended their
consistent and impactful work throughout the year. In a similar vein, he
acknowledged the contributions of the Branches in supporting members across the
country. He mentioned the role of Senior Engineering Practitioners in mentoring
younger counterparts, stressing the value of guidance and knowledge transfer in
the engineering profession.

* He spoke about the contribution of the Secretariat and their activities in supporting
the Committees of Council.
Gratitude was also extended to past presidents for their enduring service and
contributions to the Institution, reflecting the profound appreciation for their
leadership and legacy.

In conclusion, the Executive Director extended appreciation to the various
companies, including the Volta River Authority, Ghana Ports and Harbour Authority,
Bui Power Authority, Grid Company Limited, Fabrimetal, and Sika Chemicals, for
their support to the Ghana Institution of Engineering (GhIE) over the years.

Hard copies of the management report were made available to members at the
meeting and a soft copy posted on the website of the Institution.

Ing. Ben Aniagyei, PP, commended the leadership for compiling a comprehensive
and well-structured management report, reflecting positively on the Institution's
governance and strategic direction.

4.5 Financial Report for the 2021/2022 Council Year.

4.5.1.| Financial Report

Mr. Daniel Adewu, a Senior Partner at UHY Voscon, External Auditors of GhIE,
presented the Audited Accounts for the year 2022. The Audited Accounts were
shared 21 days before the AGM.

The following were noted.
Total Income for the period was GHC 5,970,804.00.
Total Expenditure for the period was GHC 5,358,992.00.

Comments from members were as follows.

¢ Ing. Andrew Evans Quayson, PP, commended the management team for
significantly enhancing the revenue from GH¢ 2.5 million to GH¢ 5 million within
the year.

* Ing. Dr. Kwame Agyeman Boakye, PP, commented that various Branches should be
encouraged to actively pursue sponsorship opportunities to support their activities.

o
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Ing. Dr. Emmanuel K. Nyantakyi moved a motion for the acceptance of the financial
report. The motion was seconded by Ing. Ludwig Hesse.

The financial report for 2022 was accepted.

4.5.2] Budget for the year

Ing. Michael K.L. Dedey, Vice President and Honorary Treasurer, Presented the
budget for the year 2023.

Financial details

The financial proposals that were outlined involve adjusting the entrance fees,
annual subscription rates, and levies for members based on several considerations.
The following were the key financial details and changes proposed:

Inflation Adjustment: Due to a year-on-year inflation rate of 54% as of December
31, 2022, the rates are being adjusted to accommodate the increased costs of
operations and services.

Licensing Fees: Provisions for licensing fees payable to the Engineering Council are
included in the proposed fees.

Allocations for Welfare, Branch Operations, and Capital Investment: The proposed
fees incorporate allocations for these areas as required by article 15.4.1 of the GhIE
constitution, ensuring that the institution can fund welfare programs, branch
operations, and necessary capital investments.

Adjustments for Non-voting Members: The proposal also includes adjustments to
ensure that the fee increments do not burden non-voting members across various
occupational groups. This was done by setting their subscription rates so they do
not pay more than voting members in the next higher occupational group.

Reclassification of Firms: Firms are regrouped according to the categories defined
in the Engineering Council Act 2011 (Act 819), which includes consulting engineering
firms, engineering contracting companies, engineering service providers,
manufacturing companies, fabrication, repair and maintenance units, and vendors
of engineering materials and machinery.

Definitions for Industry Scale: The proposal applies modified definitions for Small,
Medium, and Large-Scale Industries as defined by the National Board for Small-
Scale Industries (NBSSI), to suit the engineering sector's

requirements better.

Service Provision and Engagement: The GhIE plans to provide services and create
platforms for reqular engagement with corporate members, which includes
engineering firms, contractors, service providers, and engineering education units.

* Financial Increments:
* A 30% increment in fees for individual members.
* A 50% increment for organizational members.

o
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* Engineering Student rates are fixed and represent one-time payments for ID Cards,
distinguishing them from other membership categories that may face annual fees.

During the presentation, he urged the Secretariat to send timely subscription
invoices, regular reminders, and diligent follow-ups. He proposed the updating of
seminar topics to boost participation in seminars. He suggested to the Membership
Committee to enhance the membership drive by refining the application and
examination processes, to foster the Institution's growth and elevate

membership standards.

Ing. Michael K.L. Dedey then moved for the acceptance of the budget. It was
seconded by Ing. Ebenezer Kwesi Haizel. The budget was approved.

4.5.3] Proposals for Subscriptions, Levies, and Firm Fees for 2023

Ing. Michael Dedey took members through the proposed subscriptions and fees for
2024. He gave the rationale for the proposals, which was mainly due to inflation.

Ing. Carlien Bou-Chedid PP pointed out that Honorary Fellows are not required to
pay subscriptions per Article 9.3.1 of the GhIE Constitution; so, subscription for
Honorary Fellows should be taken out.

Ing. Carlien Bou-Chedid requested a review of the fees for firms/ companies,
foreign companies, and local artisans.

Ing. Michael K.L. Dedey Moved for the acceptance of the Proposed Subscriptions,
levies, and fees, and Ing. Harold Esseku seconded it. The motion was accepted.

4.6 Amendments to Constitution.

Ing. Ludwig Hesse presented the proposal to amend the Constitution. The Notice
was shared to all members on February 20 2023 and it reads as follows.

In accordance with Article 18.1.6 of the Constitution, notice is hereby given of the
proposed amendments to the Constitution.

1 Proposed Amendments to Constitution

11 To make Women in Engineering (Wink) and Youth in Engineering (YE)
Constitutional Bodies

I. Article 1.1. Scope

Add to Article 1.1.1 the following:

(r) "Affiliated Engineering Groups" means any group recognized by the Institution in
accordance with Article 4.6.3.

(s) "Groups of Strategic Interest" means any group set up or recognized by the
Institution in accordance with Article 4.6.2.

ii. Articles 4.1. Organizational Structures

o
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* Add to Article 4.1.1. The following:
(e) For pursuing other interests, consist of Other Structures.
iii. Article 4.6 Other Structures

Amend Article 4.6 as follows:

461 Other Structures of the Institution are made up of:
(@) Groups of Strategic Interest (GSlIs); and

(b) Affiliated Engineering Groups (AEGS).

4.6.2 A Group of Strategic Interest may be formed or recognized by the
Institution for the purposes of advocacy, affirmative action and mentoring

as follows:
(@) A Group of Strategic Interest shall be named in the Bye-Laws.
(b) The specific objectives for setting up a Group of Strategic Interest shall be

provided for in the Bye-Laws.

(c) The Council may, through an amendment of the Bye-Laws, add or remove
a Group of Strategic Interest but the total number of such Groups shall not
exceed four (4) at any time.

(d) Membership of a Group of Strategic Interest shall be limited to Members
of the Institution. The category of Members that are eligible to be
members of a Group of Strategic Interest shall be provided for in the
Bye-Laws. Membership shall, in every instance, be open to members of
all Occupational Groups, Technical Divisions and Branches of the Institution
and such inclusion shall be actively pursued.

(e) A Group of Strategic Interest is expected to raise funds through means
stated in its Regulations as provided for in item (g) below and subject to
the fiduciary supervision of the Council. Notwithstanding, the Institution
shall make provisions in its budget to support the activities of the Group.

(f) The Secretariat of the Institution shall provide administrative support to
the Groups of Strategic Interest in the organization of their activities.

(9) A Group of Strategic Interest may be self-requlating, subject to the
provisions of the Constitution and Bye-Laws. Furthermore, it shall submit
its Regulations for the approval of the Council and shall observe Mandatory
Regulations as are provided for in the Bye-Laws.

4.6.3 A Group may be recognized by the Institution as an Affiliated Engineering
Group for the purposes of advocacy, collaboration and partnering in
advancing the practice of engineering and/or providing support for the
registration of its members with the Engineering Council of Ghana.

The objectives and conditions of the affiliation shall be stated in a
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) approved by a two-thirds majority
vote at a regular meeting of the Council. Additional provisions on the
content of the MoU, including the period of recognition, are provided for

in the Bye-Laws.
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° iv. Article 10.1. The Council

Add to Article 10.1.2. The following:
(j) The Chairperson of each Group of Strategic Interest.
Delete Article 10.1.5.
v. Article 10.6. Specific Provision for Election of Council Members

Add a new Article 10.6.9 as follows:
10.6.9 The Chairperson of a Group of Strategic Interest shall be elected in
accordance with the Regulations of the Group of Strategic Interest provided for in
Article 4.6.3(g) above.

vi. Article 121 The Branch Executive Committee

Add to Article 12.1.2. The following:
(g) A Representative of each Group of Strategic Interest.
1.2 Staggering of Elections
I. Article 10.5 General Provisions for Elections of the Institution
Delete Article 10.5.1

Ing. Ludwig Hesse moved for the acceptance of the amendment. The amendment
was accepted through a voice vote.

4.7 Report of Scrutineers

The election results of the GhIE 2023/2025 Council Members were presented by the
Chair of the scrutineers, Ing. Alex Ayeh, IPP. Details of the results were also
published on the website of the Institution.

Elected Members of Council for the year 2023-2025

Ing. Mrs. Sophia Tijani Vice President

Ing. Ludwig A. Hesse President-Elect

Ing. Dr Patrick Amoah Bekoe Executive Representative (PEs)

Mr. Philip Kwame Aheto Executive Representative (Technicians)

Mr. Richard Adarkwah Executive Representative (Craftsmen)

Ing. Dr Joseph X.F Ribeiro Branch 1 Chair (Ashanti)

Ing. Dr. Emmanuel Kwesi Nyantakyi | Branch 2 Chair (Bono, Bono East, Ahafo)

Ing. Godfrey Atta Jackson Branch 3 Chair (Eastern)

Ing. Abdul Shakud Iddrisu Branch 5 Chair (Northern, Savannah, Upper East, Upper West)
Ing. Antoinette Ama Agboado Branch 6 Chair (Volta)

Ing. Franklin Kumassah Branch 7 Chair (Western, Central, Western-North)
Ing. Michael Obeng Konadu Civil Division Chair

Ing. Prof. Nana Yaw Asiedu Chemical Division Chair

Ing. Darlington Ahuble Mech/Agric/Marine Division Chair

Ing. Ebenezer Ato Roberts Electrical/Electronic Division Chair

Ing. Naa Lamkai Quaye-Ballard National Councilor

Ing. Prof. Elsie Effah Kaufmann National Councilor

Ms. Augustina Nyarkoa Amoateng National Councilor

Mr. Felix Ohene Ayisi National Councilor

Mr. Gideon Bidor National Councilor
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5.0 Any Other Business
There were no issues.

6.0 Leadership Transmission
The 51st President, Ing Prof. Charles Adams, handed over the Presidential Chain,
being the symbol of Authority and gavel to the 52nd President, Ing Kwabena
Bempong.
Leadership transition procedures were executed successfully before the meeting's
adjournment.

7.0 CLOSING
Ing. Rita Ohene Sarfoh moved for the adjournment of the meeting.
Ing. Ebenezer Kwesi Haizel seconded the motion.
The meeting was adjourned at 1.30 pm.

Recorded by: Approved by:

Ing. David K. Nyante, FGhIE Ing. Charles Anum Adams
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m INTRODUCTION

The 2023-2025 Council period of the Ghana Institution of Engineering (GhIE)
began on April 1, 2023, after the Annual General Meeting held on March 30,
2023. The Presidential Inauguration was held on the evening of March 30,
2023, ata Banquet at the Best Western Plus Atlantic Hotel, Takoradi.

This report seeks to provide updates and information on the activities of the
Council, Standing Committees, Advisory Groups, and the Secretariat.

4.1 FORMATION OF COUNCIL
411 Election of Council Members

In compliance with Articles 10.5 and 10.6 of the Ghl€ Constitution, elections
were held for Council Members for the 2023-2025 Council period from March
15,2023, to March 30, 2023.

The Election Buddy software was employed for the election's nominations,
voting and vote tallying.
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An Election Committee was established to work with the Executive Director
to undertake the election. This process resulted in the successful election of
our Councilmembers.

The membership of the election committee was as follows:

SN Name [positon
1. Ing. Kwasi Amoako Kwakwa (P.P.) Chair

2. Ing. Gloria Apenkwah Member

3. Ing. Samuel Asare Member

4, Ing. Kweku Asmah Member

5. Ing. Mrs. Joyce Naa Anowa Oturoku Member

6. Mr. Edmond Mwinbamon Balika Member

7. Mr. Benjamin Bartels GhIE Secretariat

8. Mr. Richard Acheampong GhIE Secretariat
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4.1.2 Investiture of the 53rd President of the Ghana Institution of
Engineering

On March 30, 2023, Ing. Kwabena Bempong was inaugurated as the 52nd
President of the Ghana Institution of Engineering (Ghl€E) at a Banquet at the
Best Western Plus Atlantic Hotel in Takoradi. The Oath of office for the
President was administered by Her Ladyship Justice Sedina Agbemava, a
Justice of the High Court of the Republic of Ghana.

In his inaugural address, President Bempong outlined his priorities for the
Council year, focusing on five strategic plans: Corporate Governance,
Education and Training, Professional Practice, Membership and Welfare, and
Public Interest.

In @ speech read for him, the Minister for Roads and Highways, Hon. Kwasi
Amoako-Atta, congratulated the President and urged him to work hard to
justify the confidence reposed in him. The Minister's speech was delivered on
his behalf by Ing Philip Lartey. Present at the event included Past Presidents,
Traditional Rulers, and representatives from the Nigerian Society of
Engineers (NSE), Sierra Leone Institution of Engineers (SLIE), Engineering
Society of Liberia (ESol), Institution of Engineers Kenya (I€EK), Institution of
Engineers Rwanda and other sister Professional Bodies.
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4.1.3 Composition of Council 2023-2025

The 2023-2025 Council was constituted with membership comprising the
President, Vice President, Chairs of Technical Divisions (4), Branch Chairs (6),
National Councilors (12 - 3 from each Occupational Group), Executive
Representatives of Occupational Groups (4 — 1from each Occupational Group).
The members were sworn in by Justice Sedina Agbemava, a Justice of the
High Court of the Republic of Ghana, on the evening of March 30, 2023, at a
Banquet at the Best Western Hotel Plus Atlantic, Takoradi.

The following positions were vacant: Chair-Branch 4 (Greater Accra),
Executive Representative-Technologists, Representatives of Educational
Units and Engineering Service Providers.
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Therefore bye-elections were held for the vacant positions from August 24-
29, 2023, and the following positions were filled: Chair-Branch 4 and
Executive Representative for Technologists.

The Engineering Service Providers and the Engineering Educational Units
held their fora to electtwo (2) representatives each for Council.

An orientation programme was held for Council Members at Afrikiko
Riverfront Resort, Akosombo, from April 27 to 30, 2023. (See Appendix B for
2023 - 2025 Objectives)

Thus, the composition of the Council is as follows:

1 Ing. Kwabena Bempong, FGhIE President

2. Ing Prof Charles Adams, FGhIE Immediate Past President

3. Ing. Ludwig A. Hesse, FGhIE President-Elect

4. Ing. Mrs. Sophia Tijani, FGhIE Vice President

5 Ing Dr Patrick Amoah Bekoe, FGhIE Executive representative (PE)

6. Mr Michael Dompreh-Ampofo Executive Representative (PET)

7. Mr Philip Kwame Aheto Executive representative (Technicians)

8. Mr. Richard Adarkwah Executive representative (Craftsmen)

9. Ing. Mrs. Yaa Obenewaa Okudzeto National Councillor (PE)

10. Ing. Naa Lamkai Quaye-Ballard National Councillor (PE)

1. Ing. Prof. Elsie Effah Kaufmann, FGhIE National Councillor (PE)

12. Mr. Felix Ohene Ayisi National Councillor (Craftsmen)

13. Mr. Gideon Bidoryao National Councillor (Craftsmen)

14. Ing Michael Obeng Konadu, FGhIE Chair, Civil Technical Division

15. Ing Prof Nana Yaw Asiedu Chair, Chemical/Mining Technical Division

16. Ing Ebenezer Ato Roberts, FGhIE Chair, Electrical/Electronic Technical
Division

17. Ing Darlington Ahuble, FGhIE Chair, Mechanical Technical Division

18. Ing Dr. Joseph X.F Ribeiro Chair, Branch 1 (Ashanti)

19. Ing Dr. Emmanuel Kwesi Nyantakyi, Chair, Branch 2 (Brong, Bono East, Ahafo)

FGhIE

20. Ing Godfrey Atta Jackson Chair, Branch 3 (Eastern)

21. Ing Michael Cudjoe Chair, Branch 4, Greater Accra

22. Ing Abdul Shakud Iddrisu Chair, Branch 5 (Northern, Savannah,
Upper East, Upper West)

o
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23. Ing Antoinette Ama Agboado Chair, Branch 6 (Volta, Oti)

24. Ing Franklin Kumassah Chair, Branch 7 (Western, Central,
Western-North)

25. Ing Prof. Kwabena Nyarko Rep, Engineering Educational Units
26. Ing Kwaku Sarpong Akosa Rep, Engineering Service Providers
27. Ing Magnus Quarshie (PP), FGhIE Rep, Engineering Service Providers
28. Ing David Kwatia Nyante, FGhIE Executive Director

m CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
4.2.1 Presidential Address

A. Presidential Address

On January 30, 2024, the President of the GhIE, Ing Kwabena Bempong,
delivered the 52nd Presidential Address at the Ghana Shippers Authority,
Shippers House, North Ridge-Accra. The address centred on the theme
"Sustainable Housing Supply with Alternative Building Technologies." His
address highlighted the strategic direction towards adopting innovative and
environmentally friendly building technologies to fundamentally transform
the housing sector.

The President's address offered insights and forward-looking
recommendations poised to significantly contribute to the Housing sector in
Ghana.

The event was chaired by Mr. Emmanuel Botchwey, Executive Chairman of
Regi Manuel Group and was sponsored by MC Bauchemie. In the chairman's
remarks, he noted that the address underscored the transformative power of
embracing sustainable practices.

Others present at the event included Council Members, Past Presidents,
Members of the Institution, and the general public.

o
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B. Building Technology Fair

The Building Technology Fair was held in collaboration with Citi TV on January
28 and 29, 2024, at the forecourt of the Accra Metropolitan Assembly.

The theme for the fair was "Sustainable Housing Supply with Alternative
Building Technologies,". The event served as a precursor to the Presidential
Address. It featured diverse, innovative building technologies and provided a
platform for stakeholders to embrace new building technologies.

The following were exhibitors at the fair: CaB Royale Ltd, Ecoblock Company
Limited, MC-Bauchemie Ghana Limited, Fabrimetal Ghana Limited, PTS
Electric, GhIg, Engineering Council, GM Bamboo Eco-City, Viva & Co Ghana
Limited, The Akenten Appiah-Menka University of Skills Training and
Entrepreneurial Development (AAMUSTED), Build Smart, Dutch and Co,
Supacem, Sika Chemical, First National Bank, KNAUF Ghana, Ambassadors
Premium Group, Sol-Rock Limited.

The Ghl€E President opened and closed the Conference. Council Members, Past
Presidents and the general public participated in the fair.

~
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4.2.2 2024 Annual Conference & 54th Annual General Meeting

The 2024 Annual Conference and 54th Annual General Meeting was held from
March 18 to 23, 2024, at the Fiesta Royale Hotel in Dzorwulu, Accra, under the
theme "Engineering a Resilient Future: Innovative Solutions for a Sustainable
Ghana,". This significant event was marked by a comprehensive agenda that
fostered innovation and collaboration among engineering professionals.

The Annual Conference was opened by the Special Guest of Honor Lawyer
Sam Okudzeto. There were about 350 participants, including international
delegates, Past Presidents of the Ghlg, Council Members of the GhIg, and
other professional bodies in the built environment. There were plenary
sessions and technical presentations.

Sub-themes for the Conference included Integrated Energy Systems,
Resilient Infrastructure Development, Innovative Solutions for Food and
Water Security, Artificial Intelligence and the Future of Engineering in Ghana,
Resilient Infrastructure Development, and Innovation and Sustainable Driven
Methods.

A Conference Banquet and Engineering Excellence Awards will be held to
climax the Conference on the evening of March 21, 2024, at the Labadi Beach
Hotel, Accra. This event celebrates outstanding achievements in engineering,
recognizing individuals and projects that have demonstrated excellence.

@
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Fellowships would be awarded at this event, including an Honorary
Fellowship to Dr. (Mrs.) Irene Stella Agyenim-Boateng. Members approved by
the Council to be transferred to the Class of Fellow are as follows.

1. Ing. Augustine Appiah Boachie 02433 Civil

2. Ing. Winfred Aniagyei 02568 Mechanical

3. Ing. Michael Botse-Baidoo 02809 Civil

4. Ing. Samuel Odartey Lamptey 02990 Mechanical

5. Ing. Ebenezer Kwamina Egyir Laing 04087 Civil

6. Ing. Frederick Kwesi Attakumah 05627 Electrical/Electronic
7. Ing. Kisman Ackon Eghan 05630 Electrical/Electronic
8. Ing. Samuel Kwabena Asare 05701 Civil

9. Ing. Calvin Nii Bruce-Attuquayefio 06357 Mechanical

10. Ing. Isaac Boakye Aduenin 06618 Mechanical

1. Ing. Yaa Obenewaa Okudzeto 06881 Electrical/Electronic

Forums for Special Interest Groups: Forums were held on March 18, 2024, by
Women in Engineering and Youth in Engineering. This preceded the opening
of the 2-day Conference on March 19, 2024.

Technical Tours: Technical visits and tours were held at MC Bauchemie,
Cenpower Generation Company Limited and Fabrimetal Ghana Limited on
March 22, 2024, to conclude the activities of the 54th Conference and AGM.

Engineering Games: This preceded the 54th Annual General Meeting and
Conference with the 3rd GhIE Engineering Golf Open Tournament at the
Celebrity Golf Club on March 16, 2024. Other games were lawn tennis,
swimming, table tennisand some indoor games.

4.2.3 Publicinterestand Corporate Relations

One of the Council's missions is to make the Institution beneficial to society.
Highlights of the series of strategic engagements and dialogues that have
significantly contributed to our mission of fostering public interest and
enhancing corporate relations within the engineering sector are as follows:

o
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A. Cybersecurity:

A lecture on Cybersecurity was held on August 3, 2023, at the Engineering
Centre. It was a hybrid event delivered by the Director General of the
Cybersecurity Authority, Dr. Albert Antwi-Boasiako.

This lecture aimed to elevate awareness and understanding of cybersecurity
challenges and solutions, marking a pivotal step towards securing our digital
infrastructure against evolving threats. It recorded an attendance of 120
members.

B. Ghana Electronic Procurement System (GHANePS)

A lecture on the Ghana Electronic Procurement System (GHANePS) was held
on August 10, 2024, at the Engineering Centre. It was a hybrid event delivered
by the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Public Procurement Authority, Mr.
Kwame Prempeh.

Our collaboration with the Public Procurement Authority for this event
facilitated a deeper understanding of GHANePS's role in enhancing
transparency and efficiency in procurement processes. It recorded an
attendance of 86 members.

C. GhIE-GRA Dialogue on Taxation and E-VAT

A dialogue on Taxation and E-VAT was held on September 7, 2023, at the
Engineering Centre. It was a hybrid event that had 100 participants. It was
delivered by the GRA Madina TSC Office team. The lecture provided insights
into the fiscal landscape, specifically regarding E-VAT's implications for the
engineering sector. It was an essential platform for addressing taxation
challenges and fostering compliance and understanding among our
members. Members had the opportunity to seek clarification on tax issues
affecting them.

D. Launch and Stakeholder Forum on Upskilling Biomedical Engineers for
Ghana

This event was held on September 19, 2023. It focused on the need for
upskilling biomedical engineers, a key initiative to advance healthcare
technology and innovation in Ghana. This forum brought together
stakeholders to discuss strategies for continuous professional development
in biomedical engineering. This initiative, dubbed 'Upskilling Biomedical
Engineers for Ghana,' was launched at the Engineering Centre in Accra and
was supported by GIZ's development funding program for healthcare
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improvement and implemented by GIZ on behalf of the German Federal
Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ). It partners with
the University of Ghana and the Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and
Technology (KNUST) for implementation. Representatives of the Institutions
mentioned above were present atthe event.

E. Donations to Communities affected by the Akosombo Dam Spillage

The Ghana Institution of Engineering, Ghana Institute of Architects and Ghana
Institute of Planners visited some of the impacted communities of the
Akosombo Dam Spillage on Tuesday, October 24, 2023. They visited Battor
and Mepe in the North Tongu District of the Volta Region to observe the
extent of damage from the spillage and find ways to assist them. The
President also launched an appeal for funds to support the affected
communities. The team presented relief items, including food, drinks, and
cash, to displaced persons in Battor and Mepe in the North Tongu District of
the Volta Region.

We appreciate those who have contributed and encourage other members to
donate fgg this fund.
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F. GhIE-VRA Dialogue on Akosombo Dam Spillage

A hybrid event was held on November 2, 2023, at the Engineering Centre
following the spillage of the Akosombo Dam, which caused several
communities in the lower Volta basin and around the catchment area, North
Tongu District in particular, to flood. The Chief Executive Officer of the Volta
River Authority (VRA), Ing. Emmanuel Antwi-Darkwa, led a team from the
VRA to make presentations on the issue. It offered members the opportunity
to interrogate the process leading to the spillage and mitigation measures
employed to deal with the effects of the spillage.

G. GhlE-Minerals Commission Dialogue on the Mining of Lithiumin Ghana
On December 14, 2023, the Minerals Commission had a dialogue session with
the GhIE on the Mining Lease Agreement for Lithium and other associated
minerals. This dialogue highlighted the strategic importance and potential of
lithium mining in Ghana. The presentation was made by the Chief Executive
Officer of the Minerals Commission, Mr. Martin Ayisi.

He outlined the terms and benefits of the deal, projecting that by February
2024, the various studies for developing the value chain would have been
submitted. The presentation and mining agreement were shared with all
members. Members had the opportunity to seek clarification on the
agreement.

H. Proposed Engineering Village in Assin Kushea

The Institution signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the
Paramount Chief of Assin Owirenkyi Traditional Council, Ehunabobrim Prah
Agyemsaim VI, at the Engineering Centre for a 10-acre land for the
construction of an Engineering Village (EV) at Assin Kushea. The EV is
envisaged to have an Industrial Park, an office for the facility management
team, a Conference facility, a museum of engineering in Ghana, an eco-park
andrecreational centre, and a hostel.

A forum was held on Tuesday, December 19, 2023. The main speakers at the
forum were Ghl€E's President, Ing. Kwabena Bempong, and Ing. Michael
Dedey, the Chairman of the Building Project Committee. The architects of the
project also made a presentation of the concept. Members also had the
opportunity to ask questions and offer suggestions.
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m STANDING AND SPECIAL COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

4.3.1 Standing Committees

The Standing Committees of the Council were properly constituted.
The activities they carried out during the period are highlighted below.
(See appendix B for list of Committee Members)

A. Finance Committee

The Finance Committee plays a crucial role in overseeing the Institution's
financial health and ensuring responsible management of financial
resources. The Committee's mandate is presented in Article 13.2 of the GhIE
Constitution and Bye-Laws. Below are highlights of initiatives for the year.

. Completed a detailed review of the Accounting and Financial
Administrative Manual to ensure compliance and up-to-date practices.

. Council approved the Earmarked Fund Policy to optimize fund
allocation and usage.

. Executed monthly reviews of financial reports, ensuring accuracy and
timely adjustments to financial strategies.

. Enhanced subscription management through rigorous follow-ups,
improving revenue consistency.
Conducted a thorough review of the 2024 Budget, identifying critical
areas for financial optimization and strategic allocation.

B. Membership

The Committee is currently Chaired by Ing Dr. Patrick Amoah Bekoe, following
his nomination at Council to serve as the Chair. The Committee is responsible
for the admission and transfer of members on to the GhIE membership
register with support from members of the Committee, the ICT Committee
Chaired by Ing. Kweku Asmah and the Branch Chairs, Ing Dr. Emmanuel K.
Nyantakyi of Branch 2, Ing Dr. Joseph X.F. Ribeiro of Branch 1, Ing Antoinette
Agboado of Branch 6, Ing Jeoffrey Jackson of Branch 3, Ing Abdul-Shakud
Iddrisu of Branch 5, Ing Franklin Kumassah of Branch 7, Ing Michael Codjoe of
Branch 4, and the Secretariat.
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(i) Streamlining the Committee for Impact

The Committee was restructured during the Council year to bring the
necessary innovation, effectiveness, and efficiency to its operations in line
with the constitutional requirements. As a result, the Committee currently
comprise of the following:

. Technical Advisory Group

. Examination Sub Committee

. Technology Sub Committee

. Membership Outreach Sub-Committee

. Documentations and Publication Subcommittee
a) Technical Advisory Group

The Group comprises members with over 15 years of experience who served
on the previous Committee to review confirmation hearing applications and
encourage senior engineering practitioners to register as members of the
Institution. They develop quidelines, approve panel members, and ensure
quality assurance. The Group is chaired by Ing Kingsford D. Laryea, who
represents the Group at the monthly meetings of the Membership
Committee.

b) Examination Subcommittee

The Examination subcommittee, chaired by Ing Samuel Danquah, has four (4)
other examination subcommittee chairs who oversee each technical
division's examinations, including chairs from each occupational Group.
They are responsible for proposing full panel members, subject to approval by
the Technical Advisory Group. The Chair of the Examination subcommittee
attends monthly meetings of the Membership Committee.

C) Technology Sub-committee

The subcommittee is responsible for membership innovations and the use of
state-of-the-art technology to improve the workings of the Committee in
collaboration with the ICT Committee. They are responsible for the
membership application system, examination portal, and any other
technological issues with membership. Ing John Getor chairs the
subcommittee and attends the Membership committee's monthly meetings.
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d) Membership Outreach Subcommittee

Ing Dr. Bertha Darteh is the Chair of the Membership Outreach Subcommittee,
responsible for attracting members to the occupational groups and focusing
on the underrepresented occupational groups to ensure their representation.
The subcommittee also reaches out to students for guidance on their
membership progression. The Chair attends the monthly meetings of the
Membership Committee.

e) Documentations and Publication Subcommittee

Ing Benjamin Ahunu chairs the subcommittee in charge of documenting and
publishing the activities of the membership committee through a bimonthly
electronic newsletterin coordination with other committees and branches for
a wider readership, subject to approval by the Membership committee. The
Chair attends the Membership Committee's monthly meetings.

(i) GhlE Membershipin Numbers

a) Active members

The total membership of Ghl€ for the Council year 2023/2024 stood at 10,898.
Out of the total, only 5,263 were in good standing. The trend over the last five
years is shown below. The Secretariat must pursue aggressive revenue
collection strategies to surpass the present figures. This includes reaching out
to members who are not in good standing, streamlining the process of
collecting revenue, focusing on increasing the efficiency of the payment
systems, prioritizing increasing transparency and providing better customer
service.




Management Report 2023/2024 Council Year

b) Contributing Members

MEMBERS IN GOOD STANDING

6,000 5,263

5,000 4265 4,236

4,000 3,463
3,000
2,000

1,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

C) Total Membership in Classes

Members 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Honorary Fellow 7 7 7 8 8
Fellow 121 126 131 138 142
Senior Professional Engineer 139 314 274 260 1,450
Professional Engineer 3,351 3,786 3,925 4,508 3,665
Prof. Engineering Technologist 201 187 188 193 161
Trainee Prof, Engineer 1,853 2,056 2,676 3,184 3,589
Trainee Prof. Eng. Technologist 488 428 412 431 450
Engineering Technician 14 139 104 104 106
Trainee Eng. Technician 101 39 43 50 61
Craftsmen - - - 788 1,029
Retired Fellow 31 49 54 66 72
Retired Prof. Engineer 76 128 126 138 165
TOTAL 6509 7259 7940 9808 10898

Male-Female Numbers

15,000
9,051 10,030
10,000 7278
6,084 6,709 '

5,000

418 543 655 749 868

0 — — — — |

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

B Male M Female

o



Management Report 2023/2024 Council Year

d) A Closer Look at Technical Division Demographics

Division 2019 2020 201 | 2022 | 2023 |

Civil 2,565 2,899 3,025 3,605 4,045
Electrical/Electronics 2,033 2,284 2,458 2,953 3,426
Chemical/Mining 594 639 751 853 978
Mech/Agric/Marine 1,310 1,430 1,699 2,001 2,441
Total 6,502 7,252 7,933 9,412 10,890

Breakdown of Technical Divisions 2023

Mech/Agric/Marine
Chemical/Mining
Electrical/Electronics
ciil

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000 3,500 4,000 4,500

e) Craftsmen Status

The GhIE can currently boast over 1,000 registered craftsmen as members of
the Institution. Their number rose from 788 in 2022 to 1,029 in 2023. The
Groupis onan outreach programme to recruit more members.

Craftsmen Status
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600
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f) Student Membership

The number of students registered during the Council was 907 compared to
last year, which was 656. Plans are underway for an intensive outreach
programme to enrol more student members into the Institution. The total
number of registered students now stands at1,563.

Student Registration
1000 907
800
600
400

200

2022 2023

(iii)  Membership Drive

The Committee held a series of activities to bring new members on board.
These activities included meetings, visits, workshops, and social media
platforms to increase visibility. The Committee is reviving the website
membership page to provide resources and support to members.

a) Diaspora Membership Mobilization

The diaspora membership drive made a notable improvement in some
countries, whereas no progress was made in others. This was made possible
during the 2023 Transportation Research Board (TRB) Annual Meeting held in
Washington D.C., Walter €. Washington Convention Centre, USA, from January
8-12, 2023, attended by the Chair of the Committee. The TRB meeting is the
largest global gathering of transportation professionals and researchers
focusing on innovative solutions for all modes of transportation. Regarding
registration and transfers, no significant marks were made because of
registration processes and procedures. It would be necessary to modify the
procedures forinstant registration and payment. To guarantee simple access,

the Committee plans to enhance the procedures.
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Country 2022 2023 Registraion Transfers
(2023)
United States of America 14 19 0 0
Canada 2 1 0 0
UK 2 1 1 0
China 25 30 1 0
Australia 1 0 0
India 0 7 0 0
South Korea 0 8 0 0
United Arab Emirates 0 1 0 0
TOTAL 44 67 0 0

b) Membership Outreach Campaign

To reach out to potential members and connect with GhIE's minority
occupational groups, technologists, technicians, and artisans, the Outreach
subcommittee organized visits to some selected institutions. The Ghana
Armed Forces granted the committee audience to meet its members on
Thursday, December 7,2023. The Chair, Ing. Dr. Patrick Bekoe, led the team and
was accompanied by the President-Elect, Ing. Ludwig Hesse, Ing. Juliet Adu, a
committee member, Mr. Aheto, the Executive Representative of Engineering
Technicians, and Mad. Adobea Antwi is a supporting staff member from the
Secretariat. Major Daniel Osei Gyasi received the team. The team later paid a
courtesy call on the Director of Engineering Services, Col. Jonas Wiafe, and the
Commanding Officer, Ing. Col. Kwaku Nuku Enyonam-Adih.

As mandated by the Engineering Council Act, 2011, Act 819, the speakers
emphasized the importance of registering as a professional engineering
practitioner and discussed the benefits of becoming a member. The military
personnel expressed interest in joining the Institution. The trip strengthened
GhlE's relationship with the military and fostered GhlE's mission to grow its
membership. It was a positive interaction, which proved to be beneficial for
both parties. The GhIE was grateful for the positive feedback it received from
the military. The Ghana Water Company Limited and Electricity Company of
Ghana want to provide the Institution with a regional audience. The
Committee is putting together a schedule for the remaining visits.
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(iv)  Special Assessment Pathways
a) Engineering Professional Examinations

During the year under review, regular professional examinations were
conducted. Special examinations were also held beyond the regular ones,
namely the Special Examination and Confirmation Hearing.

b) Pre-examination Workshops

Before the regular examinations, two (2) virtual pre-examination workshops
were held on July 6 and October 11, 2023, to guide members through the
application processes and procedures. Ing Dr Patrick A. Bekoe made the
presentations with support from Ing. Samuel Danquah and Secretariat staff,
focusing on general information about the Institution, application processes,
preparation of career reports, and assessment criteria. Over 300 potential
candidates participated in each of the workshops, after which questions from
the participants were addressed. A lot of the questions were centred on
qualifications and assessment. Some branches held pre-exam seminars in
person, and others had them virtually.

c) Exploring the Modern Examination Process

The exam application process is now managed through the newly developed
portal, www.epe.ghie.org.gh, which was piloted in late 2022 and has since
been operational. Applicants complete the examination portal application by
providing their personal, educational, and professional details, uploading a
career report, and submitting their academic credentials. Payment and the
exam are scheduled after the Examination Subcommittee reviews and grants
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approval. An examination invigilation feature has recently been added,
overseen by an Al-powered security module for the written exam, and the
oral exam is virtually conducted. This requires a webcam, microphone, and
reliable internet to run smoothly. The examinations conducted in writing are
watched over and documented.

Image of the portal

Personal info

Basic Information

Firut Mama

Your First Step In
Becoming an ING.

FII oun this form completety. Each Steo will detil
the type of information you should provide...

d) Panel Members Workshop

Before the examinations, a virtual workshop was organized for panel
members on Wednesday, July 26, 2023. The workshop aimed to give panel
members a better understanding of how to review submissions effectively,
conduct the Oral exam, mark, and provide feedback. It comprised a
presentation from the portal developers and the Chair of the Committee,
followed by discussions, questions, and answers. The workshop was a great
success, and panel members were left feeling better equipped to manage the
examination.

e) Regular Examinations

In 2023, there were two scheduled Engineering Professional Examinations
(EPE). The first was the August/September EPE, which had 374 applications
when closed on July 21, 2023. There were 181 submissions for the
November/December EPE application period.
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2023 EPE Civil Elect/ Mech/Agric/ Chemical/  Total Appearance
Electronic Marine Mining

Aug/September 158 10 54 52 374 338

Nov/Dec 71 50 36 24 181 181

TOTAL 229 160 90 76 555 519

EPE Breakdown by occupaional groups

Occupaional Groups Aug/Sept Nov/Dec TOTAL
Professional Engineer 335 181 516
Professional Engineering Technologists 3 0 3
Technicians 0 0 0

f) Confirmation Hearing

The Committee held four (4) Confirmation Hearing examinations. During the
examination, the candidates were evaluated through interactions and
interviews. The candidates made virtual or in-person appearances. The
hearing occurred in March, May, July, November, and December 2023. Twenty-
five (25) candidates underwent the process of becoming Professional
Engineers and were subsequently admitted into Professional Engineer
status.

The panel members who conducted the examination were Past Presidents of
the Institution and Fellows with extensive experience in the procedure. There
was always a guarantee of equitable representation by ensuring that every
technical division was represented.

Panel members

1. Ing. Andrew Evans Quayson FGhIE - Chemical Engineer

2. Ing Federick K. Asare-Yeboah FGhIE - Civil Engineer

3. Ing. Kwasi Amoako Kwakwa FGhIE - Civil Engineer

4. Ing. N.T Hammond FGhIE - Mechanical Engineer
5. Ing. Ato Wright FGhIE - Electrical Engineer

6. Ing Dr. Robert E. Adjaye FGhIE - Electrical Engineer
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(v) The Festivities of Induction

Part of the Committee's mandate is to organize induction ceremonies for
successful candidates to be transferred to the various membership classes,
i.e., Professional Engineer, Professional Engineering Technologist and
Engineering Technician, after passing the Engineering Professional
Examination. During the year under review, the Committee conducted four (4)
induction ceremonies.

The total number of candidates inducted for the Council year in review was
606. Those transferred to the Professional Engineer class were 601 and 5 to
the Professional Engineering Technologist class. Twenty-five (25) of the total
underwent the Confirmation hearing procedure, and the rest took the reqular
exam.

Apart from the 41st Induction and the confirmation hearing list, the rest of the
inductees sat the examin 2022.

Inducions No. of Date Locaion

Inductees
37Minducion 18 March 2 2, 2023 virtual
38t inducion 207 June 27, 2023 Engineering Centre, Accra
39tNinducion 78 October 5, 2023 Engineering Centre, Accra
40tNinducion 26 November 11, 2023 AngloGold Ashani, Obuasi
41 Stinducion 277 February 22, 2024 Engineering Centre, Accra
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a) Insights from the Speakers

The ceremonies were graced by Council members, Past Presidents, guests,
and the media.

The President, Ing. Kwabena Bempong, gave the welcome remarks and
administered the engineering practitioners' oath to transfer the inductees
into various professional classes. The President highlighted the constraints of
the engineering field, cautioning engineering practitioners to stay in their
lanes and abstain from unethical actions. He also cautioned against
overextending one's knowledge in fields lacking the requisite education or
experience.

A message from the Chair of the Membership Committee reminded the
inductees that they were now part of the Institution's legacy and should strive
to uphold its values and standards. The Chair urged them to continue their
professional development commitment and strive for excellence. He
congratulated them on their achievements and wished them much success.

The Immediate Past President, Ing Rev. Prof. Charles A. Adams, also graced
some occasions and advised the inductees. He counselled the inductees to
uphold professional standards in addition to adhering to internationally
recognized technical, environmental, and safety standards.

The Chairs of the Technical Divisions, Ing Michael Konadu of the Civil, Ing.
Ebenezer Ato Roberts of the Electrical / Electronic, Ing Darlington Ahuble of
the Mechanical / Agric / Marine and Ing Prof Nana Y. Asiedu of the Chemical
/Mining, who were either present or represented, presented certificates to
theinductees in their respective divisions.

The Executive Director, Ing David K. Nyante, gave closing remarks by
highlighting the importance of aligning practice to the objectives and core
values of the Institution to progress the engineering field. At the various
induction ceremonies, the candidates who did well in the examinations were
presented withan award.

Regular EPE award winners

Technical Divisions 37t Inducion 38 MM indudion 39t & 40 ™ indudon 415 Inducion
Civil

Ing AmaduHakeem | Ing Abdallah D.Saadu | Ing Mac -Steve A.
Mawutor Jnr

[=2]
=
Chemical/Mining g Ing Emmanuel Appiah | Ing Dr. Kenneth J. Ing Fiii N. Otoo
pt Bansah
Electrical/Electronic '% Ing Augustus F. Moses | Ing Ebenezer Sam Ing Joseph K. Ashie
E<
Mech/Agric/Marine 'g z Ing Dr. Glenn K. Gyimah | Ing Daniel A. Adiyia Ing Kwadwo
v

Oppong-Kyeremeh
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(vi)  Publication of committee activities

A key task of the Publication and Documentation Subcommittee, headed by
Ing Benjamin Ahunu, was broadcasting the Committee's activities. As part of
the process, the Committee developed a draft newsletter titled "Membership
Monitor" that will be distributed electronically bimonthly in coordination with
other committees and branches. The "Membership Monitor" will be the main
communication channel for members to stay updated with the latest
developments on membership issues. In addition, the Committee is
developing a membership manual, which will include frequently asked
questions about membership issues.

(vii) SPEMembership Status

The class has significantly improved with the mass transfer from the
Professional Engineer (PE) to the Senior Professional Engineer (SPE) class.
There were either few or no transfers for the remaining class, which included
technicians, technologists, and craftsmen. The automatic transfer resulting
from the GhIE Constitution's review and eventual adoption was cited for the
significant transfers from PE to SPE. A handful of the other groups upgraded
their status despite the automatic transferimpacting every Group.

Members who failed to meet the automatic requirements nevertheless
submitted forms and were reviewed for the upgrade by a subcommittee of
the Membership committee. It was difficult to pinpoint the reason for the
remaining groups' low patronage. The situation as of February 2023 is as
shown below.
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: ; No.
Occupational Groups Senior Class Transferred
Professional Engineer Senior Professional Engineer 1,450
Professional Engineering Senior Prof. Engineering Technologist | 125
Technologist
Technician Senior Engineering Technician 57
Craftsman Master Engineering Craftsman 0

The Council year 2023/2024 was certainly an eventful year for the Committee,
considering the number of activities and initiatives taken. The Committee
welcomed many new members and hosted several events to promote the
activities of the Council. The Committee successfully increased membership
numbers and implemented a new membership portal, making it easier for
members to apply for examinations to upgrade their status. Finally, the
Committee will improve existing membership processes to make them more
efficient.

The Committee is profoundly grateful to its members, subcommittee chairs
and their members, the branch chairs and their executives and the Secretariat
for their invaluable contributions and guidance throughout the Council year.
The members gave their full support every step of the way, helping to ensure
that the Committee reached its goals. The Membership Committee looks
forward to continuing its successful collaborations and achieving its goals and
objectives. The Committee appreciates the hard work and dedication of
everyone involved. The Committee is confident that the GhIE will continue to
grow and be successful. Overall, it was a great year for the Committee.

C. Education and Training Committee

During the period under review, the Committee advanced its objectives as
outlined in the GhIE Constitution and Bye-Laws as follows:

The Committee proceeded to form sub-committees headed by members of
the Committee to focus on achieving the objectives set out for the
Committee. Six (6) sub-committees were constituted with an objective for
each to assist in bringing the objectives to fruition. These comprised the
following:

o Development of a position paper on the Arts to Engineering
programme
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The Committee conducted a survey with the aim of developing a position
paper. The process started with the previous Committee, which sought
information from tertiary institutions, the Ministry of Education (MoE) and the
Ghana Tertiary Education Commission (GTEC). The current Committee wrote to
MoE and GTEC, seeking information on the number of institutions piloting the
initiative and a status report and policy document. The Arts to Engineering
programme was intended for exceptional students who have studied the arts
but are interested in pursuing engineering. GTEC determined that only two
tertiary institutions were selected for the pilot programme.

Regarding the policy, no feedback was received. The Committee decided to
conduct an internal survey, and as of February 15, 2024, 365 members had
responded to the survey. A full survey report will be shared in due course.

o) Curriculum Review

The Committee assessed the curricula that tertiary institutions referred to it.
The following curricula were reviewed during the period: Diploma in
Electrical/Electronic Engineering, MSc. Programme in Power Systems and
Energetic Engineering and MSc. Programme in Cost Engineering (currently
under review). The reports were made available to the institutions to enrich
the engineering programmes. However, the Committee noted the extended
time needed to review and submit reports. The Committee will look into
reducing the time for reports to be presented.

o Developmentand implementation of training programmes in
Leadership and Corporate Governance.

Another objective of the Committee was to develop and implement
Leadership and Corporate Governance training programmes. This objective
was to equip members with the necessary skills to take up leadership roles
and how to start and maintain businesses in engineering. The Committee put
up alist of programmes for consideration. This included:

Negotiations and conflict managementin organizations
Leading through resilience and agility

Leadership communication and interpersonal skills
Governance Practices

Critical thinking and innovations

Self-awareness skills and strategies

aUAWN
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There are ongoing discussions to decide on the training dates and location,
the needed resource persons, and the necessary funding to carry out the
plan.

o Baseline study on the status of Engineering Education in Ghana

Creating a baseline study on Ghana's engineering education status was
another goalthe Committee set out to accomplish. This goal's history began at
a National Education Forum, where the STEM committee's Chair (now Chair of
Education and Training) was tasked with looking into STEM and engineering
education. A report was put together with the suggestion to contract an
external person to conduct the study, which was later shelved due to the
consultant's fee. The Committee became interested and agreed to pursue the
project. The Committee is nearing completion of the development of an
internal survey, focusing on GhIE members and some selected universities on
the teaching and practice of engineering, what is taught and what is
practised. The purpose of the internal survey is to limit the scope of our work
and provide feedback to help establish the terms of reference for the
consultant who would conduct a more detailed assessment. The feedback
would inform the decision to either pursue the project or not.

o Assessment of training/capacity-building needs of members

The Committee was required to assess the training needs of the occupational
groups in consultation with the groups to keep them abreast of current and
emerging trends. The Committee intends to conduct the assessment survey
in the next few months to develop courses and seminars to improve the
training programmes.

o Organization of National Education Forum

The Committee was expected to organize a National Education forum to
share its findings and receive feedback. The Committee is considering topics
for such fora. So far, the baseline study and assessment of training and
capacity-building needs have been suggested as possible topics. This would
be achieved in collaboration with the Conferences and Programmes
committee.
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D. Professional Practice and Ethics Committee

Review of Code of Ethics

On August 8, 2023, a dialogue was held on the draft revised Code of Ethics of
the Institution. The Council formally approved the Code of Ethics on December
7,2011; this was last updated in 2012. (See appendix for amendments).

GhI€E 2023 Annual Ethics Lecture (October 26, 2023):

The 2023 edition of the GhIE Annual Ethics Lecture was delivered by Ing Yaw
Nsarkoh under the theme "Improving National Values, Professional Practice,
and Engineering Ethics". This event, chaired by The Chief Justice of the
Republic of Ghana, Her Ladyship Justice Gertrude Araba Essaba Torkornoo,
underscored the importance of maintaining high ethical standards in
engineering and also served as a reminder of the ethical obligations that
guide the practice and interactions in the field.
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. GhIE Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) Centre.

Plans to establish an ADR Centre are underway. The ADR Hub has been
appointed to help establish the GhIE Centre. Training of members as ADR
practitioners will begin in April 2024. The ADR Centre will operate from the
Engineering Centre.

E. Publications Committee

The Publications Committee presents its report on activities and significant
achievements for the period under review.

. Ghl€ Journal Publications:

The Committee successfully published four issues of the GhIE Journal in
alignment with the journal's quarterly publication target. This effort
culminated in contributing thirty-five (35) articles, all now accessible to
members and the public via the journal's online platform
(https://ghiejournal.com/).
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. Integration with the AJOL Platform:

This period's significant achievement was the full activation of the GhIE
Journal on the African Journals Online (AJOL) platform. This strategic move
broadens our journal's reach and underscores our adherence to high
publishing standards, as evidenced by our 2-star rating under the Journal
Publishing Practices and Standards (JPPS).

. Launch of the GhIE Newsletter:

April 2024 will mark the launch of the GhIE Newsletter, a quarterly electronic
newsletter. This initiative aims to keep our members and the broader
community informed about the Institute's activities, developments, and
opportunities. The newsletter will be linked to the GhIE website, and promises
to be a valuable source of information and engagement for our audience.

. Preparations for GhIE Magazine:

The Committee has laid the groundwork for the publication of the GhIE
Magazine, slated for its inaugural issue at the end of May 2024. This biannual
publication will be available in electronic and hardcopy formats, offering in-
depth analyses, features, and reports catering to our diverse readership's
interests.

. Support forthe 2024 AGM and Conference:

In addition to our publishing endeavours, the Committee played a critical role
in organizing the 2024 Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Conference.

. Formation of Sub-Committees:

To further our objectives, the Committee has established sub-committees
focused on enhancing the Newsletter and Magazine publications, improving
website content, and ensuring the timely release of Journal issues. These
sub-committees are tasked with developing and implementing strategies
that align with our commitment to excellence in communication and
knowledge dissemination.
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F. Welfare Committee

On September 21, 2023, our Welfare Committee organized a health trip to
Bunsu Ecopark. Participants enjoyed a day of hiking and a delightful picnic
amidst nature. The event was a remarkable success, promoting physical and
mental well-being among our members. The Committee also coordinated
end-of-year parties across the various Branches.

G. Conferences and Programmes Committee

« Established collaboration among various GhlE branches to mark World
Engineering Day in 2023 and 2024, focusing on showcasing engineering
innovations and encouraging global networking among professionals.

« Made preparations for the 2024 GhIE Annual Conference and its associated
events.

« Assisted in making preparations for the Building Technology Fair and the
Presidential Address.

4.3.2 Ad-Hoc Committees
A. Research and Awards Committee

Considering the period under review, the Engineering Excellence Awards
(EEA) focused on refining the event's organization and execution. Central to
this was the comprehensive planning of the nomination process, which
began on November 15, 2023, and concluded on December 31, 2023. This
period allowed for a robust and well-structured approach to gathering
nominations, including establishing a diverse Panel of Assessors and a
thorough review of award categories. This approach aimed to ensure a
transparent and inclusive framework for recognizing engineering
achievements.

Following the conclusion of the nomination period, the Panel of Assessors
commenced their detailed evaluation process. This phase involves
meticulously assessing each nomination against the set criteria to identify the
most outstanding contributions in engineering.
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Additionally, a strategic decision was made to integrate the EEA with the
annual conference banquet, enhancing the event's visibility and impact.

B. Land Acquisition and Development Committee

The Land Acquisition and Development Committee has embarked on
significant and progressive initiatives towards our strategic goals of
sustainable development.

We established a strategic partnership with the Owirenkyi Traditional Council
through a Memorandum of Understanding. This partnership represents a
significant milestone in collaborative efforts towards developing an
Engineering Village (EV).

Completing a comprehensive land survey has led to the preparation of a
detailed site plan for documentation. This step is crucial for providing a clear
framework for future projects.

Our development conceptualization for Kushea highlights innovative and
sustainable land use plans, complete with detailed timelines. These concepts
are tailored to benefit both the Institution and the wider community.

Community engagement has been a focal point, with an open forum
organized to gather feedback from GhIE members. This collaborative
approach allowed us to refine our development strategies, ensuring they
align with community needs and aspirations. The input gathered has been
instrumental in shaping our plans, highlighting the importance of community
involvementin our development process.

We have partnered with architects to bring our development concepts to life.
This collaboration aims to produce aesthetically pleasing and functionally
superior designs, reflecting our high standards of innovation and
sustainability.

Lastly, our commitment to cultural heritage preservation is evident through
our partnership with an archaeologist to develop content for a proposed
museum. This initiative highlights our dedication to preserving and
celebrating our rich historical legacy, ensuring that the EV also serves as a
beacon of cultural enrichment and education.
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C. ICT Committee

The ICT Committee played a crucial role in enhancing the Institution's digital
capabilities by introducing three main software solutions: Election Software,
Examination Software, and Membership Application Software. These
initiatives aimed to improve efficiency, transparency, and engagement in
different Institutional aspects.

The Election Software was deployed to make the Institution's voting
processes more secure and transparent. Its deployment marks a significant
stepin modernizing the electoral system and boosting member confidence.
The Examination Software introduced features like online registration and Al-
monitored exams to make exams more accessible and maintain their
integrity, especially in remote learning environments. This software
streamlines the certification process, making it more efficient for users.

The Membership Application Software, which is in the testing phase,
simplifies the process for new members to join, incorporating an easy
payment system and automatic assignment of membership numbers, thus
reducing manual work and improving the new member experience.

Overall, the ICT Committee's efforts in 2023 have significantly boosted the
Institution's digital transformation, laying a solid foundation for future
technological advancements to improve member services and organizational
effectiveness further.

4.3.2 Groups Of Strategic Interest

A. Women in Engineering (WinE)

Considering the period under review, WIn€ reports on the following as its
various committees execute.

a. Strategy and Planning

« Hosted the first General Meeting of the year with GhlE and Wine Council on
January 25, focusing on strategic planning under the theme "Creating a
Magnetic Intention for Self and Contributing to Society." The 2023 Action
Plan was developed.
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+ Reviewed and adopted the WinE Constitution at the second General
Meeting on March 23. The Constitution is now being circulated among
members.

b. Mentoring and Education

« Acareerguidance session was included in the 2023 WinE Forum.

« Participatedinthe UENR Career Fair, July 12th-13th.

« Engaged with Unilever to mentor and create job opportunity partnerships
for female engineering graduates.

C. Partnerships and Fundraising

« Raised funds for the Wink Forum and the Kokote Kpedzi project following
the Akosombo Dam spillage.

« Secured a partnership meeting with Unilever on November 29, resulting in
a MoU for mentoring, coaching, and recruitment.

d. Regional Branches and Chapters

« Celebrated the Engineering Students' Association week at the University of
Ghana onJuly 5, focusing on "BREAKING GENDER BARRIERS."

« Sponsored and participated in the Wine Affair 2023, with notable success in
student-led innovations from six universities.

e. Sponsorship and Awards

« Sponsored a needy female student's tuition and accommodation.
« Awarded the best graduating female student of GhlE and UDS.
« Sponsoredtwo executives for TEWECE 2023 in Tanzania.

f. International Partnerships

- Participated in the WIE-WFEO committee annual meeting, the 8th Tanzania
Women Engineers Conference, and the 7th World Engineers Convention in
Prague.

« Represented at the 14th Annual Women in Engineering Africa Network
Conferencein South Africa.
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B. Youthin Engineering

In the past year, the YIE made significant strides in enhancing engagement
and fostering innovation among our young practitioners and student
members. Below is a summary of the key initiatives and activities we have
undertaken:

- At the Youth in Engineering-Ghana Institution of Engineering (YE-GhIE)
conference, we introduced an Innovation Challenge. This initiative was
designed to inspire creativity and critical thinking skills among students.
Participants were encouraged to propose innovative solutions to real-
world problems, providing a platform for showcasing their ingenuity and
technical prowess.

« We established open communication channels between student members
and leaders. This initiative has significantly improved information flow,
ensuring students are well-informed about opportunities, events, and
important updates.

« Our end-of-month meetings have been a cornerstone for peer learning
and networking. These meetings featured paper presentations and panel
discussions on various topics, enriching our student members' academic
and professional growth.

« The Campus Outreach program was another highlight of the year. Through
this initiative, we aimed to extend our reach to more students across
different campuses, fostering a sense of community and belonging among
engineering students nationwide.
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m TECHNICAL DIVISIONS REPORT
4.41 Civil

The Civil Technical Division's key initiatives for the period under review are
highlighted as follows:

a. Professional Development and Knowledge Sharing:

« Hosted Evening Technical Presentations on essential engineering topics:
- Holistic Structural Design (June 22,2023)
- Geotechnical Investigations in Ghana (July 22,2023)
- GISandHydrology for Culvert Sizing (August 24, 2023)
- Innovationsin Building Solutions (August17,2023)
- Seminaron Calcined Clay Cement

« Conducted a specialized Training Session in Concrete Repair Solutions with
Sika Academy, focusing on the latest techniques and products.

« Drafted reports on significant industry issues, such as building collapses
and the steel reinforcement sector, to advocate for best practices and
enhance project safety.

b. Collaborations and Member Development:

« Partnered with the Built Environment Forum to study building collapses,
aiming to mitigate constructionrisks.

« Organized a Road Sector Dialogue on the Tema-Accra Motorway,
facilitating discussions between government agencies and industry
stakeholders toimprove transportationinfrastructure.

« Signed a Memorandum of Understanding with Viva & Co to train engineers
in using glass fibre-reinforced polymer bars, promoting the adoption of
innovative and sustainable engineering solutions.

4.4.2 Electrical/€Electronic

Considering the year under review, the Electrical/Electronic Technical Division

embarked on the following activities.
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a. Professional Development and Knowledge Sharing

« Organized seminars for members across various disciplines, including
Electrical Engineering, Electronics Engineering, Telecoms/IT/Computer
Engineering, Renewable/Clean Energy Engineering, and Biomedical
Engineering.

« The seminars were held on topics such as TVET: Challenges and
Opportunities, Cybersecurity and Drone Technology. These events were
held in partnership with the Institute of Electrical and Electronic
Engineering Chapterin Ghana.

b. Collaborations and Member Development

« Engaged with public organizations like the Energy Commission and the
Ghana Standards Authority for new guidelines and specifications in
electrical/electronic engineering.

+ Represented the Institution on the Entity Tender Committees of Public
Sector organizations, aligning with public procurement law.

4.4.3 Mechanical

The following highlights are the main initiatives undertaken by the division
during the yearunderreview:

a. Professional Development and Knowledge Sharing

« An evening lecture titled "TVET: Challenges and Opportunities" was
organized jointly by the Mechanical Technical Division and the
Electrical/Electronic Technical Division at the Engineering Centre. Ing Dr
George Afetidelivered the lecture on July 25, 2023.

« The division, represented by Mr. Philip K. Aheto, participated in the
International Driver and Vehicle Innovation Conference on October 10,
2023, at the Kempinski Hotel, Accra. The Conference theme was "The
Future of Road Transport". The event included stakeholders from various
sectors discussing the future of road transportation.

« Ing John N. Cowfie attended a training course on Mechatronics and its
applicationin the industry on behalf of the Mechanical Technical Divisionin
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the Arab Republic of Egypt from November 5-16, 2023.

« The division collaborated with the Ghana ASHRAE Chapter to deliver a
webinar, "Testing and Commissioning: A look at the shortfalls in our
practice". The event occurred on November 23, 2023, at the Engineering
Centre.

b. Collaborations and Member Development

« Efforts to encourage engineering technicians to enrol with the Institution
included a visitto the DVLA in Accra by members of the TDOC.

4.4.4 Chemical/Mining

During the period under review, the technical division carried out some key
initiatives. Below are the main points noted.

a. Professional Development and Knowledge Sharing

« Held monthly webinars on topics relevant to the field, including lllegal Gold
Mining and Ghana's Energy Transition.

« Conducted a presentation on green hydrogen technology's potential,
benefits, and future.

« Organized a visit to Sika Chemicals to expose members to industry
practices and advancements.

b. Collaborations and Member Development

- Initiated reqular meetings to discuss progress and strategic direction,
starting with the first operations committee meeting on May 19, 2023.

« Assigned coordinators for Chemical, Petrochemical, Petroleum, Mining,
and Materials subdivisions to lead and facilitate activities.

» Established a research team led by Ing Ebenezer Haizel to explore and
developinsightsinto green hydrogen energy solutions.
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EX] BRANCHREPORTS
4.5.1 Branch1(AshantiRegion)
a. Outreach, Education and Professional Development

e Schools Outreach

The Branch has been actively involved in outreach programs targeting
educational institutions to inspire the next generation of engineers. This
initiative saw engagements with several senior high schools, including Yaa
Asantewaa Girls' SHS, Jachie Pramso SHS, and Kumasi Academy. These
outreach efforts aim to foster interest in engineering among students and
provide them insightsinto the profession.

- Technical Visitation

The Branch organized technical visits to various Institutions, including
GRIDCo, the Okomfo Anokye Teaching Hospital, and ECG. These visits are
designed to provide members and participants with hands-on experience
and knowledge about the operational aspects of engineering in various
sectors.

« Inauguration of the GhlE Obuasi Chapter

A landmark event for Branch 1 was the inauguration of the GhIE Obuasi
Chapter on June 17, 2023. This new chapter marks a significant step towards
engaging engineering professionals in the Obuasi municipality. The event
was a gathering of the GhIE Executive Committee and leadership from
AngloGold Ashanti Ghana (AGAG) Obuasi, together with engineering students
and practitioners.

« Engineering Professional Exams

The Branch facilitated professional development by liaising with the head
office to conduct engineering professional exams. These exams, held in
August and November, are essential for certifying and advancing regional
engineering professionals.

« World IP Day 2023

The celebration of World IP Day on April 26, 2023, underscored the Branch's
commitment to professional development, focusing on women innovators
and creativity. In collaboration with Global IPEd Consult, the online seminar
highlighted the significance of intellectual property rights. Esteemed
speakers such as Dr Priscilla Kolibea Mante, Dr Mavis Owureku-Asare, and Dr
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Hillary Mireku Botey shared invaluable insights on patenting and copyrighting
to protect creative works and innovations.

b. Other Branch Activities and Member Welfare

« End-of-Year Party

The Branch also focuses on the welfare and social engagement of its
members. A notable event in this regard is the end-of-year party held in
December. This event was a time for members to relax, socialize, and
celebrate the year's accomplishments.

« Meetings and Vacant Executive Positions

The Branch conducted its ordinary meetings monthly. Additionally, the Branch
anticipates filling vacant executive positions within the Occupational Groups
and Technical Divisions in upcoming meetings, ensuring a robust leadership
structure.

4.5.2 Branch?2(Bono, Ahafo, Bono East Region)

a. Outreach, Education and Professional Development

Career talks in Junior and Senior High Schools to inspire future generations
and introduce the benefits of joining our Institution.

Industrial Visits provided members with practical exposure to the latest
technologies and best practices in engineering, enhancing their professional
skill set.

b. Other Branch Activities and Member Welfare

« Conducted our Annual General Meeting (AGM) to network, share
knowledge, and plan for the future.

« Hosted our End-of- Year Dinner at Tyco City Hotel, Sunyani, to reinforce
professional relationships among members. Visited the Sunyani Traditional
Council, fostering cultural respect and strengthening community ties.

« Participated in Radio Talk Programs at Greena FM and Storm FM,
advocating for the engineering profession's impact on societal

development.
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« Supported the Compassion is Love in Action Orphanage and
commemorated the late Omanhene of the Sunyani Traditional Council,
demonstrating our commitment to societal welfare.

4.5.3 Branch 3 (Eastern Region)
a. Outreach, Education and Professional Development

« Conducted a technical tour of the Ghana Water Company in Kpong,
enriching members' knowledge of water management systems and
operational challenges in the water sector.

« Hosted a Value Engineering case study on the Pokuase Interchange,
presented by the GhIE President, Ing. Kwabena Bempong, to explore the
application of value engineering in optimizing infrastructure project
outcomes.

« Successfully organized Engineering Professional Engineering (EPE)
Examinations for the August and November batches, fostering
professional growth and ensuring adherence to high engineering
standards.

b. Other Branch Activities and Member Welfare

« Participated in the investigation of the COCOBOD incident in Koforidua,
which tragically resulted in the loss of three technicians, demonstrating our
commitmentto safety and accountability.

« Organized a discussion on aiding flood victims affected by the Akosombo

dam spillage, reinforcing our commitment to community welfare and
support.

4.5.4 Branch 4 (Greater Accra Region)
a. Outreach, Education and Professional Development
Launch of Green Living Series (GLS): On November 24, 2023, GLS introduced

workshops, exhibitions, tours, and lectures on recycling, gardening, efficient
energy use, and promoting alternative building materials. The series was
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inaugurated with a lecture by Energy Advisor Ms. Sharon Frimpong of GIZ,
with Ing. Harold Esseku as the keynote speaker and Ing. Ato Wright chairing
the program.

b. Other Branch Activities and Member Welfare

« Elections: An election process, held from December 13 to 15, 2023, aimed to
elect branch executives encountered challenges, leading to a decision to
rerun the elections in March 2024 due to nominees not being in good
standing and low member awareness and participation.

« End of Year Get-together: The year concluded with a get-together at the
Engineering Centre, serving as a social event for Branch 4 members.

4.5.5 Branch5(Northern, Savannah, North-East, Upper East, Upper West

Region)

a. Outreach, Education, and Professional Development:

« Commemorated and observed the World Engineering Day Celebration on
March 4, 2023, to acknowledge engineers' contributions to society and

explore the future of engineering for sustainable development.

« Conducted two EPE Exams for the August/September and
November/December periods.

« Held an Artisans Forum to discuss current trends, challenges, and
opportunities in the craftsmanship sector, encouraging knowledge
exchange and community building.

b. Other Branch Activities and Member Welfare

« Held our annual Get-together to celebrate the festive season, enhancing
camaraderie and well-beingamong members.

« Embarked on a technical visit to the building collapse site at UDS City
Campus.
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4.5.6 Branch6 (Volta, Oti Region)
a. Outreach, Education, and Professional Development:

« Celebrated World Engineering Day on March 4, 2023, to honour the
achievements of engineersin society.

« Conducted two EPE Exams for the August/September and
November/December periods.

b. Other Branch Activities and Member Welfare

« Hosted our yearly get-together, which strengthened member bonds and
promoted well-being.

- Embarked on a working visit to the Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG) and
Ghana Water Company Ltd (GWCL) in Ho.

4.5.7 Branch7(Western, Central, Western-North Region)

a. Outreach, Education and Professional Development

« Conducted the Engineering Professional Exams in two sets
(August/Septemberand November/December).

b. Other Branch Activities and Welfare

« Successfully conducted the Annual General Meeting (AGM), which included
the Election of Branch Executive Committee Members and the Handing
Over ceremony.

« Hosted Fraternity Games with sister Professional Bodies, including the
Ghana Medical Association (GMA), Ghana Journalists Association (GJA), and
Ghana Registered Nurses and Midwives Association (GRNMWA).

« Implemented a Community Service initiative in the Sekondi-Takoradi

Metropolis, demonstrating our commitment to social responsibility and the
well-being of our local community.
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m SECRETARIAT AND ADMINISTRATION

The Executive Director, Ing David K. Nyante, heads the GhIE Secretariat, which
is located at the Engineering Centre in Roman Ridge, Accra.

The Secretariat has a staff capacity of 18 with details as follows:

Ing. David K. Nyante

Executive Director

Nome o staf | posion

Ayishetu Osmanu

Manager, Member Services

Benjamin T. Akunarh

Manager, Accounts

Jacqueline Beecham

Officer, Conferences and Programmes

Rita Adobea Antwi

Officer, Membership

Benjamin Bartels

Officer, Accounts

Richard 0. Acheampong

Officer, Examinations

Faustina Ayitey

Executive Assistant

Helena Amponsah

Officer, Administration

Brefo K. Gyamera

Officer, Digital Communications

Patience Agbemabiese

Assistant Administrative Officer

—

Frederick Okae

Assistant Membership Officer

Marion S. Nyarko

Assistant Membership Officer

Redeemer Elorm Dormie

Research Assistant

Edward Y. Berkoh Driver
Tahiru Dimah Dispatch
Peter Wegble Facility Maintenance Assistant

—_
0]

—_ —_ —_ —_ u—y —_ —_ —_

Martin Acheampong

Facility Maintenance Assistant (on contract)

4.6.1 Governance and Institutional Strengthening

The Secretariat has continued conducting membership management
activities such as handling applications and renewals and maintaining
member records, thus ensuring a vibrantand growing membership base.

Management has continued to ensure fiscal responsibility and provided
administrative support for executing Council meetings, committee
engagements, and Annual General Meetings (AGMs).
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The Institution has maintained strict Regulatory Compliance by ensuring
adherence torelevant laws.

Over the past year, our commitment to collaboration has been reinforced by
initiating and strengthening new partnerships. These collaborations,
spanning multiple disciplines focusing on sustainable engineering, have
played a key role in enhancing our Institution's visibility and reputation. We
have facilitated the exchange of knowledge and networking opportunities by
hosting and participatingininternational conferences and workshops.

4.6.2 MemberServices and Professional Development

The Institution has consistently prioritized our members' enrichment and
professional development through various events and educational
initiatives. We have continued to organize conferences, seminars,
workshops, and Continuing Professional Development (CPD) courses that
provide members with opportunities to gain knowledge, network, and stay
updated on the latest trends in engineering.

Our Educational Programs are designed to continually impart knowledge and
equip our members with practical tools and insights for the challenges and
opportunities of the modern engineering landscape.

Our focus on efficiently managing our assets, including library and IT
infrastructure, has supported our wide range of activities.

4.6.3 Communications and Engagement

Our communication efforts have focused on internal and external channels,
ensuring widespread and effective dissemination of information through
updates, social media, emails, and SMS. Prioritizing stakeholder engagement,
we have fostered strategic partnerships with government bodies, industry
associations, educational institutions, and media organizations to enhance
collaboration and visibility.

We encourage active memberinteraction with their portals

(https://ghanainstitutionofengineeringghie.growthzoneapp.com/MIC/Login)
We continue to ensure that the Institution's commitment to maintaining
transparent, informative, and engaging communication with our members is
exemplified through our monthly updates. These updates serve as a vital link
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between the Institution's ongoing projects, achievements, and plans with our
valued members. The primary goal is to keep our members informed,
engaged, and motivated to participate in our activities and initiatives.

The content ranges from Institutional news, upcoming events, opportunities
for involvement, and highlights of member achievements. Additionally, we
incorporate feedback and suggestions from members to ensure the content
remains relevant and valuable.

The updates are delivered through email, newsletters, and posts on our
official website, ensuring broad accessibility and reach.

Since the inception of the monthly updates, we have observed a significant
increase in member engagement, as evidenced by:

« Asignificantincrease in email open rates and member portal engagements
indicating a growinginterestin our communications.

« Enhanced interaction on social media, with a rise in likes, shares, and
comments on update-related posts.

« Positive feedback through member surveys, highlighting the updates as a
valued source of information and connection to the organization.

Building on the positive feedback and engagement metrics, we plan to
introduce interactive elements into our updates, such as member polls and
Q&A sessions.

(See Appendix C for member updates)

The Secretariat has been supported by the following Professional Bodies.
1. Lawyers - Robert Smith Law Group
2. Internal Auditors - PFP Global Partners
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INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS
4.71 World Engineering Day

The 2024 World Engineering Day (WED) for Sustainable Development, an
event celebrated under the auspices of UNESCO, was successfully led by the
GhlE and hosted by the Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and
Technology (KNUST). This annual observance, which took place on March 4,
highlighted the essential role of engineers and engineering practices in
advancing global sustainability efforts. Themed "Engineering Innovation fora
More Resilient World," the event was organized in collaboration with the
Ghana Institution of Engineering (GhIE) and the KNUST College of Engineering.
It focused on showcasing engineering's significant contributions towards
building resilience and sustainable development across various sectors,
including climate change, infrastructure, and healthcare.

The 2024 event emphasized engineering innovations that address critical
global challenges such as climate change mitigation and adaptation,
enhancing infrastructure resilience, and improving healthcare systems.
Through a series of showcased projects, participants demonstrated the
application of engineering solutions in promoting renewable energy, efficient
waste management, sustainable urban planning, and advancing medical
device technology and telehealth services. These projects illustrated the
pivotal role that engineering plays in reducing environmental impacts,
ensuring the durability of infrastructure, and increasing healthcare access
and efficiency. The collaborative efforts between KNUST, GhI€E, and the KNUST
College of Engineering highlighted the importance of partnerships in
fostering engineering innovation. The 2024 WED event highlighted the
dynamic capacity of engineering to address contemporary challenges and set
a precedent for future collaborations to drive sustainable development and
resilience.

There were activities to mark this day in all our Branches. The University of
Ghana School of Engineering had a panel discussion, and GhIE was
represented by the President, Executive Director (ED) and the Chair for
Conferences and Programmes.

4.7.2 Africa Catalyst Project
The Africa Catalyst Phase 4 project has established the West African

Engineering Professional Harmonisation and Accreditation Council
(WAEPHACQ), aiming to unify engineering standards and enhance the mobility
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of engineering professionals across West Africa. Significant strides include
the successful execution of key events, such as a workshop and validation
conference in Ghana held in March 2023, aimed at promoting engineering
education standards and disseminating findings from various workshops. A
notable milestone in April 2023 was securing office space for WAEPHAC,
provided by the Ghana Institution of Engineering (GhIE), underlining the
collaborative efforts within the West African Federation of Engineering
Organisations (WAFEO). Subsequent activities focused on the legal formation
of WAEPHAC, involving the drafting, validation, and formal registration of
legal documents from August to September 2023 to establish WAEPHAC as a
legally recognized body.

The project's strategic approach to operationalizing WAEPHAC includes
setting up a temporary secretariat, assembling a documentation task team,
and legal registration to harmonize academic and professional accreditation
across the region. This initiative has been bolstered by a broad coalition of
partners, including the Federation of African Engineering Organisations
(FAEQ), the Sierra Leone Institution of Engineers (SLIE), Engineers for Change
Sierra Leone (EfCSL), and the Ghana Institution of Engineering (GhIE), among
others. These collaborations extend to external partners like the Ordre des
Ingénieurs en Génie Civil du Burkina Faso and SOAC/WAAS Abidjan, along with
interactions with engineering societies and educational institutions across
West Africa. This extensive network of collaboration underscores the
project's commitment to elevating engineering standards and fostering a
cohesive accreditation system that promotes the recognition and mobility of
engineers throughout the region.

4.7.3 ASCE Convention

The GhIE participated in the ASCE Convention from October 18 to October 21,
2023. Participants engaged in an extensive program that spanned various
critical sectors of civil engineering, including the Construction Institute,
Environmental & Water Resources Institute (EWRI), Geo-Institute, Structural
Engineering Institute (SEl), Sustainability, Transportation & Development
Institute (T&DI), Utility Engineering & Surveying Institute, and initiatives
aimed at Younger Member Groups and student outreach. The President and
the Executive Director represented the Institution. A 5-year MoU was signed
for cooperation and sharing of information.
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4.7.4 World Engineering Convention

The 7th World Engineers Convention (WEC 2023) occurred in Prague, Czech
Republic, from October 11 to 13, 2023. It brought together engineering
professionals to discuss critical topics in engineering and society. These
included energy solutions, smart cities, environmental protection,
engineering education, green transportation, Cybersecurity, technology in
industry, healthcare, food and water security, disaster prevention, climate
change, space exploration, and promoting diversity in engineering. The
Conference emphasized sustainable development, innovation, and inclusive
growth. The President and the Executive Director represented the GhlE. Other
GhlE members were sponsored by their organizations to attend. This included
engineers from the Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG), Ghana Ports and
Harbors Authority (GPHA), and Bui Power Authority.

4.7.5 Africa Engineering Week

GhIE participated in the 9th UNESCO Africa Engineering Week and 7th Africa
Engineering Conference held at the CSIR International Convention Centre in
Pretoria, South Africa, from the 25th to the 28th of September, 2023. This
event, hosted by the Engineering Council of South Africa (ECSA) in
collaboration with the Federation of African Engineering Organisations
(FAEQ), the World Federation of Engineering Organisations (WFEQ), and
UNESCO, aimed to celebrate and promote engineering excellence within the
Africanregion.

The Conference's agenda spanned keynote addresses on critical issues like
electricity and STEM, infrastructure initiatives, and specialized sessions
across multiple engineering disciplines, alongside social events, including the
Heritage Day celebration and the Gala Dinner & FAEO Awards, providing a
comprehensive platform for knowledge sharing, networking, and recognizing
engineering achievements. The GhIE was represented by the Immediate Past
President (IPP) and the Executive Director (ED). Other members sponsored by
their organizations also attended.

4.7.6 2023 NigerianSociety of Engineers (NSE) Conference
The 2023 National Engineering Conference, Exhibition, and Annual General

Meeting, organized by the Nigeria Society of Engineers, was held in Abuja
from November 27 to December 1, 2023. The event, themed "Re-Engineering
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the Manufacturing Sector for Competitiveness and Enhanced Economic
Growth," convened a diverse assembly of professionals, academics,
policymakers, and industry stakeholders.

Some members of the Executive Committee represented the GhlIE. GhIE was
also represented at the Investiture of the first female President of the NSE,
Engr. Margaret Oguntala.

4.7.7 Annual Conference of the Engineering Society of Liberia (ESoL)

The 6th Annual Conference of the Engineers Society of Liberia took place from
February 7 to 10th, 2024, at Jackie's Hotel Event Hall in Ganta City, Nimba
County, Liberia, under the theme "Advancing Infrastructure: Resilience and
Innovation."

The event featured a keynote address by Mr. Monie R. Captan, Chairman of the
Board of Directors at LEC, who emphasized the significance of incorporating
resilience and innovation ininfrastructure projects within Liberia and the sub-
region.

During the Conference, a plaque was presented to the President of ESoL by
GhIE IPP, Ing. Professor Charles Adams, Ing. Kwame Kpekpena, and Ing. Dr.
Enyonam Kpekpena on behalf of GhIE. Additionally, Ing. Dr. Enyonam
Kpekpena delivered a short solidarity message on behalf of GhIE at the
Conference's opening.

A notable moment of the Conference was the interaction between Ing. Dr
Enyonam Kpekpena, WIE-FAEO Chair, and Ing. Trudy Morgan, President of the
Sierra Leone Institution of Engineers, with members of the Society of Women
Engineers, Liberia (SWEL).
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m SPONSORS/PARTNERS

The GhIE has received continuous support from the following organizations.
The GhIE expresses gratitude for these entities' sustained backing and
contributions.

1. VoltaRiver Authority (VRA)

2. MCBauchemie

3. VACCTechnical

4. ArcelorMittal

m CONCLUSION

The year showcases GhlE's commitment to elevating the engineering
profession and contributing profoundly to societal advancement and
sustainable development.

The year has seen the Institution's voice strongly heard, impacting society
and shaping national policies through advocacy.

As GhIE looks to the future, it does so with the confidence and anticipation of
further advancing the engineering profession and making significant
contributions to national and global challenges. However, this requires the
involvement of more members in GhIE's activities. We encourage members to
contribute their quota to the advancement of our objectives.

Thank you in anticipation of your continued support to the Institution.

PR N memorium

Management regrets to report the passing to eternal glory of the following
members. May the Almighty God grant our departed colleagues peaceful and
eternalrest.

“Nome T GhieReg No

Nana Kwame Duodu 01021 Retired Fellow (RF)

Paul Alphonse Essel 01029 Senior Professional Engineer (SPE)
John Addo 01263 Retired Professional Engineer (PE)
JosephKofi 01439 Senior Professional Engineer (SPE)
Stanley Owusu 01707 Senior Professional Engineer (SPE)
Emmanuel Adubah 08853 Professional Engineer (PE)

Daniel Akoto 10440 Professional Engineer (PE)

Ezekiel Eqgyir 12454 Professional Engineer (PE)

@
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EX] FINANCE REPORT
5.1 Audited Account for the Year ended 31st December 2023

U ] Voscon

Lharhrrad Accountants

GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING

FINANCIAL STATEVIENTS
31 DECEMBER, 2023
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 Decamber, 2023
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Corporate information for the year ended 31 December, 2023

Council members

Ing. Kwabena Bempong, FGhIE, Associated Consultants

{ACON) Accra - President

Ing, Prof Charles Adams, FGhiE, TRECK Kwame Nkrumah University of -Immediate Past President
Sclence &Technology

Ing. Ludwig A. Hesse, FGhIE, St. Anne's Development Limited Accra - President-Elect

Ing, Mrs. Sophla Tijan, FGhIE, Volta River Authority (VRA) Akuse - Vice president

Ing. Dr. Patrick Amoah Bekoe, FGhIE, Department of Feeder Roads Accra - Execlitive Representative (Professlonal
Engineers)

Mr. Michael Dompreh-ampofo - Professional Engineering Technologists

Mr. Philip Kwame Aheto, RET Accra - Executlve representative (Techinicians)

Mr, Richard Adarkwah, EC, Accra - Executlve represantative (Craftsmen)

Ing. Mrs. Yaa Obenewaa Okudzeto, SPE, Bullt Services Consult Accra - Natlenal Councillor

Ing. Naa Lamkai Quaye-Ballard, BRRI, Kurnasi « National Councillor

Ing. Prof. Elsie Effah Kaufmann, FGhIE, Univerity of Ghana, Legon-Accra - National Councdiller

M. Felix Ohene Ayisi - National Councillor {Craftmen)

Mr. Gideon Bidoryao, EC, Accra - National Councillor (Craftmen)

Ing, Michael @beng Xonadu, GhIE, Accra - Clvil Chair

Ing. Prof Nana Yaw Astedu, SPE Kwame Nkrumah University of Sclence & - Chemical Chair:
Technology — College of Engineering (KNUST) Kumasl

Ing. Ebenezer Ato Roberts, FGhIE ARQ Engineering Solutions, Accra - Electrical/Electronic Chair

Ing. Darlington Ahuble, FGhIE Volta River Autherity (VRA) Accra « Miech/Agric/Marlne Chair

Ing. Dr. Josenh ¥%.F.Ribeiro, SPE Kumasi Technical University Kumasl - Chair, Branch 1 {Ashanti)

Ing. Dr. Efmimanuie) Kwesi Nyantaleyl, FGhIE, University of Energy & Natural - Chair, Branch 2 (Brong, Bono East,

Resources {UENR) Sunyani Ahafo)

Ing. Godfrey Atta Jackson, SPE Volta River Authority Akuse - Chair, Branch 3 (Eastern}

Ing. Michael Cudjoe - Chalr, Branch 4, Greater Accra

Ing. Abciul Shakud lddrisu, SPE UDS, Tamale - Chair, Branch 5 (Northem, Savannah,
Upper East, Upper West)

ing. Antoinette Ama Agboado, SPE Community Water & Sanitation - Chair, Branch & (Volta)

Agency Cape Coast _

Ing. Franklin Kumassah, SPE Takoradi Technlcal University Takorad! - Chalr, Branch 7 {Western, Central,
Western North)

Ing. Prof. Kwabena Nyarko Brytwurn, Kwame Nkrumah Unlversity of - EEU Representative

science & Technology

Ing. Kwaku Sarpong Akosa, Buf Power Authority - ESP Representative
Ing. Magnus Quarshie, Delin Consult - ESP Representative
Ing. David Kwatia Nyante, Ghana Institution of Engineering - Executive Director

UHY YOSCOM IS AW INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF UHY INTERNATIONAL ®
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Corporate information for the year endad 31 December, 2023 {Cont'd)

Sollcitors Robert Sivith Law Group
Unit A602, The Dctagon Building
Greater Accra
Accra.

Registerad office 13 Continental Road
P.0O. Box 7042
Accra-North

Physical place of business 13 Continental Road
Roman Ridge
Accra,

Independent auditors UHY Voscon Chartered Accountants
2" Floor, Cocoshe House,
Opposite Silver Star Tower
Agostinho Neto Close
Alrport Residentlal Area,
Accra-Ghana
P.0.Box LA 476 LA, Accra
Phone +233 30 2683 430/4
Ednfo@ubyvoscon-gh.com
Wiwww.ubyvoscon-gh.com
GA: 057-1475

Bankers Standard Chartered Bank PLC
Fidelity Bank PLC
Ecobank Ghana PLC
Universal Merchant Bank PLC

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) V0004992172

UHY VOSCON IS AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF UHY INTERNATIONAL
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING (GhIE)
Finandal symmary and highlights
{All cimounts ore expressed In Ghano cedi unless otherwise stated)

Three-year financial summary

2023 2022 2021
Total income 5,724,690 6,386,423 3,176,545
General and administrative expenses 6,443,997 5,358,992 3,552,004
Net operatlonal income/{loss) : (719,306} 1,027,431 (375,459)
Total assets 7A82,075 7,026,445 6,401,688
Total funds and reserves 6,570,485 6,674,216 5,131,117
Total raserves and Habllltles 7,482,075 7,026,445 6,401,688
Percentage
Financial highilghts 2023 2022 change
%
Total Income 5,724,690 6,386,423 10.36
General and administrative expenses 6,443 957 5,358,992 {20.25)
Met opersatlonal income/{loss) : {719,306) 1,027,431 170.01
Total assets 7,482,075 7,026,445 {6.48)
Total funds and reserves 6,570,485 8,674,216 1.55
Total reserves and Habilities 7,482,075 7,026,445 {6.48)

UHY YOSCON 15 AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF UHY INTERNATIONAL
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Ghana Institution of Engineering
Statement of Council’s responsibilities
Council's responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The Council is required to ensure that adequate accounting records are maintained so as to disclose at reasonable
adeguacy, the financial position of the Institution. They are also responsible for steps to safeguard the assets of the
Institution and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. They must present financial statements for each
financial year, which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Institution, and the results for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, they are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and apply them on a consistent basis using reasonable and prudent
judgment;

» state whether or not the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) and International Financial Reporting Standards
for Small and Medium-sized Enterprises (IFRS for SMEs) have been adhered to and explain material
departures thereto;

e usethe going concern basis unless it is inappropriate.

The Council acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the preparation of the annual financial statements in
accordance with IFRS and the responsibility of external auditors to report on these financial statements. The Council
is responsible for ensuring the maintenance of adequate accounting records and an effective system of internal
contrals and risk management.

Nothing has come to the Council's attention, to indicate any material breakdown in the functioning of the internal
controls and systems during the period under review, which could have a material impact on the business,

The financial statements are prepared from the accounting records on the basis of consistent use of appropriate
records supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates that fairly present the state of affairs of the
Institution. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and there is no reason to believe
that the Institution will not continue as a going concern in the next financial year, The Council confirms that in
preparing the financial statements, they have:

* selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently.
e made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

e followed the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

* prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis,

The Council is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Institution and to enable them ensure that the financial statements comply with the

Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992). They are also responsible for safe guarding the assets of the Institution and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

By the order of the Council:

NameofCounl:IIMember &W Name of Council Member.- -DA\“D K. MFARSTE

SIENALUNE.....c e ccm e e srnsnasd

Db 27 ( '02-, 2% la‘_/—

Date........ ;}/olfvlo J.L}..

@



Management Report 2023/2024 Council Year

Councll's Report
to the Members
of Ghana Institution of Engineering

Council report for the year ended December 2023

In accordance with the requirements of section 132 of the Companias Act, 2019 (Act 822}, we the Councll of the
Ghana Institution of Engineering submit our report together with the Audited Flnancial Statements of the
Institution for the year ended 31 Dacember 2023,

Statement of responsibllitles of the Council

The Council s responsible for the preparation of Financial Statements for @ach financial year which gives a true
and fair view of the state of affalrs of the Institution and of the surplus or deficit and cash flews for that period.
In preparing those financial statements, the Council has selected suitable accounting pelicies and then applied
them consistently, made Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and follow [nternational
Financial Reporting Standards,

The Council is responsible for ensuring that the Instiution keeps proper accountlng records that disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time Its financlal position, The Council is also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Institutlon and taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other frregularities.

Nature of business

The \nstitution is a not-for-profit professional body established by law In accordance with the Professional Bodies
Registratlon Decree NRCD143 of 1973 and the Engineering Council Act, 2011 {Act 819). The Instltution seeks to
advance and facilitate the acquisition and Development of Sclence, Engineering and Technology at all levels of
society and to ensure its performance by instilling in its membership, professionalism and ethical practice.

Financial results

The financial results of the Institution are set out below:

2023 2022
GHC GHC
Met surplus/f{deficit) for the year (719,306) 1,027,431
Prior year adjustment - {21,918)
From which is added the balanee on accumulated fund as 1 January 2,040,096 1,034,583
Leaving a balance to be carried forward on accumulated fund of 1,320,790 2,020,096

Auditor remuneration

The remuneration chargad for the audit of the year ended 31 December 2023 is GHS 35,713.20 (excluding VAT,
NHIL, GETfund and Covid-19 levies).

@
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Councils’ Report
to the Members
of Ghana Institution of Engineering (cont'd)

Independent auditor

The external auditor is responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the Institution’s financial
statements for the year. The financial statements have been examined by the Institution’s external auditors and
their report is presented on pages 18 to 21.

in accordance with section 139 (11) of the Companies Act, 2019 {Act 992), UHY Voscon has expressed the
willingness to continue in office as auditor of the Institution.

Name of Council membeﬁ-rDA\J D KN YANTE
Signature o L Signature Nﬁ’/tdl et ﬁ"’i\
Date 2.7/[02 ;U}‘ZL{L .. Date 3},‘3'-’-!?;0%—

Name of Council member.#5)
e T
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Carporate governance (CG}

Overview

The Ghana Institution of Fnglneering Is committed to strong corporate governance practices, The Cauncil is the
governing body of the Institution. The Membars of the Council in canjunction with the Executive Management
provide an effective oversight and rmanagemeant of the Institution in a manner that enhances value to tha
Members and other stakeholders of the Institut{on.

The Council

There shall be a Governing Body of the Instltution to be called the Councll. The Councll shall be subject to
decisions of the General Meeting of the Institution,

The Council shall comprise:

the President;

the Jmmediate Past President {IPP) who shall be the {atest living and available Past President;
the President-Elect;

the Vice-President

ong (1) Executive Representative for each Occupational Group;

three (3) National Councilors representing each Occupational Group;

Chairpersans of Technical Divisions;

Branch Chalrpersons;

Four {4) Representatives of Registerad Entitles.

&« & & & 9 & 4 4 &

Standing Committees of the Councll

The Standing Committees of the Institution, together with the Branch Executive Committees and the Technical
Divislon Cperations Committees, support the Council and the Executive Committee to undertake the functions
and achleve the objectives as set out in Artiele 3 of the Constitution,

The standing Committees of the Council are:

the Finance Committee;

the Membership Committee;

the Education and Training Commlttee’;

the Professional Practlee and Ethics Committes;
the Publications Committae;

the Weifare Cornmittee: and

the Conferances and Programs Committee,

.« &+ % + & & »

The distinct functions for the Standing Committees are provided hergunder,
Finance Committes

The Flnance Committee has the responsibllity to ensure good financlal management and control, and
sustalnability of finances of the Institutions. In doing this, the Committee will;

@
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Corporate governanca (CG) ~ (cont’d}

Finange Committee {cont’d)

* prepare, for the approval of Council, a financial management manual for the Institution that ensures
that Article 14 of the Constlitutlon is fully implemented, using appropriate accounting principles and
standards;

¢ revlew and recemmend for the approval of Councll and Annual General Meeting, the annual budget of
the Institution, in accordance with Article 15.2 of the Constltution;

+ ensure that adequate financial records are kept by the Secretariat, and that financlal reports are
prepared, reviewad, audited and presented to the Council for approval, in accordance with Article 15.3
of the Constitution;

* ansure that earmarked funds are praperly set aside and prudently managad, in accordance with Article
15.4 of the Constitution;

» ensure that there Is a system, approved by Coundil, for the procurement and compensation for services
rendered to the Institution for services, employees and Members, in accordance with Article 15.6 of the
Constitution,

* ensure that surplus funds of the Institution are efficiently Invested to optlmize the returns to the
Institution;
advice and suppert the Council to raise funds and sponsorship for its activities; and
advise the Council regarding all issues relating to financial management of the Institution.

Composition
The membership of the Finance Committee shall include:

s the Chairperson, who shall be the Honarary Treasurer;

¢ the Chairperson of all the Standing Committaes;

s the Executive Director; and

» the Director with responsibility for Finance In the Secretarlat of the Institution, who shall be the
secretary to the Committee, and who must facilitate and be in-attendance at all meetings of the
Committee.

Membership Committes

The Membeship Committee is responsible for the admissicn and transfer of Members onto the Membership
Reslster of the Institution. In doing this, the Committee will:

* organize regular and special Engineerlng Professional Examinations to admit or transfer Members inte
various Classes and Occupational Groups;

+ promote the Institution to attract engineering practitioners and engineerlng students in a bid to making
the Institutlon, the licensing Body of choice for Engineering Practitioners in registering with the
Engineering Councll of Ghana (ECGh);

+ produce and disseminate gufdelines, with the approval of Councll, for admitting varlous classes of
Members and transfer from one Class and QOccupational Group to the other;

e provide guidance, with the approval of Council, for In-service training of Tralhee Engineers and thelr
preparation for undertaking the Engineering Professional Examination;

s organize, in collaboration with the Conferences and Programs Committee, the Inductlon Ceremony for
those who have been transferred or admitted as Full Members; and

@
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¢ advisethe Coundl on Issues relating to management of Members and the Membership Reglster.

GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Corporate governance (CG) - (cont'd)

Membership Committee = {cont’d}

Composition

The composition of the Membership Committee shall include:

the Chairperson of the Committee;

the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson of each Technical Division;

the Executive Representative of each of the Occupational Groups; and

the Directer with responsibility for Membership in the Secretariat of the Institution, who shall be the
secretary to the Committee, and who must facilitate and be in-attendance at all meetings of the

Commitiee,

.- w* = »

Edugation and Tralning Committee

The Education and Training Committee is responsible for estabiishing the education and training requirements
for the admission of Members and their continuous professional development. In doing this, the Committee will:
» develop the basic requirements, approved by Council, for the education and training of Engineering
Practitioners, as minimum requlrements for admission Into the Cccupational Groups;
s lialse with education and training Institutlons for Engineering Practitioner to ensure that they are using
the appropriate content and methods and are involved [n appropriate research activities;
+ develop the basic requirements, approved by Councll, for Continuous Professional Development of all
Classes and Occupational Groups of the Institutlon, required to remain of Good Standing;
+ provide guidelines, approved by the Council, for management of the Contihuous Professional
Development (CPD) scheme for the Institution;
s organize tralning programs and workshops, in consultation with the Technical Divisions, for the
continuous professional development of Members; and
« advise Council on all issues relating to edugation and training of Engineering Practitioners as it relates
to the manpower development of the country,

Professional Practica and Ethics Commiitee

The Committee is responsible for prescrlbing, upholding and enforcement of professional engineering standards,
conduct and ethies of Members and Registered Entities. In doing this, the Committee will;

o prepare the Code of Ethics for approval of the Council, and promote its use among Members and
Reglsterad Entities;

¢ investigate, review and make recommendation to the Councll on all cases of professional misconduct
by Members and Registered Entlties;

e promote the proper procurement, contract management practices and remuneration for the
engagement of services of Engineerlng Service Providers;

« advocate for the enforcement of the limits to areas of engineering practice and operation for
Enginearing Practitioners and Entitles.

» manage an information system that enhances opportunities of Members and Registered Entities to

maximize their value on the job market;
» promote preference for indigencus Englneering Practitioners and Engineering Service Providers in the

deltvery of engineering services in Ghana and elsewhere;

@
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Carporate governance {CG) - {cont'd)

Professlonal Practice and Ethics Committee {cont’d)

¢ promote an affirmative action for providing equal access and opportunity for tha practice of Engineering
with specific emphasls on gender and the under privileged in saciety;

+ develop, for the approval of Council, an englneering excellence and award system and see to its
implementation; and
»  advise Councll on issues related to professional practice and athlcs as It relates o national development,

Publications Committee

The Publication Committee has responsibllity for publishing all tha publications of the Institution to facilitate the
dissemination and sharing of knowledge and information to enhance the practice of engineering. In doing this,
the Committee will:

»  pubiish the Newsletter, Magazine, Journal, proceedings of confarences and all other publications of the
Institution;

« ensura that the Institution maintains a vibrant webslte that is informative and provides acdequate
information to Members, Registered Entities and the public;

» provide oversight for the Library of the Institution, including the creation of an electronic lTbrary;

* advise the Council on issues relating to public relatfons, and relationship with both local and
international professional organlzations; and

* adyce the Councll on pollcles relating to publications, national and internationat relations, and public
affalrs, for the approval of Council.

Welfare Committee

The Welfare Commlittee has responsibility for ensuring the professional and sociat wellbaing of Members, In
doing this, the Committee will:

» promote and defend the Interest of the Engineering Practitioner in the workplace regarding
remuneration, health and safety, conditlons of service and fair labor practices;

* design guidellines, for the appraval of Council, and ensure the implementation of a soclalization and
sacial support scheme for Members, as provided in Article 3.2.4 {f) of the Constitution and Bye-Laws;

« ensure that the Welfare Fund is properly administered in collaboration with the Finance Committes
and;

» advise the Councll on policles and programs that will enhance welfare and living standards of Members
and promote their social interactlon.

Conferences and Programs Committee

The Committee has the responsibility to organize all conferences and major programs of the Institution 1n a
manner that promotes the participation of Members and the public, and promotas the beneflts and values of
the practice of Engineering, In dolng this, the Committee will organize:

» the Annual General Meetings;

» annual Conferences;

+  Presidential Inaugurations and Banqust;

@
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¢ mini Canferences in {ialson with the Technical Divislens;

¢ induction of Full Members In consultation with the Membershiy Committee;
GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Corporate governance (CG) —{cont’d)

Conferences and Programs Cominittee {cont’d}

+ the Presidential Address;
» the State of the Institution Address; and
= any other program that the Councll may direct

Membearship of the 5tanding Committees
The membership of each Standing Committee Is provided hereunder,

The President and President-Elect are ex-officlo members of all Standing Committees;

All standing Committees shall have a membership of at least seven (7) Full Members of Good Standing.
s In constituting the Committees, the Councll must ensure that members are predisposed to contribute

meaningfuily to the work of the Committee whilst ensuring that there Is balance In representation In

raspect of the Technical Divisions, Occupational Groups, Branches and Gender.

Except for the Finance Committee and the Membership Committee, the membership of all Committees will be
constituted as follows:

+ the Chairperson of the Committee;
¢  members of the Committea seiected in ascordance with Paragraph 3, above; and
a secretary, appointed by the Executive Director, who shall be a staff of the Secretariat and in a pesition

enuivalent to a Deputy Director or higher, and who must facilitate and be In-attendance at all meetings
of the Committes.

Frequency of meatings

Meetings of the Council are usually held monthly, but may be convened at any time the need arises,

The Council and is Committees met as follows: Number of meetings

Council

Finance Committea

Membership Committes

Fducation and Training Committee
Professlonal Practice and Ethics Committee
Publications Commltiee

Welfare Committee
Conferances and Programs Committee

K R - T B - - R
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Corporate governance (CG) — {cont’d)

2023 -2025 Strategfc objectives

Strategic Objectlve 1: Governance & Institutional Strengthening Action By

Strengthen Branches

Goal 1.1 a. Provide administrative templates for uniformity

b, Undertake Mandatory Activities: Branch AGM, Industrial
visits, technical papers, ethics fecture, welfare, Branch Chairs

¢, Institute Branch competition

| Strengthen Divislons |
Goal 1,2 a. Provide administrative templates for uniformity
b, Undertake Mandatory Activities: conference, Industrial visits,
technlcal papers, Division Chalrs

¢. Institute Division competion
d. Asslgn MOUs with Industry to Division to appoint Project Managers

| Create New Divisions [ ]
Geal 1.3 a, Initiate creating a Digital Division Division Chalrs
b. Initiate creating a Municipal Division Clvit Chalr
| Create New Group of Interest , [ ]
Goal 1.4 a, Inftiate the creation of thee Ghana Armed Forces Engineering Exco/Council
Practitioners
| Create New Affiliates | j
| Goal1.5 | a Biomedical Engineers Association | BxcofCouncit |
\ﬂnplification 8 Efficiency Project l ]
Goal 1.6 a. Digltlsation of Operations Exco/ED

b. Review Documeant Management System {hard and soft}
c. Review Financial Management Manual

d, Review Legal Obligations Register

e. Evaluate Council Members
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGIMEERING
Corporate governance {CG) ~ {cont'd}

2023 -2025 Strategic objectives {cont’d)

| Benchmarking i
Goal 1.7 a Benchmarking GhIE with other Professlonaf Instftutions Exco
b. Benchmark GhIE with other Afsican Professional Insitution
| Projects |
Goal 1.8 2. Initlate New Building Complex Project Exco
b. Setup ADR Centre FPE
¢, Review Learning & Deveopment Program Exco
| Code of Ethics |
| Goal 19 | a. Issue revised Code of Ethics | prE
Strategic Objective 2: Soclety/Influencing Public Policy Actian By

Drevelop Position Papers {Using Think Tanks)

Goal 2.1

a. Arts to Engineering Progrars in University

b. Review of Ghana Standards for Rebars

c. Flooding in Cities

d. Disaster Management Preparadness
e, Flectrical Wiring of Bulldings

f. Infrastructure Scoracard

g- Research on Epgineering Education

h. Ileegal gold mining

Education and
Training Comm,
Civil Chair

Civil Chair

All Division
Electrical Chair
Infrastructure
Scorecard Chalr
Education and
Tralning Comm,
Chemical Chair

| Develop Academia & Industrial Relations

Goal 2.2

a. MOU with AGI to collaborate with their engineering related
organisatfons.

b. Modular Internship for lecturers, students and TPEs
c. Service Providers partnership with Educational Units

Exco

Divislon Chairs
Engineering
Service Providers
Chalr and
Educational Units

| Support Engineering Council of Ghana

[

@
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Goal 2.3

&, Lialse with ECGh with the Implementation of Act 819 and LI 2410

ExcofEngineering
council

GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Corparate governance {CG) — {cont’d)

2023 -2025 Strategic chjectives (cont'd}

|_Collahorate with Relevant international Bodies

| Goal 2.4

| & Joint programs and conferences and also benchmark

| Engagement with Government

| Goal2z,5 [ a Input and evaluate new policies and articulate GhIE position |
Strategic Objective 3: Membership Actlon By
Review Membership Processes
Goal 3.1 a. Review Confirmation Hearing Process
b, Create Membershlp subcommittes based on Dlvisiens and Occupational Membership
Groups Commlttee
€. Review Student Membership Preess
d, Develop a Transtion from Student Members to TPEs
| Membership ID Cards
Goal 3.2 a. Design and Issue Membership ID Cards to Members Exco/ED
| Diversity, Equity & Inclusivity Policy
Goal 3.3 a. Develop and implemant a Diversity, Equity & Inciusivity Policy WinE/YE
| Mentoring Program
Goal 3,4 a. Develop and implement a face-face and virtual mentoring program PPE
Strategic Objective 4: Welfare Action By
Engage a legal firm
Goal 4.1 a. Provide legal support for members with employment and other
professional challenges Exto
b, Assist GhIE advance its position when required

@
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Corporate governance {€G) — lcont’'d)

2023 -2025 Sirategic objectives (cont'd)

[ Engage a labour Consultant for labour issues |

Goal 4.2 a, Assist in developing strategies for advocating for better salaries and
conditlons of service for englneers Exco
b. Advice members who may have issues with employeas

| Soclal Personal issues I

Goal 4.3 a. Support members through social challenges via Branches Branches

| Engineering Services Providers {ESP} |

Goal 4.4 a. Support £SP engage with govt agencies when raguired Exco

Ongaing projects

The professional and Ethics Commitiee [s currently working on an Alternative Dispute Resolution Centre,

Csmberitr-

Date... ﬂ“?/ D 1-{ 202 L’—

I oy

Name of Executlve member.....

Signature.....




Chartered Accountants

P.O,Box LA 476, La, Accra

2nd Floor, Cocoshe House

Opposite Silver Star Tower

Agostinho Neto Close

Alrport Residential Area

Accra-Ghana,
Independent auditor’s report

to the members Phone -+233302683430/4
of Ghana Institution of Engineering Email info@uhyvescon-gh.com
Web  www.uhyvoscon-gh.com

Report on the audited financial statements Digltal Address: GA-057-1475

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Ghana Institution of Engineering as at 31 December, 2023, and of its financial performance and the cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and
Medium-sized Enterprises (IFRS for SMEs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), the
Engineering Council Act, 2011 (Act 819) and the manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992).

What we have audited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ghana Institution of Engineering for the year ended
31 December, 2023.
The financial statements comprise:

* statement of comprehensive Income for the year then ended:;

s statement of financial position as at 31 December, 2023;

* statement of changes in Members' fund for the year ended;

e statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

* thenotes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Institution in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (the Code) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Boards for Accountants (IESBA). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities with the IESBA
Code.

Other information

The Council is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the report of the council
and Chairman’s report and any other information not subject to audit, which are expected to be made available
to us after that date but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we have nothing to report in

this regard.
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UH Voscon
Chartered Accountants

Independent auditor’s report
to the members
of Ghana Institution of Engineering (Cont'd)

Other information (cont’d)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
published with the financial statements to identify areas of material inconsistency between the unaudited
information and the audited financial statements and obvious misstatements of fact to other information.

Inconsistency is when other information contradicts information contained in the audited financial statements.
A material inconsistency may raise doubt about the audit conclusions drawn from audit evidence previously
obtained and, possibly, about the basis for the auditor’s opinion on the financial statements.

Misstatement of fact is when other information that is unrelated to matters appearing in the audited financial
statements is incorrectly stated or presented. A material misstatement of fact may undermine the credibility of
the document containing audited financial statements.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report on this regard.

When we read the other information and we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Council for the financial statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the
Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) and for such internal controls as the Council determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Going concern

In preparing the financial statements, the Council is responsible for assessing the Institution’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the council either intends to liquidate the Institution or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so. The Council is responsible for overseeing the Institution’s financial reporting
process.

o
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the planning and performance of the audit. We also:

* identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatements resulting from the fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls;

e obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls;

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

¢ evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, Including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation;

e conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusion are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Institution to cease to continue as a going concern.

e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and
business activities within the Institution to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Institution audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

@
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit. We are also required to provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Compliance with the requirements of Section 137 of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992)

The Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) requires that in carrying out our audit work we consider and report on the
following matters. We confirm that:

1. we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

2. in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Institution, so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

3. the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income of the Institution are in
agreement with the books of account;

4. we are independent of the Institution pursuant to Section 143 of the Act,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Emmanuel K. D. Abbey
(ICAG/P/1167).

Signed by: 1“ X

VO™ o o
For and on behalf of: Seo™
UHY Voscon (ICAG/F/2024/086)
Chartered Accountants
P.0.Box LA 476, La, Accra
2nd Floor, Cocoshe House
Opposite Silver Star Tower
Agostinho Neto Close,
Airport Residential Area
Accra - Ghana.
G.A-057-1475
E! info@uhyvoscon-gh.com
W: www.uhyvoscon-gh.com

Date 'I_},w, ‘%V“—B‘V\, QAWIY
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December, 2023
(All amounts are expressed in Ghana cedis unless otherwise stated)

Statement of financial position as at 31 December
Assets Note 2023 2022
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 5.a 3,841,363 3,860,230
Intangibles 6 192,955 192,955
Total non-current assets 4,034,318 4,053,185

Current assets

Inventories 18 3,130 -
Trade and other receivables 7 74,957 83,487
Held to maturity investment 8 2,128,845 1,912,790
Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,240,825 976,983
Total current assets 3,447,757 2,973,260
Total assets 7,482,075 7,026,445

Reserves and liabilities
Funds and reserves attributable to members

Accumulated fund 1,320,790 2,040,096
Building fund 10 257,364 220,654
Welfare fund 11 776,129 659,148
Power fund 12 26,375 8,240
Capital and investment fund 13 711,163 415,907
Branch operations fund 14 148,493 -
Capital surplus 3,330,171 3,330,171
Total funds and reserves 6,570,485 6,674,216
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 15 744,060 154,102
Grant 16 167,530 198,127
Current tax 17 - -
Total current liabilities 911,590 352,229
Total reserves and liabilities 7,482,075 7,026,445
By the order of the Council:

Wfaﬁ”‘ @mb‘d&— NameofCouncilMember‘DA\rlb K_ PlyA“““)TE
Signature...........%?%w

Date :2-7/ ° ;-/ Pz 4' Date.........‘g.:z.z...'{?. 'Ll o “lLf’

Notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements

Name of Council Memb:

Signature.........censeaes
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING

Financlal statements for the year ended 31 December, 2023

{Allamounts are stated in Ghana cedi unless otherwise stated)

Statement of comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December

Note 2023 2022
Income 3.4 5,375,216 5,970,804
5,375,216 5,970,804

General and administrative expenses
General & administrative expenses 4 4,858,080 4,155,726
AGMC & other meetings 1,285,400 723,809
Annual subscription (WFED/FAEQ/WAFEQ) 46,813 193,565
Seminar axpenses 99,001 187,010
Membarship expenses 74,414 25,298
Depreciation 80,288 73,584
Totzl expenses 6,443,597 5,358,092
Surplus/{deficit) before taxation (1,068,781} 611,812
Other income 3.d 347,284 415,619
Gross profit from sale of souvenirs 18 2,190 -
(719,3086) 1,027,431
Taxatlon 17 - -
Net surplus/{deficit) for the year {719,306) 1,027,431
Other comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year {719,306) 1,027,431,

Notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

@
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December, 2023

{All emounts are stoted In Ghana cedi unless otherwise stated)

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December
Note 2023 2022
Cash (used In) /generated from operations {43,661) 168,324
Tax pald - -
Net cash flow from operating activities (43,661) 163,324
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (61,421) (364,647)
Increase In Invastment securlties (216,055) i676,432)
Net cash flow from investing activities (277,476) (1,041,079)
Cash flow from financing activities;
Bullding fund 35,710 23,400
Grant {30,598) 198,127
Welfare fund 116,981 257,031
Power fund 18,135 8,240
Caplftal and Investment fund 295,256 248,913
Branch operations fund 148,453 -
Net cash flow from financing activities 584,978 735,711
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 263,841 (137,043)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 976,084 1,114,026
Cash and cash equlvalents at 31 December 1,240,825 976,283

Notes 1 to 22 form an Integral part of these financlal statements.
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING

FInancial Statements for the year ended 31 December, 2023
Notes ta the financial statements

1, Reporting entlty

The Ghana Institution of Engineering {GhIE) was registered with the Dffice of the Registrar of Companies (ORC)
then Reglstrar Generals” Departmert In Ghana as a professlonal body on 10 May, 1974 in accordance with the
provisions of the Professional Bodies Registration Decree, 1973 (NRCD143). On 167 January 2020, the Institution
changed its name from the Ghana Institution of Engineers to the Ghana Institutlon of Engineering. The Institution
is domiciled in Ghana with Its registered office and principal place of business at 13 Continental Road, Roman
Ridge. The nature of business the Institution is autherized to carry on are;

Registration and Regulation of engineering prastice in Ghana;

Malntaining Professional Standards In the practice of engineering;

Promoting the Welfare of Members and Registered Entities;

Providing Civic Servlce; and

Promating and Recognizing Excellence in the science and practice of englneering.

* & @& & @

GhIE is also registered as a licensed body with the Engineering Council of Ghana which was astablished under
the Engineering Council Act, 2011 (Act 819) and Engineering Councit Regulatlons, 2020 {L.I. 2410) LI 2410.

2, Summary of signlficant accounting policies

The principal accounting pelicies applled In the preparation of these financial statements are set out below:

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financlal statements of Ghana nstitution of Engineering have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medlum-sized Entities {IFRS for SMEs), as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board {IASB), Engineering Council Act, 2011 (Act 819) and Companies Act, 2019 {Act 992),

2.2 Basis of measurement and accounting

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in compliance with the International
Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entlties (IFRS for SMEs} issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board Interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS for SMEs and with the requirements of Companles Act, 2015 [Act 992},

The financial statements are presented in Ghana Cedis (GHE), The measurement. basis applled 1s the historical
cost basis, except as modified by the revaluation of land and buliding, revaluation of financial assets and financlal
[labilities at falr value through profit or loss.

2.3 Use of estimates and judgment

In preparing these financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and
Medium Enterprises {IFRS for SMEs}, management makes judgments, astimates and assumpions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses, It also requires the use of
accounting estimates and assumptions that may affect disclosures In the financial statements. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and varfous factors that are believed to be regsopable
under circumstances, the results of which form the basis of rmaking the judgment about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The actual results could, by definition therefora, often
differfrom the related accounting estimates, Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on ah engolng basis,
Revisions to accounting policies and estimates are recognized retrospectively and prospectively respectively,

@
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December, 2023
Netes to the financlal statements {continued)

2.3 Use of estimates and judgment {cont’d}

Certain accounting policles have been identified where management has applied a higher degree of judgment that
hawe a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements or estimates and assumptions that
have a signiflcant risk of causing a material adjustment to the ¢arrying amounts of assets and labilities within the next
financlal year,

2.3 Use of estimates and judgment
1) Estimates of assats economic useful ife and residual values

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over its useful life taking Into account resldual values, where
appropriate. The actua! econemic useful lives of the assets and residual values are assessed at each financial year-end
and may vary depending on a number of factors, In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation,
precut life cycles and maintenance programs are taken into account.

2.4 New and amended standards and Interpretations adopted by the Institution during the year

At the date of authorlsation of these financial statements the foflowing new standards and amendments to existing
standards that were in Issue were adopted by the Institution:

Basic finandal instruments

Section 11 “Basic financial instruments” lssued on 24 July, 2014 is the 1ASB’s replacement of 1AS 39, Basic financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, Section 11 includes requirements for recognition and measurement,
impairment, derecognition and general hedge accounting.

Classiication and measurement - Section 11 intraduces new approach for the classification of financial assets,
whlch is driven by ¢ash flow characteristics and the business model in which an asset is held. This slngle, principle-
based spproach replaces existing rule-based requirements under 1A5 39, The new model also results In a single
impalrment made! being applied to all financial Instruments.

Impalrment - Section 11 has introduced g new, expected-loss impairment model that will require morg timely
recognition of expected credit losses. Specifically, the new Standard requires entities to account for expected
credit losses from when financial instruments are first recognlised and to recagnise full lifetime expected losses
on atimefler basis,
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
Financlal statements for the year ended 31 December, 2023

(Al amounts are expressed fn Ghana Cedls unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the financlal statements {continued)

2.4 New and amended standards (continued)

Hedge accounting - Section 12 Introduces a substantially-reformed model for hedge accounting, with enhancad
disclosures about risk management activity. The new model represents a significant overhaul of hedge
accounting that aligns the accounting treatment with risk management activities, Own credit - Section 11
removes the volatiity in profit or loss that was caused by changes in the credit risk of Jiabilities elected to be

measured at fair value. This change in accounting means that gains caused by the deterioration of an entity’s
owd credit risk on such lfabilities are no longer recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

The international Accounting Standard Board {IASE) issued Section 20 Leases in fanuary 2016, Section 20 sats
out the principles for the recognition, measurement presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a
contract, i.e. the customer {‘lessee’) and the supplier ("lessor’).

Section 20 is effective from 1 January, 2019, Section 20 complete the JASE’s project to Improve the financlal
reporting of lease; Section 20 replaces the previous lease standard, (AS 17 leases, and related interpretation.

Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure Initiative.

Amendments to section 3 "Presentation of Financial Statements” - Disclosure Initiative issued by IASB on 18
December 2014. The amendments to section 3 are designed to further encourage Companles to apply
professional Judgment in determining what information to disclose in thelr financial statements. For example,
the amendments make clear that materiality applias to the whole of financial staterents and that the incluslon
of immaterial information can Inhibit the usefulness of financial disclosures. Furthermaore, the amendments

clarify that Companies should use professtonal judgment in determining where and in what order information is
presented in the financial disclosures.

Propetty, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets -Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depraclation and
Amortisation issued by 1ASB on 12 May, 2014,

Amendments clarlfy that the use of revenue-based methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset is not
appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors
other than the consumption of the sconomic benefits embodied in the asset. Amendments also clarlfy that
revenue is generally presumed to be an Inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the economic

beneflts embodied in an intangibie asset, This presumption, however, can be rebutted In certain limited
circumstances.

The Institutlon has elected not to adopt these new standards and amendments to existing standards in advance of
thelr effective dates, The Institution anticipates that the adoption of these standards and amendments to existing
standards will have ne material impact on the financial statements of the Institution in the period of initial application,

2,5 Forelgn currency translation
2,3.1 Functional and presentation currency

ftems included in the financlal statements are measured using the currency of the primary economlc
environment in which the Entity operates {*the functlonal currency’ which is Ghana Cedis). Except where

otherwise indlcated, the financial statements are presented In this currency,
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December, 2023

{All amounts are expressed in Ghana Cedis unless atherwise stated)
Notas to the financial statements {continued)

2,5.2 Transactions and balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currencles are recorded in the functional eurrency using the exchange rates
prevalling at the date of the transactions, Monetary assets and Ifabllities denominated in forelgn currencies are
translated at the functional currency rate of exchange rullng at the reporting date, Foreign exchange galns and
losses resulting from the settlement of forelgn currency transactions and from the tra nslation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

2.6 Financlal instruments

The Institution accounts for the following finandal instruments as basle financial instrument in accordance with
section 11:

{a) Cash

{b) a debt instrument (such as account, nate or loan receivable or payable] that meets the conditions

[c) @ commitment to receive a loan that:

Tycannot he settled net In cash; and

Ii} when the commitment Is executed, Is expected to meet the conditions

The Institution’s basic financial instrument are classifled Into two thus;
+  Financlal Assets
*  Financlal Liabifities

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at the transaction price, Most of the sales of the Institution are made on
the basis of normal credit terms, and the receivable do not bear interest, At the end of each repcriing date, the carrying
amounts of trade and other recelvables are reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that the amounts
are not recoverable. if 50, an impalrment loss is recognized Immediataly In the proflt or loss, This aise Include cash purchase
of orcinary shares of another entity’s ordinary sharas and long term Joans made te another entity.

Financial liabillties

Trade payables are obligation on the basis of normal credit terms and de not bear Interest, Trade payables
denominated in foreign currency are translated into cash vnit using the exchange rate at the reporting date, Foreign
exchange gains or loss are included in other income or expenses. This also includes loans recelved from bank, A
payable Is recognized Inltlally at the present value of cash payable to the bank Including interest payments and
rapayment of principal.

2.6.1 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
#.  Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognized where:

» the rights to receive cash flows from the asset hava explred; or the Institution has transferred Its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an ohligation to pay the received cash flows In full without material
delay to athird party under a pass-through arrangement; and either
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* the Institution has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

» the Institution has nelther transferred nor retalned substantlally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset. When the Institution has transferrad its Fight to receive cash flows frem an
asset or has entered Into a pass through arrangement and has nelther transferred nor retained substantially all
the rlsks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the assetl, the asset is recognfzed to the extent of
the Institution's continuing Involvement In tha asset, Contin uing involvernentthat takes the form of aguarantee
over the transferred asset 's measured at the lower of the orlginal carrying amount of the assat and the
maximura amount of consideration that the Institution cotld be required to repay,

b. Financial liabfities

Afinanclal llability is derecognized when the obligation under the liabflity Is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or theterms
of an existing liahility are substantially modifiad, such an exchange or modification s treated as a de recognition of
the original liabllity and the recognition of a new liabllity, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in profit or loss.

2.7 Impairments of assets and other financial assets

The Institution assesses at each end of the reporting perlod whether there is any indicatton that an asset may be
Impaired. If any such indication exits, that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amaunt is estimated for the
individual asset, If it Is possible to estimata the recoverable amount of the Individual asset, the recoverable amount
of the Cash-Generating Unit {CGU) to which the asset belongs is determined. The recoverable amount of a cash
generating unit is the higher of Its fair value less costs to sell and its value In use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. This reduction Is an im palrment loss,

An impainment loss of assets carried at cost less than any accumulated depreciztion or amertization is recognised
Immediately in profit or loss. Any Impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a downward revaluation,

A reversal of an Impairment loss of assets carried at cost Jess accumulated depreciation or amortization other than
goodwillis recognised immaediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated
as an upward revaluatian,

2.8 Cash and cash equivalants

Cash and cash equivalents are recordad in the statement of financlal position at cost, For the purpose of the cash
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposlts and other short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertiblz to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. These are Initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.

2.9 Income tax

In accordance with section 98 (3) of the Income Tax Act, 2015 {Act 896) as amended, the Institution is an exempt

organisation and therefore not liable to corparate income tax for the year under review, No current or defarred
Income tax is therefore payahle by the Institution on income generated In the ordinary course of business.
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2,10 Employee benefits
{a) Short term henefit

Shart-term employee benefits are amounts payable to employeas that fall due wholly with'n twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service, The cost of short-term employee benef-
ts are recognised as an expense In the period when the economlc benefit is glven, as an employment cost.
Unpaid shortterm employee benefits as at the end of the accounting perlod are recognised as an accrued
expense and any short~term benefit pald in advance are recognised as prepayment to the extent that it will lead
e a future cash refund or a reduction in future cash payment. Wages and salaries payable to employees are
recognised as an expense In the profit or loss account at gross amount. The Institution's contribution to Soclal
Security Fund is also charged as an expense.

{b} Social Security and National Insurance Trust (SSNIT)

In accordance with the Act establishing the Social Security and National Insurance Trust, the Instituition
contributes monthly amount equivalent to 13%{defined contribution scheme) of its employee's salaries and
wages to the Social Security Fund to cover future pension payments to its employees, no other pension scheme
is maintained by the Instituition. All employer contributions are charged to the profit of loss account as Incurred
under staff costs, The employeas contribute 5.5% to the fund,

{¢) Provident fund
The Instituition has a provident fund scheme for staff under which the Institution contributes 7% of staff basic salary.
(d) End of service benefit Scheme

The Instituition does not make provision for long term service awards or end of service beneflts. These are treated
oh a cash basis as and when they arise,

2.11 Lease

Leases are classified as flnance leases whenever the terms of the Jease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the Institution. All cther leases are classified @5 operating leases,

Rights to assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Institultion at the fair value of the leased
property (or, if lower, the present value of mirémum lease payments) at the inceptlon of the lease, The
corresponding liabllity to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as afinance [ease obligation,
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of Interest on the remalning balance of the liability. Finance charges are deducted in measuring
profit or loss. Assets held under finance leases are included |n property, plant and equipment, and depreclated
and assessed for impalrment losses in the same way as owned assets.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-Iine basis over the term of the
relevant lease,
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2,12 Inventorles

Invantories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Costs s calculated using the First-in-Flrst -
out [FIFO} method,

2.13 Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost are interest and other cost that the Instituition Incurs in conpection with borrowing of funds,
Borrowlng cost include:

{a) interest expense calculated using the effectlve interest method as described th section 11 Basic Financial
Instrument;

{b)finance charges in respect of fiancé leases recognized in accordance with section 20 leases; and

() exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowing to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustrment to Interest cost,

Barrowing cost are recognlzed In profit or loss in the period in which they are incurrad,

2.14 Related parties

Related parties are individuals and cornpanies, where the individual and the Instituition have the abillty directly or
Indirectly, to control the other party or exercise signfficant influence on the other party in making flnanclal and
operating decislons, Related party transactions and balances are disclosed in the notes 1o the financla! statements.

2.15 Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and Impairment
losses,

Cost includes expenditures that are diractly attributable to the acguisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, and any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Purchased software that Is integral to the
functionallty of the related equipment is capitallzed as part of that equipment,

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant or equipment Is recognlzed in the carrying amount of the
itemn if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part wiil flow to the Institutlon and its
cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income as Incurred.

bepreciation
Depreciation s recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-ling basls over the estimated

useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative petiods are as follows!
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Building Improvernents 2%
Equipment, furniture & fittings 1366
MMoter vehicle 25%
Ubrary 20%
Plant & machinery 20%

Depreciatioh methods, useful lives and restdual values are reassessed at each reporting date, Gains and losses on
disposal of property, plant and equipment are included In the statement of comprehensive income,

2,16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and short-term instruments with maturities of
three manths or less, and these are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financlal position.

2.17 Revenue recognition

The institution’s main incame is derived from various subscription income, AGM and conferences income, Arbitration
sarvices fncome, sponsership income, exaniination income and other professional services incoma, The Institution has
processes in place to ensure that the recognition of those Income streams is in the correct period. In additicn there are
processes In place to ensure that annual dues and exam fea income recelved in advance of providing the services s
deferred into the relevant pericd, and that subscription income for the year Is aceruad as appropriate. An adjustment to
income ks made each year which reflects the anticipated value of the write-off of debt which has been invoiced in services
being provided, but where a doubt exists as to collectabllity.

2,17.1 Rendering of services
Revenue from rendering of services Is recognized when:

* The amotmt of revenue can be measured reliably;
s [tis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Institutlon;
» The costs incurred or to be Incurred in respect of arbitration can be measured reliably,

Consideraticn recefved from rendering of services Is allocated to advisory services income in the period it
occurad,

2.18 Financlal risic management

Qverview

The Institution has exposure to the following risks from its use of financfal instruments:
liquiciity risk

market rigk

aperatlonal risk

Interest sk
Foreign exchange exposure

* & B & »
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interast rate risk

The Instltution is not subject to Interest rate risk as it has no intarest bearing liabilities.

Own credit — Sectlon 11 removes the volatility in profit or loss that was caused by changes in the credit risk of
liabilitles elected to be measured at falr value. This change in accounting means that galns caused by the
deterforation of an entity’s own credit risk on such liabilities are no longer recognized In profit or loss.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Institution’s forelgn exchange exposure comprises forelgn currency translation exposures. The Institution
manages its foreign currency transactions very well to ensure that there are very mintmal forelgn currency risk

eXposures,

3.a. Income 2023 2022
*Annual subscription — net of transfer to funds 2,063,488 2,511,678
Serpinar Incomea 164,712 335,666
Sale of paraphernalla 18,635 94,935
Professfonal stamp income 83,313 103,350
Arbltration and professional fees 374,155 20,790
Membership Income 33,240 11,315
Firms registration income 155,535 123,020
Hire of facllity 43,000 11,000
Induction fee 114,112 149,584
Sponsership income (3.b) 1,306,489 1,076,455
Miscellaneous income (3.¢) 526,948 1,271,184
Banguet Income 87,824 30,800
Conference participation income 403,765 231,027

5,375,216 5,970,804

* The gross annual subscription was GHC2,938,760, out of which the following transfers were made:

2023 2022
Gross annual subscription 2,938,760 3,017,624
Transfer to the following funds:
Welfare fund {295,256} (257,031)
Branch operations fund {295,256) -
Capital and investment fund {295,256) (248,515)
Other direct contribution to funds 10,405 -
Annual subscription net of transfer of funds __ 2,063,488 2,511,678
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3.b. Sponsorship income 2023 2022
Sponsorship revenye 1,178,489 741,000
Civil Technical Divislon - 15,050
Engineering Excellence Awards 80,000 130,000
Galf = sponsarship - 100,000
Presidential address - 38,150
Internatlonal travels sponsorship - 23,520
WINE sponshorshlp 2,000 28,735
Annual ethics lecture 46,000 -
1,306,489 1,076,455
3.c. Miscellaneous income 2023 2022
Other misc. income 8,500 992,180
Cther misc. income - GTIF - 51,704
Presidential address brochures - 6,600
Professicnal examination fee 518,448 205,000
GhiE 100 far 1000 to Appiati - 15,700
526,548 1,271,184
3.d. Other income 2023 2022
Interast Incorme 233,749 350,047
Exchange gzin 743 12,572
Other operating incoma 46,729 20,500
Advertising income 31,050 32,500
GhIE Volta flood victlms support fund 35,015 -
347,284 415,629
4, General and adminlstrative expenses 2023 2022
Staff salary {4a) 1,736,321 1,326,208
Stationery 26,511 10,049
Repairs and malntenance 59,696 91,602
Library/ICT expenses 314,103 184,251
Offlee expenses 43,534 109,710
Travelling and transport 619,322 701,729
Bank charges 4,564 2,718
Balance carried forward 2,304,551 2,426,267

_®
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Balance brought forward 2,804,551 2,426,267
Audit fee 43,534 37,033
Professional fee 23,511 20,000
Insurance 11,6064 12,916
Presidential expenses 26,347 141,133
Printing and publication 6,000 8,450
Vehicle running expenses 32,216 29,260
Security 53479 49,092
Cleaning and sanltation 38,039 33,314
Elactricity and water 99,567 49,571
Profassicnal stamp expenses 61,450 63,850
Exchange loss 400 -
Donation 112,700 -
Advertlsing expenses 33,120 14,818
End of service award 4,651 8,400
Best Eng. students awards 40,819 11,600
Subscription - 27,912
Miscellaneous expenses 76,573 -
Welfare Fund Expenses - 63,000
Induction expenses 9%,141 98,193
Wine expenses 28,825 9,791
Branch expenses - 131,963
Legal consultation 113,128 87,916
Arbitration services 314,279 -
Internal audit services 42,482 -
HR consultation 5,405 -
Public relations 31,242 -
Prafessional examination expanses . 45,408 55,656
Professional practice & ethics expenses 108,179 9,170
Impairment of Investrment (Blackshielg) - 160,234
Applati support expenses - 135,800
Other expenses 25,595 154,145
Engineering Councll {Initial Registration) axpenses 269,156 215,800
Engineering Excellence Award expenses 3,242 100,443
Medical insurance 40,699 -
Board evaluation expenses 92,644 -
Retreat {GhIE Councll) 68,716 -
Wortld Engineering day expenses 61,305 -
Youth in Engineering expenses 23,100 -
Assin Kushea Land expenses - 20,710 -

4,858,080 4,155,726
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4.a 5taff cost

2023 2022
Salarles and other related cost 1,735,106 1,298,257
Staff training expenses - 2,720
Medical insurance - 25,231
Medical cost 1,215 "
1,736,321 1,326,208
5.a. Property, plant and equipment
Cost/valuation 1 January Additions 31 December
2023
Bullding 3,640,167 - 3,640,167
Plant & machinery 26,300 - 26,300
Equipment & furniture 724,706 61,421 786,127
Mator vehicle 325,078 - 325,078
Library books 2,430 - 2,430
4,718,681 61,421 4,780,102
Accumulated depreclation 1lanuary Charge for the 31 December
2023 year
Building 1,113 5,567 5,680
Plant & machinery 26,300 - 26,300
Equipment & furniture 503,530 74,121, 578,251
Motor vehicle 325,078 - 325,078
Library books 2,430 - 2430
858,451 80,288 838,739
Carrylng values as at
31 December, 2023
Bullding 3,633,487
Plant & machinery -
Equipment & furniture 207,876
WMotor vehicle -
Library books .
3,841,363
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5.b ., Property, plant and equipment

Cost/valuation 1 Janyary Additlons 31 December
2022
Building 3,584,495 55,668 3,640,167
Plant & machinery 26,300 - 26,300
Equipment & furniture 608,682 115,024 724,706
Motor vehicle 325,078 - 325,078
Library books 2,430 - 2,430
4,546,989 171,692 4,718,681
Accumulated depreciation llanuary Charge for the 31 December
2022 year
Building . 1,113 1,113
Flant & machinery 26,300 - 26,300
Equipment & furniture 431,059 72,471 503,530
Mator vehicle 325,078 - 325,078
Lbrary books 2,430 - 2,430
784,867 73,834 858,451
Carrylng values as at
31 December, 2022
Building 3,639,054
Plant & machinery -
Equipment & furniture 221,176
Motor vehicle -
Library books -
3,860,230
6.2 intangibles
Cost/valuation
2023 January Additions 31 December
Council anthem 15,500 - 15,500
Website - WIP 177,455 - 177,455
192 955 - 192,955
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6.h intangibles
Cost/valuation

2022 January Additions 31 December
Council anthem - 15,500 15,500
Website - WIP - 177,455 177,455
- 192,955 152,955

7. Trade and other recelvables 2023 2022
Trade receivables 61,500 68,000
Prepayment 2,632 2,795
Staff receivables 10,825 12,692
74,957 83,487

8. Held to maturity investment 2023 2022
Investment 2,128,845 1,912,720
2,128,845 1,912,790

9. Cash and cash equivalents 2023 2022
Cash at bani 1,165,535 976,717
Cash on hand 45,289 266
1,240,825 976,983

10, Bullding fund 2023 2022
Balance as at 1 lanuary 220,654 197,254
Contributions for the year 36,710 23,400
Balance as at 31 December 257,364 220,654
11. Welfare fund 2023 2022
Balance as at 1 January 659,148 402,117
Transfer for the year 295,256 257,031
Qther direct contribution 8,359 .
Payments (187,674) -
Balance as at 31 December 776,129 659,148
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12. power fund 2023 2022
Balance as at 1 January 8,240 -
Contribution 18,135 8,240
Balance as at 31 December 26,375 8,240
13, Capital and investment fund 2023 2022
Openlng balance 415,507 166,892
Transfer for the year 285,256 248,915
Balance as at 31 December 711,163 415,907
14, Branch operatlons fund 2023 2022
Opening balance - -
Transfer for the year 295,256 -
Payments {146,763} -
Balance as at 31 December 148,493 -
15. Trade and other payables 2023 2022
Accounts payahle 47,363 -
Audit fees 43,534 37,033
Professional fes 23,511 20,000
Dues in advance 608,435 84,760
Withholding tax payable 11,642 12,309
Social Security & National Insurance Trust 9,575 -

744,060 154,102
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16, Grant

This is an award In the form of a Grant by the Royal Acaderny of Engineering to the Ghana Institution of
Engineering for an African Catalyst Phase 4 Project. The total amount of the award Is £39,750 with the following

monitoring schedule.
Report Date
Initiation report 24/10/2022
Progress report 23/01/2023
Final repart 10/05/2023

Below Is the schedule of payments:

Action Date Value £ Pre-requisite report
Payment 28/10/2022 24,000 On receipt of initiatian report
Payment 2 03/02/2023 11,000 On receipt of progress report
Payment 3 19/05/2023 4,750 On receipt of final report

32,750

*The Contract has been amended by both partles in areas of the *final report and the *payment 3. These are
detailed below:

Report Date
Initlation report 24/10/2022
Progress repott 23/01/2023
*FInal report 29/11/2023
Schedule of payments
Report Date Value £ Pre-requisite report
Payment 1 (paid) 28/10/2022 24,000 Initiation report
Payment 2 (paid} 03/02/2023 11,000 Progress report 1
*Payment 3 04/12/2023 4,750 Fina! report

39,750

At the date of the report, the payment 3 has been recelved by the Institution, Detalled below 1s the Grant
status as at 31* December, 2023:

2023 2022
Opening balance 198,127 -
Grant received 224,828 408,414
Grant expenses {255,425) (210,287)
Balance as at 31 December 167,530 198,127

_®
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17. Taxation

In accordance with section 98 (3} of the incomae Tax Act, 2015 (Act 896} as amended, the Institution s an exempt
institutlon and therefore not liable to corporate income tax for the year under review. No current or deferred
income tax is tharefore payable by the Institutlon on Income generated in the ordinary course of business as
described [n the abjects of the Assocfation in the Council’s Report on page 7.

18, Sale of souvenirs 2023 2022
GHC GHC
Sales 31,190 -

Less cost of sales:

Purchases 32,130 -
Closing invantory (3,130)
29,000 -

Gross proflt from sale of sourvenirs 2,190
19. Cash flow from operations 2023 2022
{Deficit)/surplus {719,306) 1,027,431
Adjust for;
Prior year ad|ustment - {21,918)
Depreciation ) 80,283 73,584

[639 ,018) 1,079,096
Changes in working capital:
{Increase}/Decrease in Inventory {3,130} 38,974
{Increase)/Decrease In trade and other recelvables 8,530 166,723
Increase/{Decrease) in trade and other payables 589,958 {1,116,468)
Cash (used In]}EQnerated from operations {43,661} 168,324

20, Related party

i} The Institution’s Council Members are the directors of Ghana Institution of Enginesring which means any
transaction between these Member’'s and balances at close of year are related party transaction and balances,
There was no related party transaction as at the year ended.

ii) Key Management Personnel

Key Management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of Ghana Institution of Engineering {directly or indirectly) and comprlse of

Executive Directer and other Senior Management.

For the year under review, key management personnel include:

_®
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I Members of Council —refer to list on page 3.
21, Contingent liabilitles and capital commitments
a. Contingent liabilitles

Other than the llabillty to pay future penslons and allowances, there were no contingent liakilities of the Institution
as at 31 December, 2023.(2022: GH¢ nil)

b. Capltal commitment
There were no commitments as at 31 December, 2023 {2022: GHE nil),
22, Events after the end of the reporting year

vents subsequent to the statement of financlal position date are reflected only to the extent that they are
matarial. There were ho such events as at the date the financial statements were signed,
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EE] BUDGET FOR THE YEAR 2024

5.2.1 Income Budget
INCOME BUDGET (2023) ACTUAL (2023)  BUDGET (2024)
GHC GHC GHC
11 Subscription
111 Current Annual Subscription 2,875,000.00 2,583,412.92 3,768,175.00
11.2 Subscription in Arrears 300,000.00 300,000.00
113 Students Dues 20,000.00 13,500.00 40,000.00
1.2 Admin Charges (Membership)
1.21 Building Levy 50,000.00 31,710.00 50,000.00
122 ‘é":;g{;égﬁ Time 16,768.10 6,824.00 19,200.00
1.2.3 | Energy Fund 35,000.00 18,135.00 25,000.00
1.2.4 | Professional Stamp 200,000.00 83,313.12 255,000.00
125 | Professional Examination 855,000.00 518,447.74 860,000.00
1.2.6 Induction 420,000.00 14,112.00 270,000.00
12.7 | Sale of Inventory 100,000.00 54,825.00 82,000.00
13 Seminars and Workshops 360,000.00 164,711.75 360,000.00
14 Conferences and events
1.4.1 | Conferences 345,000.00 458,351.00 480,000.00
14.2 Presidential Address 10,000.00 - 248,600.00
143 | World Engineering Day - - 100,000.00
1.4.4 | Accra Int. Conference Centre - - 40,000.00
15 Sponsorship
1.5.1 | Conferences 1,000,000.00 1100,000.00 1,200,000.00
152 ir\:\?;rr]desering rcellence 330,000.00 80,000.00 150,000.00
153 | Branches 200,000.00 300,000.00
1.5.4 | Facility Rentals
155 gg?r;ecreence nal SocialCentre, 40,500.00 43,000.00 199,000.00
156 | Office Rental 24,000.00 24,000.00 30,000.00
16 Firm Registration 86,000.00 155,535.00 ‘ 168,000.00
17 éétr)\l/tircztsmn And Advisery 150,000.00 374,154.73 100,000.00

_®
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Income Notes
11 Revenue projected based on current membership growth trends.
117 Expected Annual Subscription
112 This is arrears expected to be paid by defaulting members in the year 2023.
113 Designing and printing of ID cards for student members in the Universities.
12 Revenue set to cover the costs of membership services and processing.
121 Initial levy on every new entrant
122 One-time welfare payment on every new entrant
123 One-time payment for energy and power fund by every new entrant
124 Fees received from obtaining new stamps
125 Fees received from engineering professional exams.
126 Fees to be realized from members to be inducted
127 Sales of Car sticker, Lapel Pins, Fabrics
13 Expected income from Seminars.
1.4 Income forecasted from attendee registrations and participations during conferences.
14.1 Estimated income from conference participation and banquet fees
14.2 Sale of brochures, auction, and pledge of support.
14.3 Estimated sponsorship for World Engineering Day celebration
This is amount was paid to Accra International Conference Centre for AGM prior to Covid 19 pandemic. The
144 . - .
money is expected to be retrieved in 2024.
15 Donations and sponsorships received from Organizations and Individuals
15.1 Sponsorship received for Conferences
15.2 Expected Sponsorship for EEA
153 Branches are expected to seek for sponsorships to support branch activities
154 Income from renting out spaces in the Institution building
155 Renting out space to members and general public
15.6 This amount is expected to be paid by Consulting Engineers for use of premises and facilities for the year.
1.6 Renewal and registration of firm fees by engineering service providers
17 Income realized from arbitration and advisory services
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5.2.2 Expenditure Budget
‘ EXPENDITURE B(lZJoDZGéE)T BUDGET (2024)
GHC GHC GHC
2.1 Staff
2.11 | Staff Remuneration 1,948,221.39 | 1,735,105.50 2.633,083.00
2.1.2 | Healthcare and Insurance 65,430.00 41,915.42 50,000.00
2.1.3 | Staff Training 60,000.00 - 80,000.00
2.2 General Administration
221 |ICT 257,900.00 318,824.05 355,000.00
2.2.2 | Office running 48,480.00 76,970.00 74,680.00
2.2.3 | Meeting and engagements 20,000.00 10,839.33 18,214.00
2.2.4 | Courier and Postage 10,000.00 4,952.00 7,000.00
2.2.5 | Security 62,000.00 53,478.91 74,000.00
2.2.6 | Cleaning & Sanitation 47,000.00 38,039.45 46,000.00
2.2.7 | Utilities 94,200.00 99,566.15 111,000.00
2.2.8 | Insurance 12,500.00 1,604.02 20,635.00
2.3 International Engagements
2.3.1 | Subscriptions 136,600.00 102,117.98 135,158.00
2.3.2 | ASCE 168,600.00 221,468.94 -
2.3.3 | WFEO 153,600.00 15,215.35 128,700.00
2.3.4 | FAEO 135,600.00 84,355.75 118,820.00
2.3.5 | NSE (Investiture) - - 131,029.00
2.3.6 | NSE (Conference) 222,000.00 176,657.90 158,210.00
2.3.7 | WAFEO 153,600.00 28,190.00 108,680.00
2.4 Local Engagements 37,821.62 10,707.00 40,000.00
2.5 Motor, Plant & Equipment
2.5. | Repairs & Maintenance 92,000.00 97,038.79 156,000.00
2.5.2 | Motor Running Expenses 79,100.00 49,621.72 89,000.00
2.6 Admin expenses on Membership
2.6.1 | Induction 90,000.00 95,141.00 104,655.00
Engineering Professional
2.6.2 Examination 281,449.51 78,616.28 90,680.00
2.6.3 | Professional Stamp 150,000.00 61,450.00 144,000.00
2.6.4 Engineering Council Act 2011 (Act ) )
o 819) 16,500.00
2.6.5 | Registration of Members 200,000.00 269,156.00 325,000.00
2.7 Committees and Technical Divisions 123,876.00 172,115.15 423,500.00

@
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2.8 Third-party Engagements
2.8.1 | Audit Fees 40,000.00 67,045.00 64,367.00
2.8.2 | Tax Audit charges 93,022.00 93,022.00 -
2.8.3 | Bank Charges 6,000.00 4,564.29 7.000.00
2.8.4 | Consultancy 340,000.00 506,537.04 444,000.00
2.8.5 | Board Evaluation 40,000.00 92,644.00 -
2.8.6 | History & Heritage 10,000.00 - 10,000.00
Presidential Address, Technical
28 visits, and Initiatives Bnoe DALY 80,000.00
2.10 Conferences and Events
2.10.1 | AGM/Conference/Annual Banquet 800,000.00 | 1,282,777.01 1,161,610.00
2.10.2 | Engineering Excellence Awards 85,000.00 3,242.00 15,500.00
21 Seminars and Workshops
2.11.1 | Seminars 149,000.00 99,000.85 120,000.00
2.11.2 | Council Retreat 100,000.00 92,644.00 100,000.00
2.12 Donations/CSR
2.12.1 | Donations (Social Responsibilities) 100,000.00 112,700.00 50,000.00
Best Eng. Student
212.2 Award/Donation/Prize 35,000.00 40,813.00 50,000.00
213 Transfer to Welfare Fund 304,268.10 355,931.30 327,092.00
10% Earmark Funds & Sponsor for
el Branch Activities AN VAU 618,770.00
5 :
215 1086 EeTmEle U e 20l 287,500.00 |  146,137.30 327,092.00
Investment
2.16 Land and Capital
2.16.1 | Capital Expenditure 30,000.00 - 30,000.00
2.16.2 | Engineering Village Project - 20,710.00 -
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Notes on Expenditure

2.1 Allocated funds for salaries, training, and staff related costs.

211 | estimated total cost of all GhIE Staff to the Institution and 3 new expected employees

2.12 | Total cost expected for Health Insurance premiums of staff.

2.13 | An estimated cost of Training staff

2.2 Allocated funds for office supplies, utilities, and administrative support.
257 This is made up of all routine calls, Internet data, Web servers, database software, and all other IT
- Expenses

2.2.2 | expenses incurred on general office operations

2.2.3 | Funds allocated for organizing and attending internal and external meetings.

2.24 | Budget for mailing documents and parcels.

225 | expenditure for securing the premises and assets.

2.2.6 | Costs for maintaining cleanliness and hygiene standards.

2.2.7 | Payments for electricity, water, and other essential services.

2.2.8 | premiums paid for various insurance policies.

2.3 Expenses for global partnerships and activities.

2.3.1 | subscriptions of the Institution's membership with international Engineering Organizations.

2.3.2 | Funding for American Society od Civil Engineers engagements.

2.3.3 | Funding for World Federation of Engineering Organization engagements.

2.34 | Funding for Federation of African Engineering Organization engagements.

235 | expenses incurred on participation in NSE Investiture.

2.3.6 | Funds allocated for participating in Nigerian Society of Engineers conferences.
537 Funds allocated for participating in West African Federation of Engineering Organization
o engagements.

2.4 Funds for participating in external local meetings, seminars, and community involvement.

2.5 Purchase and maintenance of vehicles, machinery, and equipment.

2.5.1 | Costs for fixing and servicing infrastructure and equipment.

2.5.2 | Fuel and other expenses related to vehicle operations.

2.6 Administrative costs associated with managing memberships and related activities.

2.6.1 | Costs for the induction of new members

2.6.2 | expenses for conducting professional exams.

2.6.3 | Cost of issuing professional stamps
2.6.4 | purchase of the Act document.

2.6.5 | Fees for initial registration and renewals of members.
57 Funds for Committees and Technical Divisions operations, project implementations, and
’ administrative support.

2.8 Budget for engaging external entities on specific professional activities.

2.8.1 | Total audit fees charged by the auditors.

2.8.2 | Cost of outstanding tax audit charges

2.8.3 | Bank Charges expected to be paid on bank accounts operations and transactions.

2.8.4 | Funds allocated for consulting services.

o
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2.85 | Funds for assessing board performance.

2.8.6 | Allocation for documenting Institution history and heritage.

2.9 Allocated budget for Presidential Address, including technical visits and initiatives.
210 | Funds for hosting and organizing conferences and events.

2.10.7 | expected Expenses to be incurred before, during and after the AGM/Conference/ annual Banquet
2.10.2 | Funds for organizing Engineering Excellence Awards.

21 | Funds allocated for seminars and workshop

2.117 | Funds for hosting and organizing seminars and workshops.

2.11.2 | Allocation for council retreat activities.

212 | Funds allocated for donations and CSR initiatives

2.12.7 | Allocation for donations and social responsibility initiatives.

2.12.2 | Funds for Best Engineering student awards and prizes.

213 | Allocation for Member welfare fund.

214 | Designated funds for branch-level projects.

215 | Investment in long-term assets.

26 | expenditures for physical assets and significant capital investments.

2.16.7 | Allocation for acquiring or upgrading physical assets.

2.16.2 | Funds for project activities
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EXE] PROPOSALS FOR SUBSCRIPTIONS, LEVIES AND FIRM FEES FOR 2024

BACKGROUND TO PROPOSED INCREMENTS

The following proposals are made in fulfillment of article 9.5.1 of the GhIE
Constitution, which states.

“The Council, on annual basis, will determine a schedule of Entrance Fees, Annual
Subscription and Levies if any, and present it for approval at the Annual General
Meeting.”

Subscription Rates

Class Current Proposed
(2024) (2025)
Fellow 1,300.00 1,300.00
Senior Professional Engineer 1,705.00 1,105.00
Professional Engineer 975.00 975.00
Professional Engineering Technologist 780.00 780.00
Engineering Technician 585.00 585.00
Trainee Professional Engineer 600.00 600.00
Trainee Professional Engineering Technologist 520.00 520.00
Trainee Engineering Technician 130.00 130.00
Craftsman 195.00 195.00
Companion 1000.00 1000.00
Retired Fellow 325.00 325.00
Retired Professional Engineer 325.00 325.00
Retired Engineering Technician 290.00 290.00
Students 65.00 65.00

Engineering Service Provider

Current

Proposed

(2024)

(2025)

Employees 1-10 1,500.00 1,500.00
Employees 11-30 3,750.00 3,750.00
Employees 31-100 6,000.00 6,000.00
Employees (more than 100) 10,500.00 10,500.00

'
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GhlE will need to provide some services and create a platform for regular
engagement with corporate members (Engineering firms, Contractors, Services
and engineering education units).

Note
1. Allamounts are in Cedis unless where specifically indicated otherwise.

2. Noincrement for individuals

3. Noincrement for organizations.

4. The subscriptions for non-voting members in each occupational group
has been set to ensure that they do not pay more than the voting

members in the next occupational group.

5. The rates for student members are fixed for the period, and are one-
time payments for ID Cards.
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ENTRANCE FEES

More than 1yr as Trainee Indcution Fee
# Occupational Groups Member Less than 1Yr as Trainee u
Current 2025 Current 2025 Current 2025

1 |Professional Engineer 260.00 260.00 4,550.00 4,550.00

2 |Professional Engineering Technologist 195.00 195.00 3,900.00 3,900.00 780.00 780.00
3 [Technician 130.00 130.00 1,950.00 1,950.00

4 |Craftsman 65.00 65.00 780.00 780.00

All entrance fees shall be one-off payments.
LEVIES

The building and energy levies shall be one-off payments by all new members.

# |Description Current 2025
1 |Building Levy 130 130
2 |Energy Levy 65 65




CONSTITUTIONAL MANDATE OF AGM ||‘

14.3. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

14.3.1. The Annual General Meeting shall be held in March of every year.
14.3.2. Thebusiness of the Annual General Meeting shall be:

()

(b)
©

Toreceive and consider the Annual Management Report of the
Council.

To receive and consider the Annual Financial Report of the Council.

To mandate the Council onindicated matters concerning the direction
and management of the affairs of the Institution for the coming year.
To approve the schedule of Entry Fees, Annual Subscription and
Levies of the Institution for the next Financial Year.

To appoint Auditors for the Institution.

To appoint Scrutineers for election onto the Council and to declare the
results.

To transact any other business of which notice in writing shall have
been given to the Executive Director at least seven days before the
General Meeting; and

To transact any other business thatis admitted by the President or
any other person presiding at the time. 14.3.3. Other procedures and
requirements of the Annual General Meeting shall be provided in the
Byelaws.
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Bl APPenDICES
Appendix A. AGM Attendance List

S/N  NAME INSTITUTION

1.

Abdoulaye Issifou

Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)

2.

Abraham Appiah

Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST) Treck

Afia Kesewaa Akosah
Agyenim

Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)

Akwasi Agyapong

Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Technology - College of Engineering
(KNUST)TRECK

Albert Amenyo Ameade

Alfred Asamoah

Volta River Authority (VRA)

Ametorxe Asamoah-
Okyere

Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)

Anthony Mawuli Atsrim

Fedems Ltd

Baffour Sefah Ofori

Volta River Authority (VRA)

Benedict Asamoah

Benedicta Klutse

Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)

Bernard Acheampong

Volta River Authority (VRA)

Bernard Adjei-Thompson

Volta River Authority (VRA)

Bertha Johnson

Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST) Treck

Bismark Nana Kwaku
Bonsu

Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST) Treck

Collins Nketiah Abrefah

Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
TRECK

Daniella Ofosu

Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)

Delali Adjei

Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)Treck

Dennis Laryea

Fedems Ltd

Derry Paula

Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)

Dominic Ofosuhene

Volta River Authority (VRA)

Doris Dzikunu

Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)

Dr Robert Sarpong Amoah

ucc

Elizabeth Blay

Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)

Emmanuel Afutu

MTN Ghana Ltd
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S/N NAME INSTITUTION
6 Emmanuel Kofi Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
" | Acheampong Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST) Treck
27. | Emmanuel Odame Volta River Authority (VRA)
Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
28. Emmanuel Dzisi Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
TRECK
29. Esi Manseh Edufu Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
30. | Eugene Baafi Volta River Authority (VRA)
31. Eunice Nelson-Cofie MTN Ghana Ltd
Evelyn Mante Odor Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
Eyram Tamakloe Fedems Ltd
32. | Faustina Agbo Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
33. Fidelma Ibili Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST) Treck
34. Francis Odame Ansah Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
35. | Fredrick Barnes Fedems Ltd
. N . Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Gabriel Abiswi Awinzo Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
37. | George Kodwo Addison | Ministry of Roads & Highways
38. | Georgina Tsali Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
39. | . Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Gifty A. Hukpati Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
40. | Happy Owusu Sefah Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
41. Henry Boateng IET Gh
42. liasu Ewuntomah Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)TReck
43. | Ing (Miss) Abigail . ..
Acheampomaa Opoku Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
44. | Ing (Miss) Enyonam Afua . .
Gbeddy Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
45, Ing (Mrs) Emmanuella - .
Adubea Asamoah Building & Road Research Institute
46. | Ing (Mrs). Sarah Agyen- Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi
Mensah
47. | Ing (Mrs). Sophia Enyan Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
48. | Ing Abigail Acheampong GRIDCO
49. | Ing Benjamin Klu Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
50. | Ing Bismark Otoo Ghana Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA)
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S/N  NAME INSTITUTION
51. | Ing Daniel K. Bainson
52. | Ing Dr Eric Ofosu Antwi University of Energy and Natural Resources
53. University of Skill Training and Entrepreneurial
Ing Dr. Isaac Monney Development- Mampong Ashanti
54, | Ing Frederick Asare-
Yeboah
55. | Ing Isaac Essel Aryee Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
56. | Ing Kwame Ansu-Gyamfi | Associated Consultants (ACON)
57. | Ing Louis Owusu Annan Volta River Authority (VRA)
58. | Ing Magnus Samuel
Asiedu
59. | Ing Prof S. 1. K Ampadu
60. | Ing Prof. Emmanuel
Kwame Appiah-Adjei KNUST
61. | Ing Winfred Aniagyei Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi
62. | Ing. (Miss) Theodora -
Winchela Kanduri Petroleum Commission
63. X]c?c.)f(g/”S) Alberta Esther Social Security & National Insurance Trust (SSNIT)
. Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
64. Ing. (Mrs) Elizabeth Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
Arjarquah
TReck
65.  INg. (Mrs) Precious Elorm Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Ansah
66. Ing. (Mrs) Rita Ohene . .
Sarfoh Ministry of Roads & Highways
67. :\r:tgi;r.n(Mrs.) Priscilla Opoku- Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
68. Ing. Abass Mohammed Ministry of Roads & Highways
Awolu
69. Ing. Abel Kwesi Offei Volta River Authority (VRA)
70. Inq. Adiei Boaten Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
9-Ad 9 Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST) Treck
71. Ing. Agbenyega Prosper . .
Adzraku Ghana Airports Company Limited
72.  Ing. Akim Adio Tijani Volta River Authority (VRA)
73.  Ing. A!gxander Alooriwe Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
Awuviri
74. Ing. Alexander Duncan Volta River Authority (VRA)
Reynolds
75.  Ing. Amo Duodu Volta River Authority (VRA)
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S/N  NAME INSTITUTION
76. | Ing. Aqne-Marle Esaaba CENPOWER Generation Company
Abeasi
77. Ing. Anthony Amuzu Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
/8. | Ing. Antoinette A. Community Water and Sanitation Resources
Agboado
79. | Ing. Augustine Asiamah Volta River Authority (VRA)
80. | Ing. Augustine Inkoom Volta River Authority (VRA)
81. | Ing. Aggustme Appiah Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi
Boachie
82. | Ing. Benjamin Kittah Jnr | Volta River Authority (VRA)
83. | Ing. Benjamin Owusu Ghana Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA)
84. IAndgj.eIi3enjam|n Nii-Tawiah Volta River Authority (VRA)
85. | Ing. Benjamin Osei Osei Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi
Owusu Owusu Sarpong
86. Ing. Benjamin Wireko Ghana Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA)
Asibey
87. Ing. Bismark Anane Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
88. | Ing. Broni Eric Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi
89. | Ing. Bruno Ansah Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi
90. | Ing. Charles Eyiah Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
91. | Ing. Charles Nartey Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
92. | Ing. Charles Owusu- Volta River Authority (VRA)
Sekyere
93. Ing. Charles Ebo Kraikue Ghana Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA)
94. | Ing. Christian Atsu Dagbui | Volta River Authority (VRA)
95. | Ing. Collins Rexford . .
Rexford Ankamah Volta River Authority (VRA)
96. | Ing. Conrad Nyamiah Ghana Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA)
97. | Ing. Daniel Acquah Ghana Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA)
98. | Ing. Daniel Akyem Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
99. | Ing. Daniel Annor Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
100. | Ing. Daniel Baffoe Volta River Authority (VRA)
101. | Ing. Daniel Martey Volta River Authority (VRA)
102. | Ing. Daniel Boateng Petroleum Commission
102. | Ing. Daniel Boateng Petroleum Commission
Akuoko
103. | Ing. Darlington A. Ahuble | Volta River Authority (VRA)
104. | Ing. Darlington Aston . .
Ahuble Volta River Authority (VRA)
105. | Ing. David Arthur Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi




Management Report 2023/2024 Council Year

S/N  NAME INSTITUTION
106. | Ing. David K. Nyante GhIE
107. | Ing. David Kwaasi Oturoku | Volta River Authority (VRA)
108. | Ing. David Oduro Wiredu Ghana Airports Company Limited
109, | Ing. David Osei David Walter Ltd
Amankwah Jnr
Ing. Dennis Sitsofe . .
110. Anyomi Volta River Authority (VRA)
M. | Ing. Derrick Okyere Volta River Authority (VRA)
Ing. Domingo da Pilma -
12. Leketey Ayawaso West Municipal Assembly
3. :2?&123;:'(:"( sedem Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
14. | Ing. Doreen Ampadu Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
115. | Ing. Dorothy Araba Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Yakoba Agyapong Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
T6. Ing. Dr Kwame Boakye
Ing. Dr. Akwasi Afrifa
7. | Acheampong
118 Ing. Dr. Celestina Allotey Goldfields Ghana Ltd (Tarkwa)
Ing. Dr. Emmanuel K. . .
9. | Nyantakyi University of Energy and Natural Resources
Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
120.
Ing. Dr. Enoch Bessah Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
121 Ing. Dr. Henry Nunoo- Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
" | Mensah Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
Ina. Dr. Jerry John Kponvo Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
122. g. br. Jerry pony Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
123. | Ing. Dr. Kenneth Ashigbey
124 Ing. Dr. Kwadwo Mensah- | Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
| Darkwa Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
Ing. Dr. Mrs. Enyonam
125. | pekpena ECG
126. | Ing. Dr. Patrick A. Bekoe Department of Urban Roads
127. | Ing. Dr. Richard Asumadu | Ghana Hydrological Authority
128. | Ing. Dr. William Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
" | Amponsah Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
123. I(r;gc.)rlfgenezer Asare Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi
130. | Ing. Ebenezer Ato Roberts

_®
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S/N  NAME INSTITUTION

131. | Ing. Ebenezer Ato Roberts
132. | Ing. Ebenezer Kwesi
Haizel
133. | Ing. Edbert Kobla Azumah | Ghana Airports Company Limited
134. | Ing. Ekow Baffoe Volta River Authority (VRA)
Amamoo
135. In_g. Elizabeth Grace Adjoa Ghana Airports Company Limited
Bimpomaa Acquah
136. | Ing. Elliot Sarpong Volta River Authority (VRA)
137. | Ing. Emmanuel Baidoo Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
138. | Ing. Emmanuel Yeboah Volta River Authority (VRA)
139. | Ing. Emmanuel Akuffo Volta River Authority (VRA)
Nartey
140. | Ing. Emmanuel Bartels
141. | Ing. Emmanuel Kobina Ghana National Gas Company
Moses
142. | Ing. Emmanuel Owusu Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi
Agyare
143. E(t_:ji.nzfernmanuel Tetteh Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
144. | Ing. Eric Afreh-Mensah Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
145. | Ing. Eric Bosompem Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Owusu
146. | Ing. Eric Yaw Appiah Volta River Authority (VRA)
147. | Ing. Eugene Ankamah Fedems Ltd
Owusu
148. Ing. Evans Cudjoe Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
149. | Ing. Evans Amane Owusu | Volta River Authority (VRA)
150. | Ing. Felix Atiogbe Volta River Authority (VRA)
151. | Ing. Felix Akuetteh Torto | Ghana Airports Company Limited
152. | Ing. Felix Gavor
153. | Ing. Felix Kwadzo Atsrim | Fedems Ltd
154. | Ing. Felix Nii Klorkwe . .
Tetteh Volta River Authority (VRA)
155. | Ing. Francis Domenyo . .
Ahlidza Ministry of Roads & Highways
156. | Ing. Francis Mensah .
Adzakpa-Akoto Waste Landfills Company Ltd
157. | Ing. Frank Prah Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
158. | Ing. Frank Sam- Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Onuawonto
159. | Ing. Frank K. Pinto Volta River Authority (VRA)
160. | Ing. Frank Kwofie Pinto Volta River Authority (VRA)

_®
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S/N NAME INSTITUTION
161. ?Ogt;;redenck Obeng- Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
162. | Ing. Geoffrey Kweku Volta River Authority (VRA)
Barnes
163. | Ing. George Mensah Volta River Authority (VRA)
164. Ing.'George Justice Kofi Volta River Authority (VRA)
Appiah
165. | Ing. Godfrey Atta Jackson | Volta River Authority (VRA)
166. | Ing. Godfrey Atta Jackson | VRA
167. | Ing. Harold Esseku
168. | Ing. Henry Kwadzo Petroleum Commission
Mensah
169. | Ing. Horace Koranteng -
Nkansah Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
170. | Ing. Irene Yram Abusah Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
171. | Ing. Isaac Ampim Volta River Authority (VRA)
172. | Ing. Isaac Bedu Volta River Authority (VRA)
173. qu. Isaa?c Koranteng Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Yirenkyi
174. | Ing. Isaac Kweku Boakye | Ghana Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA)
175. | Ing. Ishmael Obuadey Waste Landfills Company Ltd
Donkor
176. | Ing. Jacob Brown Yawson | Volta River Authority (VRA)
177. | Ing.James Adotey Jnr Volta River Authority (VRA)
178. | Ing. James Komla Ashaley | Ghana Irrigation Development Authority (GIDA)
179. | Ing. Jeffrey Kyei-Baffour | Petroleum Commission
180. | Ing. John Kwofie Volta River Authority (VRA)
181. | Ing. John ashford Ashford Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Inkoom
182. | Ing. John Paul Abraham Ghana Airports Company Limited
183. | Ing. Johnny Hally Etsey Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
184. | Ing. Jonathan Blankson Volta River Authority (VRA)
185. | Ing. Jonathan Agbo Narh- Petroleum Commission
Dometey
186. | Ing. Joseph Agyemang- Volta River Authority (VRA)
Darko
187. | Ing. Joseph Annor Multithread ICT Solutions
188. | Ing. Joseph Obeng- Volta River Authority (VRA)
Kwakye
189. | Ing. Joseph Ofori Ghana Airports Company Limited
190. Ing: Joseph Hagyinte Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Seripenah
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S/N  NAME INSTITUTION
191. | Ing. Joseph K. Oddei AESL
192. Lr;?iésseph Nii Awuley Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
193. | Ing. Jpseph Nyameye Volta River Authority (VRA)
Cowfie
194. | Ing. Joseph Willie Amoah Genesis Oil and Gas Services, Ghana
195. Ing: Josephine Amoa Petroleum Commission
Essien
196. | Ing. Jude Bruce-Laphia Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
197. Icnagljdllj:)ngsley Amamu Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
198. | Ing. Kingsley Dela Keleve | Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
199. | Ing. Kisman Ackon Eghan | Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi
200. | Ing. Kofi Inkoom Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
201. | Ing. Kofi Owusu Dwamena | Volta River Authority (VRA)
202.| Ing. Kojo Nwi Winful Ghana Airports Company Limited
203.| Ing. Kojo Nwi Winful Jnr Facol Roads Limited
204. | Ing. !(omla Wogbemase GPHA
Ofori
205.| Ing. Kwabena Asamoah Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
206. | Ing. Kwabena Bempong Associated Consultants (ACON)
207. | Ing. Kwabena Bempong ACON
208. | Ing. Kwabena Larbi Aikins | Ghana Airports Company Limited
209. | Ing. Kwabena Tontoh . .
Kankam-Yeboah Volta River Authority (VRA)
210. | Ing. Kwaku Asare-Sefah Volta River Authority (VRA)
211. | Ing. Kwaku Asmah Process and Plant Automation
212. | Ing. Kwaku Mensah Volta River Authority (VRA)
Sarpong
213. | Ing. Kwame Essuman Ghana Airports Company Limited
214. | Ing. Kwame Opoku- Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Dapaah
215. | Ing. Kwame Osei Mensah Volta River Authority (VRA)
Darkwah
216. | Ing. Kwasi Agyeman- L .
Boakye Ministry of Roads & Highways
217. | Ing. Kwasi Boakye Ghana Airports Company Limited
Boateng
218. | Ing. Kwesi Asamoah Associated Consultants (ACON)
Ahene
219. | Ing. Leslie A. Ayeh Ayeh and Ayeh
220.| Ing. Linda Ofori Adjei Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi
Acheampong
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S/N  NAME INSTITUTION
221. | Ing. Ludwig Hesse St. Anne’s Development
222. | Ing. Luke Sitso Dei Volta River Authority (VRA)
223. | Ing. Magnus Quashie Delin Consult Ltd
224. | Ing. Ma.hama Asunga Ghana Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA)
Abdulai
225. | Ing. Mark Owusu Petroleum Commission
226. | Ing. Mary Kwakua Tagoe Ghana Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA)
227. | Ing. Matthew Seddoh Ten Forward Infastructure Energy Services
Akatey
228. | Ing. Mavis Allotey GPHA
229. | Ing. Mavis Dede Allotey Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
230. | Ing. Michael Jackson Ghana Airports Company Limited
231. | Ing. Michael Bekoe Department of Feeder Roads
232. | Ing. Michael Ebenezer . .
Addison Volta River Authority (VRA)
233. | Ing. Michael K.L. Dedey Ankobra Metrics
234. | Ing. Michael Kuuku Krakue | ADK Consortium
235. | Ing. Michael Kweku
Nelson
236. | Ing. Michael Kwesi Wiafe CENPOWER Generation Company
237. | Ing. Miss. Worlanya .
Afenyo Akosua Gana Associated Consultants (ACON)
238. | Ing. Morrison Edem Essah | Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
239. | Ing. Mrs. Alberta -
Amankwaa Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
240. | Ing. Mrs. Benedicta .
Opokua Acherekoh Associated Consultants (ACON)
241. | Ing. Mrs. Benedicta Yayra -
Opoku-Mensah Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
242. | Ing. Mrs. Carlien Dorcas
Bou-Chedid
243. | Ing. Mrs. Dorothy Abrafi Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Kwakye-Ameyaw
244. | Ing. Mrs. Efua Effah Ministry of Roads & Highways
245. | Ing. Mrs. Enyonam Aku -
Fafa Kpekpena Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
246. IA'EéMrS' Jacqueline Ofor Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
247. | Ing. Mrs. Jane Naki .
Tetteh-Anowie Associated Consultants (ACON)
248.| Ing. Mrs. Joyce Asante Ghana Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA)
249. | Ing. Mrs. Nana Akua .
Fokuoh Brenyah-Boateng Associated Consultants (ACON)
250. IT?jg.nl;Ars. Sophia Abena Volta River Authority (VRA)
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S/N  NAME INSTITUTION
251. | Ing. Naa Lamkai Quaye- BRRI
Ballard
252, Ing. Nana Asamoah Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Obimpeh
253. | Ing. Nana Kum Sam- Volta River Authority (VRA)
Awortwi
254. | Ing. Nana Poku Agyeman
255. | Ing. Nana Yaw Anane- Volta River Authority (VRA)
Binfoh
256. | Ing. Noble Kwabla Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Kpesese
257. | Ing. Obed Kwame . -
Essandoh Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
258. | Ing. Obodai Johnson Volta River Authority (VRA)
259. | Ing. Oko Kwei-Odai PETROSOL Ghana Ltd
260. | Ing. Paa Kofi Nyame . ..
Jonfiah Ghana Airports Company Limited
261. | Ing. Padmore Asare Ghana Airports Company Limited
Owusu
262. | Ing. Patricia Pokua Sasu Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
263. | Ing. Patrick Addai Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi
264. | Ing. Patrick Asare Yeboah | Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi
265. | Ing. Peter Acquah Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
266. | Ing. Peter Adonteng Maxmass Ltd
267. | Ing. Peter De-Graft Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Abagna
268. | Ing. Prince Okyere Volta River Authority (VRA)
269. Ing. Prof. Ebenezer Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Mensah Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
270. | Ing. Prof. Elsie Akosua . .
Biraa Effah Kaufmann University of Ghana
271. | Ing. Prof. Elsie Effah University of Ghana
Kaufmann
272. Ing. Prof. Emmanuel Kofi Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Akowuah Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
273.
Ing. Prof. Francis Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Kemausuor Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
274. | Ing. Prof. Ibrahim Yakubu
Seini
275. | Ing. Prof. Kwabena Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Biritwum Nyarko Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
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S/N NAME INSTITUTION
276. | Ing. Randy Delanyo -
Adjorlolo Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
277. | Ing. Rev. Enoch Etornam Social Security & National Insurance Trust (SSNIT)
Atutornu
278. | Ing. Rev. Prof. Charles A. KNUST
Adams
279. | Ing. Rexford Kwame Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Asante
280. | Ing. Richard Yaw Associated Consultants (ACON)
Gamadeku
281. | Ing. Richmond Dorttey Volta River Authority (VRA)
Ashong
282. | Ing. Robert Ben-Smith Volta River Authority (VRA)
283. | Ing. Roland Dziwornu Volta River Authority (VRA)
Gadagoe
284. | Ing. Roland Kofi Weseh Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
285. | Ing. Sammy Fiifi Sowah Tema Qil Refinery
286. | Ing. Samuel Nasumong Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
287. | Ing. Samuel Atuobi Twum | Social Security & National Insurance Trust (SSNIT)
288.| Ing. Samuel Kwabena Ghana Airports Company Limited
Asare
289. | Ing. Samuel Kwesi Dadzie | Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
290. | Ing. Samuel Yirenkyi-Addo | Volta River Authority (VRA)
291. | Ing. Seloame Baeta CENPOWER Generation Company
292. | Ing. Senyo Kofi Fialor Petroleum Commission
293. | Ing. Seth Oduro Yaw Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
Ahene
294. | Ing. Simon Odetchi Martey | Volta River Authority (VRA)
295. | Ing. Smart Nana Nkansah | Volta River Authority (VRA)
296. | Ing. Solomon Mensah Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
297. | Ing. Stephen Ayitey- -
Mensah Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
298. | Ing. Stephen Kwofie ADK Consortium
299. | Ing. Stephen Essel Arthur | Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
300. I(;lvg\j,.i:r:ephen Kwamina Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
301. | Ing. '?'tephen Yeboah Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Ampiaw
302. | Ing. Theophilus Joe Quaye | Ghana Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA)
303. | Ing. Vincent Abbey Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
304. | Ing. William Lartey Darko | Riepco Limited
305. | Ing. Wilson Yaotse Ago Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
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306. | Ing. Wiseborn Owusu
Danquah
307. | Ing. Yaa Obenewaa
Okudzeto
308. | Ing. Yingor E. Agordekpe | Waste Landfills Company Ltd
309.| Isabella K-Semackor Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
310. | Jerry Nyamekye MTN Ghana Ltd
31. | Jonas Nanzoninge MTN Ghana Ltd
312. | Joshua Cudjoe Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi
313. | Joshua Adjetey Volta River Authority (VRA)
314. | Judith Tachie-Menson Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
315. | Kofi Danquah Lartey Volta River Authority (VRA)
316. | Kwaku Danso Yeboah Fedems Ltd
317. | Kwame Agyenim- Ghana Ports & Harbours Authority (GPHA)
Boateng
318. | Kwame Otu Gyekye Volta River Authority (VRA)
Asante
319. | Lynna aney Otabil Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
320. Marcos Aboagve Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
9y Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)Treck
321. | Marian Akuffo MTN Ghana Ltd
322. . . .
. Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Michael Annoh-Manso Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)Treck
323. | Michael Quist Buboafor Fedems Ltd
324.| Mohammed Ahmed Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Kudu Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)Treck
325. Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Mr. Abraham Lambon Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
326. gAariiE;imond Mwinbamon Ministry of Roads & Highways
327. | Mr. Emmanuel Laud .
Mensah Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
328.| Mr. Isaac Teye Otu Ghana Airports Company Limited
329. | Mr. Job Yaw Essuman Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
330. | Mr. Mustapha Sulley Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
331. | Mr. Nutepe Fui Kofi Tudzi | Associated Consultants (ACON)
332. | Mr. Philip Kwame Aheto
333. | Mr. Richard Adarkwa
334. | Mr. Simon Nortey Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
Dowuona
335. | Nana Asibrah Acquah Volta River Authority (VRA)
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336.| Naomi Yankey Anglogold Ashanti - Obuasi

337 N.at_hanlel Awoonor- Ghana Grid Company (GRIDCo) Limited
Williams

338.| Noel Adu-Gyamfi ADK Consortium

339.| Patience Asinah Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)

Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &

340.| Phodie Musa Kamara Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)Treck

341 | Ppriscilla Gyamfi Gyamfi Electricity Company of Ghana (ECG)
342. | Priscilla Konadu Obeng ADK Consortium

343. Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Richter Opoku-Boahen Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)
TRECK
344.| Samuel Selasi Ekissi Volta River Authority (VRA)
345. | Seth Ayim IET Gh

Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &

346. i
Simeon Turay Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST) Treck

347. | Solomon Lanor Volta River Authority (VRA)

Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &
Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)Treck

349. | Stephanie Delali Amoah Volta River Authority (VRA)

348.| Stella Adjei

350. | Stephen Blay-Younge Volta River Authority (VRA)

Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &

351. | Sylvia Ampah Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)

Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &

352. | Terah Antwi Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)Treck

353. | Theophilus Tetteh Ahia Volta River Authority (VRA)
354.

William Tetteh MTN Ghana Ltd

Kwame Nkrumah University of Science &

355. ji
Yvonne Kordjie Technology - College of Engineering (KNUST)Treck
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APPENDIX B 2023 - 2025 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

Strategic Objective 1: Governance & Institutional Strengthening Action By
Strengthen Branches
Goal a. Provide administrative templates for uniformity
1 b. Undertake Mandatory Activities: Branch AGM, Industrial visits, technical Branch Chairs
papers, ethics lecture, welfare.
c. Institute Branch competition
Strengthen Divisions
a. Provide administrative templates for uniformity
Goal b. Undertake Mandatory Activities: conferences, Industrial visits, technical . .
Division Chairs
1.2 papers.
c. Institute Division competition
d. Assign MOUs with Industry to Division to appoint Project Managers
Create New Divisions
Goal — - — — — -
13 a. Initiate creating a Digital Division Division Chairs
b. Initiate creating a Municipal Division Civil Chair
Goal Create a New Group of Interest
1.4 a. Initiate the creation of the Ghana Armed Forces Engineering Practitioners Exco/ Council
Goal Create New Affiliates
1.5 a. Biomedical Engineers Association Exco/ Council
Simplification & Efficiency Project
a. Digitisation of Operations
Goal b. Review Document Management System (hard and soft) Exco / ED
1.6 ¢. Review Financial Management Manual
d. Review Legal Obligations Register
e. Evaluate Council Members
Goal Benchmarking
17 Benchmark GhIE with other Professional Institutions Exco
Benchmark GhIE with other African Professional Institutions
Projects
Goal | a. Initiate New Building Complex Project Exco
1.8 b. Setup ADR Centre
Review the Learning & Development Program
Goal Code of Ethics
1.9 a. lIssue revised Code of Ethics document PPE
Strategic Objective 2: Society / Influencing Public Policy Action By
Develop Position Papers (Using Think Tanks)
a. Arts to Engineering Programs in University Ed.uc.atlon and
Training Comm.
Gzo.lal b. Review of Ghana Standards for Rebars Civil Chair
c. Flooding in Cities Civil Chair
d. Disaster Management Preparedness All Divisions
e. Electrical Wiring of Buildings Electrical Chair
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Infrastructure Scorecard )
Scorecard Chair
Research on Engineering Education Ed.uc.atlon and
Training Comm.
lllegal gold mining Chemical Chair
Develop Academia & Industrial Relations
MOU with ACGlI to collaborate with their engineering-related organisations. EXCO
Goal Modular Internship for lecturers, students and TPEs Division Chairs
2.2 Eng. Serv.
Service Provider’s partnership with Educational Units. Providers Chair &
Edu. Units Chair
Support Engineering Council of Ghana
Goal EXCO/
2.3 Liaise with ECGh with the implementation of Act 819 and LI 2410. Engineering
Council
Goal Collaborate with Relevant International Bodies
2.4 Joint programs and conferences and also benchmark.
Goal Engagement with Government
2.5 Input and evaluate new policies and articulate GhIE’s position.
Strategic Objective 3: Membership Action By
Review Membership Processes
Review Confirmation Hearing Process
Goal Create Membership subcommittees based on Divisions and Occupational Membership
3.1 Groups Committee
Review the Student Membership Process
Develop a Transition from Student Members to TPEs
Coal Membership ID Cards
3.9 Design and Issue Membership ID Cards to Members Exco/ED
Goal Diversity, Equity & Inclusivity (DEI) Statement WinE / YE
3.3 Develop and implement a Diversity, Equity & Inclusivity Statement
Environment, Social and Corporate Governance (ESG) Statement Exco
Produce an Environment, Social and Corporate Governance Statement
Goal Mentoring Program PPE
3.4 Develop and Implement a face-face and virtual mentoring program
Strategic Objective 4: Welfare Action By
Engage a legal firm
Goal Provide legal support for members with employment and other Exco
4.1 professional challenges
Assist GhIE to advance its position when required.
Engage a labour Consultant for labour issues
C:1c'>2al Assist in developing strategies for advocating for better salaries and Exco
conditions of service for engineers.
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b. Advice members who may have issues with employees.
Goal Social Personal issues
- - Branches
4.3 a. Support members through social challenges via Branches
Goal Engineering Services Providers (ESP) =
4.4 a. Support ESP engage with gov’t agencies when required.

Position Paper Development Procedure

10.

Proposal to develop a position paper.

Background: A brief overview of the issue or topic the position paper will address and the purpose
of the paper.

Objectives: Clear and concise objectives that outline the specific goals for developing the position
paper. These objectives should be measurable, achievable, and relevant to the issue or topic.

Scope of Work: A detailed description of the tasks and activities required to achieve the objectives.
This should include research, analysis, drafting, and review of the position paper and any additional
tasks required to communicate and disseminate the paper (see details in B below).

Deliverables: The expected outputs of including the final position paper and any supporting
materials, such as data and research reports.

Timelines: A detailed timeline of the work, including milestones and deadlines for each stage of the
project.

Roles and Responsibilities: Clear roles and responsibilities for all team members involved in the
project.

Budget: A detailed budget that outlines the expected costs for the project, including any expenses
related to research, data collection, analysis, drafting, review, and communication.

Evaluation and Reporting: A plan for evaluating the success of the project and reporting on the
results. This should include clear indicators of success, methods for monitoring progress, and a
schedule for reporting on the project's achievements.

Confidentiality: A statement outlining any confidentiality or data protection requirements for the
project.

Approval Process: The proposal shall be approved by Exco.

Scope of Works for Developing a position paper for the GhlE.

Identify the issue or topic to be addressed. This may be based on a particular event, a change in
legislation or policy, or a concern raised by members.

Research and gather information: Once the issue has been identified, it's important to gather relevant
information about the issue. This may involve researching statistics, policies, and expert opinions.

Analyse and synthesize information: After gathering information, it's important to analyse and
synthesize the information. This will involve identifying key themes, patterns, and arguments related
to the issue.

Develop the position: Based on the analysis, develop the proposed GhIE position on the issue. This
should be a clear and concise statement that shall reflect the organization's stance on the issue.
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5. Provide supporting evidence: It's important to support the position with evidence. This may include
statistics, case studies, expert opinions, and other relevant information.

6. Consider counterarguments: It's important to consider potential counterarguments and address them
in the position paper. This will help to strengthen our position and demonstrate that we have
considered multiple perspectives.

7. Review and finalize: Once the position paper has been drafted, it's important to review and finalize
it. seeking feedback from members or a particular speciality of members (experts) and making
revisions based on this feedback. The position paper would be presented to Council for approval.

8. Communicate the position: Finally, GhIE shall communicate its position to members, stakeholders,
and other relevant parties. This may involve distributing the position paper, issuing a press release,
or engaging in advocacy efforts.
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APPENDIX C - LIST OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS

(i). Standing Committees

(a). FINANCE COMMITTEE

S/N  NAME POSITION

1.

Ing (Mrs) Sophia Abena Tijani

Vice President (Chairperson)

Ing Ludwig A. Hesse

President-Elect

Ing David K. Nyante

Executive Director

Ing Dr. Patrick Bekoe

Chair, Membership Committee

Ing Prof. Emmanuel Appiah-Adjei

Chair, Publications Committee

Ing (Mrs) Naa Lamkai Quaye-Ballard

Chair, Welfare Committee

Nlov|u|a |win

Ing (Mrs) Yaa Obenewaa Okudzeto

Chair, Conferences and Programmes
Committee

Ing Prof Elsie Effah Kaufmann

Chair, Education and Training
Committee

Mr. Benjamin Teye

GhIE Secretariat

(b) MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE

S/N  NAME POSITION

1. Ing Dr. Patrick A. Bekoe Chairperson
2. Ing Sophia Abena Tijani Vice President
3. Ing K. D. Laryea Member

4. Ing Kweku Asmah Member

5. Ing Harold Esseku Member

6. Ing Prof. Kwaku Amaning Adjei Member

7 Ing Nicholas T. Hammond Member

8. Ing Prof Nana Yaw Asiedu Member

S. Ing Samuel Danquah Boamah Member

10. Ing Joseph Lewballah Member

. Ing Juliet Adu Member

12. Ing Ebenezer Ato Roberts Member

13. Ing Edward Melomey Member

14. Ing Emmanuel Bartels Member

15. Ing George Lutterodt Member

16. Ing Yaw Abrampah Member

17. Ing Dr. Bertha Akosua Darteh Member
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S/N  NAME

18. Ing Roland Sackey Member
19. Ing Benjamin Ahunu Member
20. Ing Kisman Eghan Member
21. Ing Frederick Amui Oblitey Member
22. Ayishetu Osman GhIE Secretariat
23. Adobea Antwi GhIE Secretariat
24. Richie Owusu Acheampong GhIE Secretariat
25. Frederick Okae GhIE Secretariat
26. Marion Somuah Nyarko GhIE Secretariat

(c) EDUCATION AND TRAINING COMMITTEE

S/N  NAME POSITION

1. Ing. Prof. Elsie Effah Kaufmann Chairperson
2. Mr. Mark Yanney Member

3. Dumevor Prince Member

4. Ing. Josephine Amoa Essien Member

5. Ing. Isaac Darfour Manu Member

6. Ing. Roland Sackey Member

7. Ing. Kwabena Addo Member

8. Ing. Dr. Nana Osei Bonsu Ackerson Member

9. Ing. Luke Dei Member

10. Ing. Dr. S. Fanny H. Duncan Member

1. Keluru Prince Jeff Member

12. Ing. Alexander Duncan Reynolds Member

13. Ayishetu Osmanu GhIE Secretariat

(d) PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE AND ETHICS COMMITTEE

S/N  NAME INSTITUTION

1. Ing. Ludwig A. HESSE Chairperson
2. Ing. Kwabena Bempong Member
3. Ing. Nyante David Kwatia Member
4. Ing. Dr. Andrews Kwablah Member
5. Mr. Michael Dompreh-Ampofo Member
6. Ing. Ruth Afua Nuerkey Menz Member
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S/N  NAME

7. Ing. Lukman Y. Salifu Member
8 Ing. Alex Nii Ofori Yartey Member
9. Ing. Samuel Boakye Appiah Member
10. Ing. Prof. Abena Obiri-Yeboah Member
. Ing. Prof. Eric Ofosu Antwi Member
12. Ing. Eric Addo Djan Member
13. Ing. Bismark Otoo Member
14. Ing. Prince Isaac Kumfo Member
15. Ing. Gabriel Kwame Sipi Takyi Member
16. Ing. Rev. Felix Tetteh Member
17. Ing. Miriam Korantema Amponsah Member
18. Ing. Abigail Acheampomaa Opoku Member
19. Ing. Charles Kofi Som Member
20. Ing. Michael Botse-Baidoo Member
21 Ing. Abdul-Shakud IDDRISU Member
22 Ing. Prince Anane-Acheampong Osisiadan Member
23 Seth Vondee Member
24 Eric Kwaku Nyame Amevor Member
25. Faustina Ayitey GhIE Secretarat

(e) PUBLICATIONS COMMITTEE

S/N  NAME POSITION

1. Ing. Prof. Emmanuel K. Appiah-Adjei Chairperson
2. Ing. Dr. Godfred Ohemeng-Boahen Member
3. Ing. Dr. X. F. Ribeiro Member
4. Ing. Dr. Bennetta Koomson Member
5. Ing. Peter Adonteng Member
6. Ing. Dr. Francis Kumi Member
7. Ing. Dr. Prodeo Agbotui Member
8. Ing. Dr. Lily Yevugah Member
9. Ing. Prof. Kwaku Amaning Adjei Member
10. Ing Dr Emmanuel K. Nyantakyi Member
1. Ing. Dr. Joseph Sekyi-Ansah Member
12. Ing. Dr. Emmanuel Amankwah Member
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(f) WELFARE

S/N  NAME POSITION

1. Ing. Naa Lamkai Quaye-Ballard Chair

2. Mr. Philip Ahetor Member
3. Ing. Rev. Matilda Eyram Ameade Member
4, Ing. Patricia Ankoh Member
5. Ing. Bennetta Koomson Member
6. Ing. Nicholas Okyere Twumasi Member
7. Ing. Akosua Owusu- Efaa Member
8. Ing. Lydia Kyeraa Member
9. Ing. Daniel Boateng Akuoko Member
10. Ing. Morrison Essah Member
11. Ing. Kate Kpodo Member
12. Augustina Nyarkoa Amoateng Member
13. Zipporah Kyerewah Amankwah Member
14. Ing. Rev. Matilda Eyram Ameade Member
15. Mr. Prince Apawudza Member
16. Ing(.Mrs.) Akua Sekyibea Vander- Pallen Member
17. Priscilla Gyamfi Member
18. Mr. Philip Ahetor Member
19. Marion Somuah Nyarko GhIE Secretariat

(g) CONFERENCES AND PROGRAMMES

S/N  NAME POSITION

1. Ing. Mrs. Yaa Obenewaa Okudzeto Chairperson
2. Ing. Joyce Asante Member

3. Ing. Bismark Otoo Member

4. Ing. Josephine Abakah Turkson Member

5. Ing. Felix Gavor Member

6. Ing. Harold Esseku Member

7. Ing. Dr. Emmanuel Kwame Appiah-Adjei Member

8. Ing. Lucy Agyepong Member

9, Ing. Calvin Bruce-Attuquayefio Member

10. Ing. Shelia Odotteye Member

11. Ing. Mavis Narkwor Addy Member

12. Ing. Benjamin Abban-Acquah Member

13. Jacqueline Beecham GhIE Secretariat
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ii. Adhoc Committees

(A) ICT COMMITTEE

S/N NAME POSITION

1. Ing Kwesu Asmah Chairperson

2. Ing Fiifi Asante-Antwi Member

3. Ing John Getor Member

4. Ing Abdul-Shakud Iddrisu Member

5. Ing Richard Appiah-0Otoo Member

6. Ing Ato Kwamina Sagoe Member

7. Ing Eugene Hagan Otoe Member

8. Ing Isaac Boakye Member

9. Richard 0. Acheampong GhIE Secretariat
10. Mr. Benjamin Bartels GhlESecretariat
1. Mr. Brefo Kofi Gyamerah GhIE Secretariat

(b) MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE

S/N  NAME POSITION

1. Ing. (Mrs.) Joyce Asante Chairperson

2. Ing Prof. Abena Agyeiwaa Obiri-Yeboah Member

3. Ing Prof. Frederick Kodwo Amu-Mensah Member

4. Ing Gabriel Appiah Member

5. Ing Bismark Otoo Member

6. Ing Daniel Baffoe Member

7. Ing. Mrs. Alberta Amankwaa Member

8. Ing. Dr. Latifatu Mohammed Adjah Member

9. Ing Dr Margaret Mary Bruce-Mensah | Member

10. Ing David Dadson Member

1. Ing Abubakari Bediako Member

12. Mr. Benjamin Bartels GhIE Secretariat
13. Richard 0. Acheampong GhIE Secretariat
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(c) LAND ACQUISITION AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
S/N NAME POSITION

1.

Ing Michael Dedey

Chairperson

2. Ing. Clement Adu — Addae Member
3. Ing Padmore Asare Owusu Member
4, Ing Mabel Boafo Member
5. Ing Oswald Oduro-Gyaminah Member
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APPENDIX C - MEMBER UPDATES

GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING

Dear Member,
Member Update May 2023

This is to update you on the outcomes of our recent Council retreat, which was held on the 28" and 29" of April
2023. The retreat was a valuable opportunity for the newly elected Council members to come together and
discuss a range of important issues affecting our profession and our institution.

We engaged in productive discussions during the retreat and developed a few strategic objectives for the council
period ahead. These strategic objectives cover the following areas.

Governance & Institutional Strengthening
Society / Influencing Public Policy
Membership

Welfare

P ow koo

The goals to be achieved under these strategic objectives are attached. This would ensure amongst others:

(a) Enhancing our member engagement and communication strategies to better meet the needs of our diverse

membership base and ensure that all members feel valued and supported by the institution.

Strengthening our advocacy efforts to promote the importance of our profession and ensure that our

members are recognized as leaders in their fields.

(c) Improving our professional development offerings to provide members with the knowledge and skills they
need to succeed in their careers.

(d) Increasing our institution’s resilience and sustainability to ensure that we are well-pasitioned to meet the
challenges and opportunities of the future.

(e) Promoting environmental. social, and corporate governance (ESG) prindples and best practices in creating
a sustainable and just future for all.

(b

We are excited to move forward with these strategic objectives and continue working together to advance our
profession and institution. We look forward to keeping you updated on our progress in the months ahead.

Thank you for your ongoing support of our institution.

Sincerely,

ing. David K. Nyante, FGhIE
Executive Director

Also, note the following:

a) The simplified membership process for professional engineering practitioners continues.

b) The membership portal is up and can be accessed on the website.

¢) Simplification process at the secretarial continues.

d) Notwithstanding the position papers listed to be prepared in Goal 2.1, members can initia
preparation of position papers by following the attached position paper development procedure.

e) Division Fora has been created on the website for discussion of topics DlUISIDn chairs wn[[ heIE facilitate
this ENG I ERING CE
Kl ofiicioiGhiE ‘ Loc: 13 Continental Road, Roman Ridge
‘ a P. C. Box. AN 7042, Accra - Morth, Ghana
[ @oificiolGhie Telephone: +23330 2760867/ | Fax: +233 30 2772005
@OMcialGhlE E-mail: secretariat@ghie.org.gh | Web: www.ghig.crg.gh
ULl a8

Fresident; Ing. Kwobena Bemoong, FGHIE Executive Director, Ing, David Kwatio Nyarite, FGHIE

_®
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING

June 29, 2023

Dear Members,

Member Update: June 2023

Permit me to bring the fallowing events to your attention:

1.

I3 OfficialGhiE

D@Off‘CiCl!GhlE P. O. Box. AN 7042, Accra - Narth, Ghana
Yﬂlm WOfficiolGhIE E-mail: secretarict@ghie.org.oh | Web: www.ghie_org.gh

202 Professional Engineers. 4 Professional Engineering Technologists and 1 Engineering
Technician were inducted on June 27, 2023. Congratulations to our new full members.

. We did not receive nominations for the positions of Chair for Branch 4 (Greater Accra),

Executive Representatives for Technologists. National Councillors for Technelogists, and
National Councillors for Technicians when the Notice for Bye-Election was issued on May
10, 2023. Consequently, no By-Election was conducted.

Committees have been formed and have begun their work, Please refer to Table A for the
Committee Chairs' contact information. For each Committee, we are also establishing a pool
of resource individuals called Friends of Committees. The Friends of Committees would
consist of individuals with experience and an interest in the work of Committees; they may
be called upon from time to time for assistance. In Table A. we've also included links for
joining Friends of Committees.

The Technical Division Operations Committees have been established. and Sub-Division
Chairs have been elected. Table B provides information about the Technical Divisions'
leadership. The Technical Divisions will be responsible for drafting most of our position
papers, among others.

Congratulations to Branch 1 for establishing a new Chapter in Obuasi. The President and
some Executive Committee members attended this event.

ENGINEERING CENTRE

Loc: 13 Continental Rood. Roman Ridge

Telephone: +233 30 27460867/7 | Fax: +233 30 2772005

Fresident. Ing, Kwobena Bempong, FGhIE Execulive Directar: Ing. Dovid kwatia Nyante. FGhIE
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- GhlE

GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING

July 28, 2023
Dear Members

Member Update: July 2023

1. The Council has reopened nominations for the positions below declared vacant. In accordance
with Article 10.8.2 and 10.8.5 of the GhIE Constitution, Bye-Elections would be held to fill
these positions.

S#. | Office (Position) No. of officers to be elected
1. | Chair for Greater Accra (Branch 4) 1
2. | Executive Representative for Technologists 1
3. | National Councillors for Technologist 3
4. | National Councillors for Technicians 3

Nomination starts from July 25, 2023 to August 7, 2023.

2. Please be informed of the introduction of our new Examination Portal! It has been used for the
applications for the 2023 August/September Engineering Professional Examination. This portal
is active a day after scheduled Pre-Examination Workshops for a specified period of time.

3. Please take advantage of all our social media platforms by subscribing to them. The links are as
follows;

LinkedIn: https://www.linkedin.com/company/ghana-institution-of-engineering/
Youtube: https://www.youtube.com/@official_ghie

Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/Official GhIE/

Twitter: https://www.twitter.com/Official GhlE/

Also note that the forum on our website is available for discussions on various topics.
All Technical Divisions have their dedicated channels.

Sincerely,
D

Ing. Nyante, David K. FGhIE

Executive Director
ENGINEERING CENTRE
N1 OfficiciGhiE Lac: 13 Continental Road, Romon Ridge
. A P. O. Box. AN 7042, Accra - Morth, Ghona
D eoriciaGhie Telephone: <233 30 2760867/7 | Fax: +233 30 2772005
'fmm @ OfficialGhiE E-muoil: secrelariol@ghie.org.gh | Web: www.ghie.org.gh
rresident: Ing. Kwabeno Bempong, FGhIE Execulive Direclor ing. David kwotio Myonte, FGhIE

_®
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GhiE

CHANA BNSTITUTION OF ENCINEERING

Dear Member,
MEMBER UPDATE AUGUST 2023

Another month has ended. Let me take a moment to update you on developments within our
Institutions as we continue to drive our objectives through our committees and secretariat.

Code of Ethics

A consultative meeting was convened to review and solicit suggestions from members for updating our
Code of Ethics. The meeting was held at the Engineering Centre on August 8, 2023. The review of our
Code of Ethics would be completed within the coming month.

Branch AGMs

According to Article 14.5 of the GhIE Constitution, Branches are expected to hold Annual General
Meetings (AGM) to review the Branch's Annual report, annual financial report, and any other matters
involving the Branch's direction and management of its business. On August 24, 2023, Branch 2
(Sunyani) conducted its AGM and Conference at the Tyco City Hotel.

Engineering Professional Exams

The Engineering Professional Examinations for August-September 2023 began with written exams in
Branch 1 (Kumasi), Branch 2 (Sunyani), Branch 2 (Akuse), Branch 4 (Accra), Branch 5 (Tamale), and Branch
7 (Takoradi). A total of 301 applicants took the exam across the regions as of August 31, 2023. The
examination run from August 12 to August 25, 2023.

Induction of Engineering Craftsmen

On August 25, 2023, GhIE executives inducted a total of 406 artisans as Engineering Craftsmen in
Takoradi and Bolgatanga. Out of the total, Takoradi had 147 inductees, while Bolgatanga had 259
inductees. The craftsmen received training in a variety of professions with qualifications in NVTI, TVET,
CDVTI, Building Technology and CT Ill. The ceremony was organised by GIZ in collaboration with GhIE
under the ProfArt project, which began last 3 years.

Bye-Election

Bye-elections for the positions of Chair, Branch 4 (Greater Accra) and Executive Representative for
Professional Engineering Technologists were held. Voting started on August 24 and ended on August
29, 2023. The outcome has been made public on the GhIE website. Ing Michael Adotey Codjoe was
elected as Chair of Branch 4 (Greater Accra) and Mr. Michael Dompreh-Ampofo as Executive presentative
of Professional Engineering Technologists.

Upcoming Conferences

There are upcoming international conferences to which the Institution has been invited to participate.
The conferences are the African Engineering Week in Pretoria, South Africa, to be held from September
25-28, 2023 under the theme "Celebrating engineering excellence in the African region." The World
Engineering Convention (WEC) will also host professional engineers in Parque, Czech Republic, from
October 11 to 16, 2023. "Engineering for Life: Breakthrough Technologies and Capacity Development
Focused on United Nations Sustainable  Development Goals" is the theme for WEC. Since the
information was distributed months ago, a number of companies have decided to sponsor their staff to

attend. We encourage other members to make an effort to attend these conferences.
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING

Update your Records

Interact with the Institution via our website and keep your contact information up to date. You can now
easily modify your membership information, including contact information, by visiting the following URL:
http://bit.ly/GhIE-Member-Portal.

Before | end, let me express my sincere gratitude for your ongoing support.

We understand that life can get busy, and priorities can shift. However, we want to remind you that your
presence and contributions are what make our Institution vibrant and impactful. Your unique
perspectives, insights, and experiences are invaluable assets that enrich our collective journey. Whether
it's sharing your thoughts in discussions, participating in events, or even suggesting new ideas, your
engagement adds depth to our organization. We encourage you to take a moment to reconnect with
us, to rekindle the connections that make us stronger, and to become an active part of the positive
change we create together.

—

Ing NYANTE, David K. FGhIE
Executive Director

315t August, 2023
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Dear Member,
MEMBER UPDATE SEPTEMBER/CTOBER2023

It's been agoodstart to the last quarter of the year and already a promisiride to the end to the year We
have two months more left but let me update you on what has been done since the start of this quarter within
our Institution.

GhIE / GIZ Biomedical Launch

This initiative, dubbed‘Upskilling Biomedical Engineers for Ghariawas launched at the Engineering Centre
in Accra on September 19, 2023. This initiative was supported by Gld&velop funding program for
healthcare improvement and implemented by GIZ on behalf of the German Federal Ministry for Economic
Cooperation andDevelopment (BMZ).

The initiative aims to enhance healthcare delivery in the country by improving the skills of graduates and
professionals in the field of Biomedical Engineerind. partners the University of Ghana and the Kwame
Nkrumah University of Scence and Technology (KNUST) for implementation.

GhIE Welfare Event

On September 21, 2023, our Welfare Committee organized a health trip to Bunsu Ecap@8afticipants
enjoyed a day of hiking and a delightful picnic amidst nature. The event was a greatesg; promoting
physical and mental wellbeing among our members.

Engineering Professional Exams

In September, our Examination team launched the first professional examination of the year. This time, we
harnessed the power of our new membership examsrtgb It streamlined registration, offered reatime
progress tracking, and enhanced security. Members found the experience seamless; results will be available in
goodtime. We would not hesitateto embrace technology for a more efficient examination prese

2024 Subscription and Licensing Notice

On September 29, 2023, we sent out 2024 subscription renewal bills. Do not forgetfmafessional Licensing
renewal is due on December 31, 2023. Renew to maintain active status and good standing with the
Engineering Council. Please ensure timely renewal to stay in compliance.

EngineeringVillage MoU with Assin Kushea

Early in October, a memorandum of understanding (MoWjas signed with the Paramount Chief of Assin
Owirenkyi Traditional Council, Ehunabobrim Prah Agyemsaim VI, at the Engineérg Centre for an
Engineering Village (EV) to be constructed in Assin Kushea.

The EVis envisaged tdvave an Industrial park, an office for the facility management team, a Conference
facility, a museum of engineering in Bana, aneco parkand recreational centre as well as a hostel.

_®
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Annual Ethics Lecture

This year'sAnnual Ethics Lecture was delivered by Ing. Yaw Nsarkohand was Chaired by Her Ladyship
Gertrude Torkonoo on October 26, 2023 The Lecture was on the topiclmproving National Values,
Professional Practice, and Engineering Ethicsnspiring members to uphold ethical standards in their
engineering careers. The insightfuevent left a lasting impact on ourmembers and demonstrates our
commitment to ethical excéence.

A Visit to Victims of Akosombo Dam Spillage

The Ghana Institution of Engineering, Ghana Institute of Architects and Ghana Institute of Planners paid a
visit to some of the impacted communities of the Akosombo Dam Spillage on Tuesddy,(tober, 2023.
They visited Battor and Mepe in the North Tongu District of the Volta region to observe the extent of damage
from the spillage.

An appeal for funds was also launched by the President, to support the affected communities. We thank those
who have contributed so far and encourage other members to contribute.

Upcoming Events
Get ready for an exciting lineup of events! Our President's address promises insight and inspiration.
The Engineering Excellence Awards will honar our industry's best

And mark your calendars for the main AGM/Conference- a can'tmiss opportunity for learning and
networking.

Update your Records

Interact with the Institution via our website and keep your contact information up to date. You can easity
this by visiting the URL: http:/bit.ly/GhIE -Member-Portal.

Let me express my sincerest gratitude to you fal your ongoing supportLet’'s commit hard to end the year.

There may be other activities that egage you here and there but let me urge you not to take your eyes off the
ball. Your presence and contributions make our Institution vibrant and impactful. Yousutstanding
perspectives, insights, and experiences are invalugbleur collective journey.

Your participation in our events, your suggestions during discussions and, generally, our engagement with

you have contributed a great deal to the success of the Institution. Don’t relent in this endeavour as we seek
to make you a great part of us.

Ing NYANTE, David K. FGhIE
Executive Director

31t October, 2023
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GHANA INSTITUTION OF ENCINEERING

Dear Member,
MEMBER UPDATE NOVEMBER/DECEMBER 2023

It's yet the end of not only another month but a whole year. It has, indeed, been eventful and let me take
this opportunity to congratulate you all for your hardwork pursuing the objectives of the Institution.

Please, find below updates of our activities in the final couple of months of the year 2023.

Akosombo Dam Spillage visit

Within the period of the flood caused by the spillage of the Akosombo Dam, the Institution partnered
with the Ghana Institute of Architects and Ghana Institute of Planners to visit some of the affected
communities.

The team presented relief items including food and drinks as well cash to displaced persons in Battor
and Mepe in the North Tongu District of the Volta Region.

GhIE-VRA Dialogue

On November 2, 2023, a dialogue — a hybrid event — was held at the Engineering Centre at Roman
Ridge over the spillage of the Akosombo Dam that caused several communities in and around the
catchment area, North Tongu District in particular, to flood.

The programme was addressed by the Chief Executive Officer of the Volta River Authority (VRA), Ing.
Emmanuel Antwi-Darkwa.

He explained the circumstances under which the decision was taken to spill from the dam and said it
was for a good cause, assuring all affected residents that: “We will never leave them and | will make
sure they will go back to their old lives.”

He also noted that it was the first time in 10 years that such an exercise has been done.
Dialogue on Lithium Mining in Ghana

In mid-December, another hybrid dialogue was held at the Engineering Centre at Roman Ridge
regarding the advent of mining of lithium in Ghana.

A presentation was made by the Chief Executive Officer of the Minerals Commission, Mr Martin Ayisi.

He outlined the terms and benefits of the deal, projecting that by February, 2024 the various studies
for the development of the value chain would have been submitted.

The presentation was shared to all members.

Forum on proposed Engineering Village in Assin Kushea

Following the memorandum of understanding (MoU) signed in October for the construction of an
Engineering Village (EV) in Assin Kushea in the Central Region, a forum was held on Tuesday, December

19, 2023.
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The main speakers at the forum were GhlE’s President, Ing. Kwabena Bempong, Ing. Michael Dedey, the
Chairman of the Building Project Committee, and architect, Arc. Dr Alexander Marful.

2023 Engineering Excellence Awards
A call was made for nominations for the 2023 Engineering Excellence Awards (EEA). Among the
categories to be awarded are Student and Young Innovators Category and Public Service Category.

Members have up to December 31, 2023 to submit their nominations with all accompanying materials.

Steel reinforcement in construction
A statement was issued by the Institution to, among others, lead the establishment of an Advisory
Group to advise the Ministry of Trade and Industry on issues affecting the steel reinforcement industry.

This followed a twin stakeholders dialogue held in the course of the year at the Engineering Centre in
Accra.

Upcoming Events

The year will start with a Building Technology Fair in Accra. The Fair will offer a platform for sector players
including contractors and regulators to showcase their works in the provision of affordable housing.

This will precede the 52" Presidential Address on the theme: 'Sustainable Housing Supply with
Alternative Technologies'.

The Engineering Excellence Awards will be held in March, 2024 and will honour our industry's best as
part of the main AGM/Conference.

And mark your calendars for the main AGM/Conference which will start on Monday, March 18, 2024 and
end on Saturday, March

Update your Records

Interact with the Institution via our website and keep your contact information up to date. You can now
easily modify your membership information, including contact information, by visiting the URL:
http://bit.ly/GhlE-Member-Portal.

Let me express my sincerest gratitude to you all for your ongoing support.

Enjoy the break and come back stronger. Remember your presence and contributions make our
Institution very impactful.

Your participation in our events, your suggestions during discussions and, generally, our engagement
with you have contributed a great deal to the success of the Institution. There is more to come in 2024.

Ing NYANTE, David K. FGhIE
Executive Director

27" December, 2023

_®
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GHAMNA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING

GhIE/ADM/POS/54/01
STATEMENT
TITLE: NON-CONFORMANCES AND RISKS IN REINFORCEMENT STEEL
MANUFACTURING AND USE IN THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY IN GHANA.

Introduction

Owing to the importance of the steel reinforcement industry in the delivery of the nation's
infrastructure, any issues of non-conformance or inadequate quality that affect confidence in its
use are of great importance to public safety. In recent times several buildings and structures
have collapsed in our cities, also observations and laboratory tests have indicated some
worrisome issues in the industry. The GhIE and stakeholders in the industry held a dialogue at
the Engineering Centre Accra, on February 23, 2023, and August 31, 2023, to deliberate on the
issues to identify areas of intervention and the challenges. The stakeholders included GhiE,
Fabrimetal Ghana Limited, the Customs Division of the Ghana Revenue Authority (GRA), the
Ghana Standards Authority (GSA), and the Ministry of Trade and Industry (MOTI). Following
the dialogue, as a professional institution whose members design and supervise infrastructure
work that consumes steel reinforcement, we have made the following observations that need
to be addressed to ensure the integrity and minimise the risk of application of non-conformance

steel on the Ghanaian Market.

GhIE observes that:

o  QOver 90% of steel reinforcement used in the construction industry in Ghana is
produced locally.

e There is a proliferation of steel reinforcement bars on sale in the market which does
not meet the Ghana Standard Authority standards,

i.e., does not meet the required standards of GS788. This undermines the integrity
of infrastructure and buildings and increases public safety risk.

e Contrary to global trends where fewer or limited reinforcement steel types of
products are permitted, in Ghana some obsolete steel standards are still produced
increasing the risk of use of low-grade reinforcement steel in buildings.

e Poor transportation, handling, and storage of reinforcement steel further increases

the risk of deterioration in quality prior to use in infrastructure and buildings.

—®
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CHANA INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERING
e The tax regime on reinforcement steel constitutes a substantial part of the cost of

the steel which further heightens the patronage of low-cost low-grade options on
the market which further increases risk.

e The high demand for local scrap materials as raw materials for the manufacturing
steel industry in Ghana encourages the vandalization of steel road assets
compromising on safety of assets.

e The lack of effective monitoring of steel rebar manufacturing, quality assurance,
testing facilities and product labels as required by Ghana standards all seem to
suggest that the principle of buyer beware is the guiding principle which exacerbates

the situation and increases risk of failure of structures reinforced with steel.

The GhIE Recommends

The general public, professionals, contractors, and built environment professionals should
patronise only products that are embossed with manufacturer's details as prescribed by the
GChana Standards Authority

That the Ministry of Trade and Industry and the Ghana Standards Authority work with industry
players and other stakeholders to:

e Develop and operationalize an effective monitoring system for the manufacture,
storage, distribution, and use of reinforcement steel. This must include the
trackability of any product to a manufacturer.

s Update GS 788 to reduce the variety of products and make it simpler to comply
with and monitor. This must include restricting manufacturing to high-yield
reinforcement only.

e Develop and implement a monitoring system including the establishment of
certified/approved testing and calibration laboratories to assist in testing
reinforcement prior to incorporation into construction. '

e promote knowledge sharing and research.

GhlE resolves to

e Collaborate with the Engineering Council to regulate the Manufacturing of steel
reinforcement in Ghana in accordance with Act 819, 2011 and LI 2410, 2020.
e Provide the expertise to lead the establishment of a multistakeholder industry

advisory task force to advise the Ministry of Trade and Industry on issues affecting

@

all sections of the value chain of the industry.
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e Collaborate with the GSA and other stakeholders to review the relevant sections
of the G5788 to reflect global best practices and deal with local industry challenges.

e Undertake continuous awareness in the interest of public safety and provide
education/training programs for all professionals within the sector to stay abreast
of technological advancements and best practices.

e Support policies that will promote the local industry and improve quality and
affordability through applied research and knowledge exchange with industry,

academia, and research institution.

s BN

Signed: Ing. Kwabena Bempong
President, Ghana Institution of Engineering
Accra, November 22, 2023




Diversifying our Generation Portfolio for
Sustainable Power Supply

The Volta River Authority has, since 1961, 2,474 5SMW from its hydro, thermal and solar
harnessed the resources of the Volta River plants.

to provide electrical energy for industrial,
commercial and domestic use in Ghana, as
well as transportation, fishery and
recreation.

VRA continues to diversify its generation
portfolio by exploring cleaner, cheaper and
renewable sources of power generation

Starting with a generation capacity of such as wind and solar energy to sustain
588MW, VRA now operates close to power supply.

For further information, please contact
The Chief Executive
Voita River Authority Tel: +233-30-2664941-9

Electro-Volta House Email: chiefx@vra.com
28th February Road corpcomm@vra.com

AUTHRRITY AUTHORITY P. 0. Box MB 77 Website: www.vra.com

Accra, Ghana
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